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13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 42 ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 42 PART IV 43 ITEM 15.
EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY 44 A AiA A A CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS A This Annual Report
on Form 10-K (this &€ceReporta€) contains certain statements that constitute a€ceforward-looking statementsa€, including within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act. The words a€cebelieve,a€ a€cemay,a€ a€oewill, a€ a€cepotentially,a€ a€ceestimate,a€ a€oecontinue,a€ a€ceanticipate,a€ a€ceintend,a€ a€cecould,a€
a€cewould,a€ a€ceproject,a€ a€ceplan,a€ a€meexpecta€ and the negative and plural forms of these words and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, but are not
the exclusive means of identifying such statements. Those statements appear in this Report, particularly in the sections titled 4€ceBusiness,a€ d€ceManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operationsa€ and &€ceRisk Factors,a€ and include statements regarding the intent, belief or current expectations of the Company and management that are
subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions. A Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements about: A A-our ability to obtain additional funding
to develop and market our products; A-the need to obtain regulatory approval of our products in the states in which we operate or expect to operate in the future; A-our ability to market our
products; A-market acceptance of our products; A- -competition from existing products or new products that may emerge; A-potential product liability claims; A-our dependency on third-party
manufacturers to supply or manufacture our products; A-our ability to establish or maintain collaborations, licensing or other arrangements; A-our ability and third partiesa€™ abilities to
protect intellectual property rights; A-our ability to adequately support future growth; and A-our ability to attract and retain key personnel to manage our business effectively. A Because
forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which cannot be predicted or quantified, you should not rely upon forward-looking statements as
predictions of future events. The events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements may not be achieved or occur and actual results could differ materially from those
projected in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Report or the date of any document incorporated by reference in this Report, as
applicable. Except as required by applicable law, including the securities laws of the United States and the rules and regulations of the SEC, we do not plan to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking statements contained herein after we distribute this Report, whether as a result of any new information, future events or otherwise. A You should not rely upon forward-looking
statements as predictions of future events. We are under no duty to update any of these forward-looking statements after the date of this Report to conform our prior statements to actual
results or revised expectations, and we do not intend to do so, except as otherwise provided by law. A You should read the matters described in &€ceRisk Factorsa€ and the other cautionary
statements made in this Report, as being applicable to all related forward-looking statements wherever they appear in this Report. A This information should be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements and the notes thereto included in this Report. A Our logo and some of our trademarks and tradenames are used in this Report. This Report also includes
trademarks, tradenames and service marks that are the property of others. Solely for convenience, trademarks, tradenames and service marks referred to in this Report may appear without the
A®, a,¢ and SM symbols. References to our trademarks, tradenames and service marks are not intended to indicate in any way that we will not assert to the fullest extent under applicable law
our rights or the rights of the applicable licensors if any, nor that respective owners to other intellectual property rights will not assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, their rights
thereto. We do not intend the use or display of other companiesa€™ trademarks and trade names to imply a relationship with, or endorsement or sponsorship of us by, any other companies. A
Unless the context requires otherwise, references to the &€ceCompany,a€ a€cewe,a€ a€ceus,a€ a€ceour,a€ 4€eNeoVoltaa€, refer specifically to NeoVolta, Inc. A A A1A A A PARTIA ITEM 1.
BUSINESS A Overview A We are a designer, manufacturer, and seller of high-end Energy Storage Systems (or ESS), primarily our NeoVolta NV14, NV 24 and, to a lesser extent, our NV14-K,
which can store and use energy via batteries and an inverter at residential or commercial sites. We were founded to identify new ways to leverage emerging technologies with the dynamic
changes that are taking place in the energy delivery space. We primarily market and sell our products directly to our certified solar installers and solar equipment distributors. In the future, we
intend to expand multiple opportunities with residential developers, commercial developers, and other commercial opportunities. Because we are purely dedicated to energy solar systems,
virtually all of our current resources and efforts go into further developing our flagship NV14, NV14-K, and NV 24 products, while focusing on specific industry needs for our next generation of
products. We believe we are unique in the marketplace due to our low cost, our innovative battery chemistry, our product versatility, and our commitment to installer service. Because of these
factors, we believe NeoVolta is uniquely equipped to establish ourselves as a major player in the energy storage market. A Our NV14 ESS contains a 7,680 W hybrid 120V / 240V and 208V 3-
phase inverter and a 14.4 kWh battery system power. The NV14 is energy efficient, has a variety of operating options, and uses Lithium Iron Phosphate (LiFe (PO4)) batteries. The batteries we
utilize are capable of 6,000 cycles at a Depth of Discharge (DoD) of 90% and have a high thermal range (heat and cold tolerances). Our NV14 ESS integrates all components and is NEMA Type
3R rated (indoor/outdoor). Our NV14-K variant is specifically designed for inclusion into EOS Linx Electric Vehicle charging and advertising products named &€ceAurora Charge Station.a€ Our
NV24 provides additional energy storage capacity raising the NV14 from 14.4 KW to 24.0 KW. Our newest update of the NV14 ESS allows for commercial 208V 3-phase installations adding
significantly to our potential customer base. A A History A We completed the initial design work and completed testing and certification of our first offering, the NeoVolta NV14, in August
2018. In September 2018, we completed our first production prototype. By March 2019, we completed all certifications and were granted approval by the California Energy Commission (CEC)
for off-grid and on-grid installation. Since our headquarters are located in San Diego County, a county with more than 160,000 solar customers, we chose San Diego for our initial rollout. In May
2019, the NV14 was approved throughout San Diego County and City areas by San Diego Gas & Electric (SDG&E) for connection to its grid system and customer installations began. In June
2019, we moved our contracted manufacturing to a facility in Poway, California. In June 2019, we began marketing to San Diego based solar installers. In early 2020, we expanded our certified
installer network to the greater Los Angeles, San Francisco, and Sacramento areas. At present, we have installs in the following 14 States and Territories: California, Nevada, Arizona, Utah,
Colorado, Wyoming, Texas, Oklahoma, Missouri, Tennessee, Alabama, Georgia, Florida, and Puerto Rico. In January 2021, we moved to a larger production facility in Poway, California to
facilitate growth. A A A2A A A Our Products - NeoVolta NV14, NV14-K, and NV24 A The NV14 is a complete ESS with 7,680-Watt 120V / 240V hybrid inverter (one of the largest in the
industry) which is also capable of 208V 3-phase commercial power with a 14.4 kWh lithium iron phosphate (LiFe (PO4)) battery system. The NV14-K is a variant of the NV14 built to EOS Linx
specifications. This is all incorporated in one National Electrical Manufacturer Association (NEMA) Type 3R rated indoor/outdoor cabinet system with all United Laboratories (UL) compliant
electrical certifications, and fire code requirements. The NV14 is capable of storing and using inverted (AC) photovoltaic, non-inverted (DC) photovoltaic, or both AC and DC photovoltaic solar
sources. It can also accept utility grid AC power as a charging source for the integrated 14.4 kWh battery system. The NV14 system will charge the batteries with excess solar photovoltaic (AC,
DC or both AC and DC) power during daylight conditions - a unique functionality in the ESS industry. The inverter will invert DC battery power into AC power during periods of darkness or
higher use periods. Once discharged, the batteries will be idle until excess solar photovoltaic is available and will subsequently begin to recharge. The NV14 is designed to primarily charge from
solar but can be programmed to charge from other sources of power (solar, wind turbine, generator, and grid). It can be easily programmed by our certified installers to customer-specific use



profiles, including for a€cerate arbitrage,a€ (graph below) which allows charging from the grid during the lowest rate periods if the utility company allows this activity. Once recharged, the
batteries will discharge once solar photovoltaic begins to wane or when the customer needs more power than available from solar photovoltaic. By doing this, customers will be consuming their
own solar photovoltaic production instead of sending excess photovoltaic power to the grid and then buying this power back later in the evening from the utility at an often significantly higher
retail rate, thereby potentially lowering their monthly electric bill depending on their local utilitya€™s rate plan. Our NV14 is also capable of multi-tasking by recharging via solar photovoltaic
power while also supplying power. A A We believe our NV14 is unique among its competitors in that the cabinet is rated for indoor/outdoor installation (NEMA Type 3R) allowing for more
installation configurations and the ability to fit more residential customer use cases. With measurements of 50.54€ H x 384€ W x 104€ D it can be installed either inside the garage or outside
(preferable near existing utility connections) of the residence or facility. A No solar system can provide power to a home without a system capable of 4€celslanding,a€ due to safety regulations
put in place for utility workers during outages. a€celslandinga€ is when a PV generator or other electrical source continues to power a location or residence even though electrical grid power is
no longer present. According to Bloomenergy.com, power outages are on the rise in California. There were 25,281 blackout events in 2019, a 23% increase from 20,598 in 2018. The number of
utility customers affected jumped to 28.4 million in 2019, up 50% from 19 million in 2018. Since then, the number of major power outages in California reached a peak in 2020 before declining
slightly thereafter. Our NV14 is capable of a&€celslandinga€ when used with AC or DC photovoltaic (PV) systems. As islanding can be dangerous to utility workers, who may not realize that a
circuit is still powered, an ESS capable of &€ceislandinga€ must be capable of physically disconnecting from the grid power when it senses that grid supply is not present, has an over current, or
an undercurrent condition. The NV14 includes a€ceislandinga€ relays that are approved to perform this function. Islanding also allows solar production to function and power the residence or
facility thereby decreasing the impact of a grid outage. A A A3A A A Our NV14 currently includes a commercially available encrypted WiFi logger and associated smart phone application
that allows customers to visualize the state of the system in 8-minute intervals (battery, home, grid, photovoltaic, and/or generator). Settings adjustments for how the system works can be made
remotely by the installer if/when utilities make changes to Time-of-Use billing rates/times. Our remote management system is included with the product and allows NeoVolta 24/7 system health
monitoring, malfunction diagnosis, and the ability to push firmware and software updates. This allows NeoVolta, installers, and their customers, insight into system health 24/7. Remote
monitoring and programming is accomplished using AWS Key Management encryption and cloud storage ensuring customer privacy and security. A Our NV24 has additional battery capability
that raises NV14 energy storage from 14.4 KW to 24.0 KW. As the NV24 has add-on battery capacity, additional inverters are not required. This enables customers to achieve a 67% increase in
storage for a fraction of the typical cost of adding more storage. Most competitive systems require an additional inverter for any additional storage. A A New ESS fire code regulations have
been significant and are ongoing, especially in California. ESSs can no longer be installed inside the living areas of a home. ESSs can be installed inside the garage but require smoke and heat
detectors and may also require bollards or caging to protect the ESS from being accidentally struck by a vehicle. This is a particularly detrimental code to ESS that cannot be installed outside.
Both requirements are directly related to fire risk from certain battery chemistries. Lithium Ion, a very popular chemistry in the ESS industry, has demonstrated fire and thermal runaway
characteristics in certain circumstances. Our batteries were UL 9540 certified at the cell and modular level in July 2021 certifying that they will not catch on fire and exhibit no thermal runaway
characteristics. A We expect such changes in regulatory code to be a routine requirement as ESS is a new field that warrants scrutiny and is a major focus of our management team. We also
see the complex regulatory environment as a significant barrier to new market entry. A Market Characteristics A Our market can be looked at two ways: the solar installer market and the ESS
market. A Solar Installer Market. The bulk of NeoVoltad€™s present revenue and recurring customer base is residential and commercial solar system installers. As of January 2024, IBIS World
estimates that there are approximately 11,100 solar panel installation companies operating in the US. With a secure supply chain backed by tax incentives, this number is expected to rise as
both the commercial and residential markets continue to grow. The impact of the Inflation Reduction Act (see, &€ceMarket Drivers 4€“ Regulationa€) on just residential solar panel installation is
expected to grow at a compound annual growth rate of 14.4% from 2024 to 2030. Most solar installers in the US are very small, independently owned operators and are generally not serviced
by the larger companies. These underserved installers have been NeoVoltad€™ s target market. Our average recurring installer customer purchases 1-2 systems a month. They generally sell
their systems and install and pay for them within the same month, and typically do not stock inventory, so we believe NeoVoltad€™s a€cejust in timea€ product availability makes us an ideal fit.
Once these customers become certified NeoVolta installers, they become recurring customers. We built our company based on servicing small installers and will continue to do so by focusing on
product availability, installer service, and, most importantly, the characteristics of our product while we capture market share. As we gain market acceptance, we expect larger installers to take
notice. This is especially true when considering repeated product availability challenges within the industry. A A A4A A A Installer storage installation activity has grown over time, with
approximately one-half of all active residential installers in recent years having completed at least one solar + storage system, according to Berkeley Labs. The rate of attachment, or number of
PV systems installed with storage, is growing considerably. According to Wood Mackenzie, by 2025, nearly 29% of all behind-the-meter solar systems will be paired with storage, compared to
under 11% in 2021. Most of the growth will be powered by the smaller installers, as larger installers have already incorporated storage into their standard new solar offerings. Although Tesla
and LG Chem have dominated the market in the past few years, new market entries continue to gain ground and new opportunities in the space continue to present themselves to those who can
adapt to fill the need. Additionally, our larger ESS competitors focus on energy storage as a component of their new solar installation, whereas NeoVolta focuses entirely on ESSs, revealing
what we believe to be a compelling market in existing solar system retrofits. According to a December 2023 report from Berkeley Lab, there are over 3.4 million solar systems installed in the US
with only a relatively small percentage of those having energy storage installed. This marketplace scenario presents small installer customers almost 3 million households to revisit for a storage
retrofit especially when their 10-15 year old inverter experiences end of life. A We believe that our 100% commitment to ESS and our relatively small size allow us to navigate this nascent
industry more nimbly, and we have been able to develop distinct competitive advantages despite our relative resources. A ESS Market. This is a relatively new market as solar attached storage
systems have only become viable in the last decade. It is a subset of what the Solar Energy Industries Association (SEIA) refers to as the $17 billion U.S. residential solar PV market. According
to Mordor Intelligence, the global residential energy storage systems market is expected to register a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of more than 19% during the forecast period of
2021 - 2026, reaching a market value of more than $8.5 billion by 2026 from $2.2 billion in 2019. The growth of the ESS market comes from a combination of retrofits to existing solar
installations and more widespread adoption of storage as part of new solar installations. A According to Wood Mackenziead€™s U.S. Energy Storage Monitor, released in December 2020, the
residential storage segment posted its best quarter ever in the third quarter of 2020, during the height of the coronavirus pandemic with 52 megawatts and 119 megawatt-hours of new storage
installed. The U.S. market is expected to reach 7.5 gigawatts in 2025, which amounts to sixfold growth from 2020. A Market Drivers A Regulatory. At the federal level, the most significant
recent regulatory development regarding ESS has been, by far, the passage of the Inflation Reduction Act (4€0eIRA&€) in August 2022. Due to its extensive investment-related incentives, the
IRA is expected to have a wide-ranging impact on both public and private investment in the clean energy space in the US, on a long-term basis. Additionally, there have been a rapidly expanding
number of mandates at the state and local level that have also been directed toward the solar industry in recent years. A On the incentive side, the IRA has increased the federal Investment Tax
Credit, or ITC, from 26% to 30% for qualifying investments, including energy storage. For a typical ESS, the ITC can reduce the cost of the system by $4,500 to $6,000. In certain instances, the
incentives of the ITC can be potentially increased up to as much as 60% of the qualifying project cost. Finally, the IRA also expands the federal Production Tax Credit, which was first enacted in
2007, primarily for the benefit of the wind industry, to the solar power industry. A On the mandate side, California became the first state in the country to require builders to install solar and
battery storage on new commercial buildings and high-rise multifamily buildings in August of 2021. This state approved Energy Code also includes requirements for builders to design single-
family homes so battery storage can be easily added to the already existing solar system in the future as well as related incentives to eliminate natural gas from new buildings. Many other states
are also implementing various measures in order to encourage greater adoption of energy storage technologies. For example, some utilities are now also offering incentives to home and
business owners who install storage. To date, most of these utility-specific storage incentives are in the Northeast. We anticipate more of these programs being put in place in the future. A A
A5A A A Of further note on the state regulatory level, California implemented Net Energy Metering 3 (NEM3) for subsequent new solar installations on April 14, 2023. NEM3 reduces the
amount of NEM credit for each kilowatt (KW) of solar power sent to the utility from a rate of approximately $0.20 per KW to $0.09 per KW (each Utility varies). NEM3 effectively increases the
average solar Return of Investment (ROI) from 5-6 years to 10-12 years (each Utility varies). Effectively, the Company believes that solar installation in California currently makes little financial
sense without also including a battery system. Installing NeoVolta nets a ROI of 4-6 years. We estimate that NEM3 reduced our sales from the enactment date in December 2022 continuing
through our last fiscal quarter, as solar installers worked off their permitted NEM2 installs. We expect our sales to gradually increase going forward. A Utilities can also impact battery storage
adoption on the cost side of the equation. In certain circumstances, when state utilities change their billing profiles, the market for ESS becomes more (or less) attractive. For example,
Hawaiid€™s attachment rate rose to 80% after the state began transitioning away from net energy metering (NEM) and reduced compensation for grid exports. A Resiliency. Energy
dependence has been a growing concern in the last few years as weather patterns have become more erratic. New findings from the U.S. Department of Energya€™s National Renewable
Energy Laboratory (NREL) and Clean Energy Group (CEG) found that when the value of resilience is considered - preventing power outages - several more integrated solar-plus-storage projects
are economically viable. A Utilities are addressing this matter in some cases through Public Safety Power Shut Off (PSPS) events (when power is purposefully turned off in the case of high
winds with very dry vegetation conditions that increase wildfire risks). The direct result of this was seen in California after the PSPS events of late 2019. A Consumer Perception. Although both
economics and resiliency have been impactful on ESS demand, researchers at Berkeley Labs concluded that a third category of consumer perception may be adding to the trend. The feedback
they received included the concept that consumers saw ESS as a &€cegreena€ investment and felt like it was a way to a€cestick it to the utilitiesa€. These factors are obviously less measurable
than the more objective drivers above but are an additive factor in the market. A Growth Strategy A With the addition of Ardes Johnson to NeoVoltad€™s management team as our CEO in April
2024, we have implemented an entirely new growth strategy that is designed to greatly expand our market penetration and product sales. Mr. Johnson is a seasoned industry executive who
most recently, served as the President of the U.S. subsidiary of Meyer Burger, a major manufacturer of solar cells and solar modules based in Switzerland, for three years. His previous
experience includes high level sales positions with both Tesla and General Electric. A Under Mr. Johnson&€™s direction and leadership, we intend to vigorously pursue three major growth
objectives as follows (i) Expanding revenue through strategic sales channel development, (ii) Broadening financing options through partnerships with major industry players, and (iii) Initiating
development of the next generation of batteries. In furtherance of these key growth objectives, Mr. Johnson has recently undertaken the following significant tactical initiatives: A A-National
Sales Team Formation:A NeoVolta has successfully assembled a national sales team targeting key renewable energy distribution centers, ensuring a robust presence across the U.S. A-Strategic
Collaborations Initiated:A We have begun collaborations with leading solar installers in California, Nevada, and Florida, positioning ourselves to attempt to capture a larger market share.
A-Advanced Conversations for Next-Gen Systems:A We have initiated discussions with entities to develop the next generation of NeoVoltad€™ s energy storage systems, setting the stage for
future innovation. A Additionally, we are planning to adopt a number of other near-term strategic moves that are designed to rapidly increase the growth of our product sales. For example,
NeoVolta is actively expanding into high-potential regions such as Hawaii, Texas, Florida, and Puerto Rico, with regionally based sales teams to maximize reach and service. Also, another of our
key initiatives is to make NeoVolta&d€™s products more accessible and affordable, driving increased adoption and sales in the residential energy storage market. A A A 6A A A With regard to
the expanding commercial market for our products, we are planning to enhance our existing R&D technology to create complementary solutions tailored for the commercial sector, expanding
NeoVoltad€™ s market footprint, beginning in 2025. Further, we will be launching our Virtual Peaker Solution in order to address the growing demand for storage-only solutions from utilities
and aggregators, seeking to position NeoVolta at the forefront of energy storage innovation. A Competition A We compete with several large competitors already successfully selling in the ESS
space. Notable competitors include Tesla, LG Chem, Sonnen, Enphase, SunPower, and SMA America, among others. Some of our competitors have significantly greater financial, product
development, manufacturing, marketing resources, and name recognition. In addition to competitors in the ESS space, we compete with companies in power generation equipment and other
engine powered products industries. We face competition from a variety of large diversified industrial companies as well as smaller generator manufacturers, along with mobile equipment,
engine powered tools, solar inverter, battery storage and grid services providers, both domestic and internationally. In addition, as energy storage becomes a necessary component for
residential customers to realize better value/savings from their solar PV installation, we believe new competitors will emerge in this field. There is no assurance that we will be able to
successfully compete in this market. A NeoVolta Competitive Advantages: A Availability. We believe recent back-order times for competitive products have been as long as 9-months in recent
years. Smaller installers rely on quick sales to install to payment to keep their business going, and the lack of availability of competitive products is often the reason they are introduced to
NeoVolta. Since December 2021, NeoVolta has been delivering on orders in usually less than two weeks, very often the same day. We achieve this by maintaining a high level of parts inventory
relative to projected sales, component consolidation prior to shipment, and a small lot, recurring freight strategy, which we believe allows for more flexibility in getting through the supply
chain. Our strategy of maintaining higher levels of inventory based on projected sales means that to the extent our sales expectations in any periods are incorrect we may suffer cash flow
constraints for such periods. Inability to secure reliable product delivery, fire risk, and recalls have harmed reputations of our competitors. A Installer Service. NeoVolta considers its installer
relationships to be the key to our growth. The relative newness of the industry requires a great deal of education and support to ensure quality and efficient installations. With all energy
storage, there is significant necessary electrical work, which may be new to smaller solar installers. NeoVolta requires that every installer go through our Certified Installer Program and we
often walk them through early installations one-on-one to get them comfortable with the product either in-person or via smart phone video. NeoVoltad€™s San Diego-based direct customer
support is available throughout the install and for any ongoing service, as well as through our remote system monitoring. This one-on-one philosophy has generated great customer loyalty and
install success and we intend to invest the resources necessary to keep this partnership culture a priority. A Superior Product. Some of our competitors have significantly greater financial,
product development, manufacturing, marketing resources, and name recognition than we have. However, with the industrya€™s growth will come frequent and dramatic change. We believe
that our 100% commitment to ESS and our size allow us to navigate this nascent industry more nimbly, and we have been able to develop distinct competitive advantages to appeal to smaller
and regional independent installers. We designed the NeoVolta NV14 to be cost effective, easy to install and service, and adaptable to customer needs. We are one of very few in the ESS
industry to focus virtually all our resources on energy storage systems. A Key Product Advantages: A A-Residential / Commercial: System adapts to either application without the need for any
additional equipment (transformers) A-Outdoor or Indoor installations: NEMA 3R rated A- Higher power than most competitive options (7,680 W inverter) A-Compatible with AC, DC or both AC
and DC power A-UL certified to have no thermal runaway and no thermal risk (UL 9540A) A- -Higher 6,000 cycle batteries A-Compatible with generators A-Can support off grid A-Capable of
adding additional battery storage capacity without need for additional inverter A A A 7A A A Our NV14 inverter can also accept 208 Volt 3-phase commercial power by simply making a
settings change. This feature allows small businesses to back up vital systems such as refrigeration, servers, alarm systems, entry and exit security features, vaults, emergency lighting, etc.
Some States are beginning to require these capabilities as an emergency capability due to frequent grid outages. A IP & Product Development A We currently have three issued US utility
patents. US Patent No. 10,998,730 B1 is directed to NeoVoltad€™s solar power inverter system. US Patent No. 11,502,618 B2 relates to NeoVoltad€™s generators. US Patent No. 11,605,952
B1. which is an expansion of our first Patent, relates to NeoVoltad€™s solar power inverter system. We will continue to expand our Patent portfolio when appropriate. A We rely on a
combination of patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret, including federal, state and common law rights in the United States and other countries, nondisclosure agreements, and other
measures to protect our intellectual property. We require our employees, consultants, and advisors to execute confidentiality agreements and to agree to disclose and assign to us all inventions
conceived under their respective employment, consultant, or advisor agreement, using our property, or which relate to our business. Despite any measures taken to protect our intellectual
property, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of our products or to obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary. Our business is affected by our ability to protect
against misappropriation and infringement of our intellectual property, including our trademarks, service marks, patents, domain names, copyrights and other proprietary rights. A Regulatory



Environment A Regulators are quickly getting involved in the ESS space. In the past three years, California regulators have implemented major requirements, including CSIP and CPUC
4€cerapid shutdown,a€ garage safety, non-ferrous cabinet, and more are being planned. We have a track record of understanding, adapting, and deploying our products in this ever-changing
world. A California, via the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), and Hawaii appear to be leading the United States when it comes to new ESS regulations. In the past 36-months,
CPUC adopted Common Smart Inverter Profile (CSIP), solar rapid shutdown, and several fire standards both inside garages and outside on residential dwellings. On June 22, 2020, with
significant technical development and relationship building, NeoVolta received all certifications necessary for California CSIP compliance. On August 5, 2020, the California Energy Commission
(CEC) approved NeoVolta&d€™s CSIP application. CEC facilitates regulatory approvals for the CPUC. A In January 2021, CPUC adopted solar &€cerapid shutdown&a€ requirements, which means
emergency responders needed to be able to quickly terminate all with a switch or lever within a few feet of the Main Service Panel (MSP). NeoVolta already met this challenge with outside AC
solar installations, and quickly met the requirements for indoor installations and DC solar. A In June 2022, California adopted several requirements for inside garage installations and
disallowed any installs inside residential living spaces to include most basements. These changes affect where a system can be installed and may prevent installation in colder climates. A
NeoVoltad€™ s other certifications include: A A-Underwriters Laboratories (UL) 9540, 95404, 1973, 1741SA, 1642, and 1699B Arc Fault Circuit Protection Type A A-UL 1741 third edition
(including UL 1741 Supplemental SB) A-UL 9540A Battery Energy Storage System (ANSI/CAN/UL 9540:2020) A-Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE) 1547 (2018 standard)
A-International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) 62897 A-Electrical Codes: National Fire Protection Associationd€™s NFPA 70 National Fire Codes (NEC) 2023 A-California Public Utilities
Commission (CPUC) Rule 21 Interconnection A-Hawaii Electric Companies Source Requirement Document Version 1.1 (SRD-UL-1741-SA-V1.1) A-CSA Group C22.2 No. 107.1:2001 Ed. 3
A-Federal Communications Commission (FCC) 15 Class B A-National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA) Type 3R A-California Energy Commission (CEC): Grid Support Utility, Utility
Interactive, Energy Storage System NV14 and NV24 A A A8A A A NeoVolta has established a track record for quickly understanding and meeting regulatory hurdles. Although regulatory
changes will cause an enduring need for increases in Research and Development (R&D) and product constraints, we believe this will also raise the barrier of entry to new market entrants. We
believe NeoVolta is well positioned to face new regulatory requirements due to our battery chemistry and our product being developed in California - where regulatory standards in energy are
generally set. A On April 14, 2023, California implemented Net Energy Metering 3 (NEM3) for subsequent new solar installations. NEM3 reduces the amount of NEM credit for each kilowatt
(KW) of solar power sent to the utility from a rate of approximately $0.20 per KW to $0.09 per KW (each Utility varies). NEM3 effectively increases the average solar Return of Investment (ROI)
from 5-6 years to 10-12 years (each Utility varies). Effectively, the Company believes that solar installation in California currently makes little financial sense without also including a battery
system. Installing NeoVolta nets a ROI of 4-6 years. We estimate that NEM3 reduced our sales from the enactment date in December 2022 continuing through our last fiscal quarter, as solar
installers worked off their permitted NEM2 installs. We expect our sales to gradually increase going forward. A Manufacturing A All of NeoVoltad€™ s products are manufactured in-house at
our Poway, CA facility. We manufacture our products in an efficient build-to-order model, keeping very little finished-goods inventory. We sublease and share our facility with our former
contract manufacturer under a physical arrangement. A Pursuant to an amendment to our supply agreement with our former contract manufacturer in April 2023, we took over direct
responsibility for the manufacturing process surrounding our ESS units from our contract manufacturer on June 1, 2023. Accordingly, we now issue customer build orders to our two new
employees that we hired from our former contract manufacturer, they pull the raw materials from the warehouse, assemble the final units and prepare them for shipment or pick-up. Our
timeline from order to delivery is usually less than two weeks. A The end-product is then picked up or shipped from our docks, signed off by our installer and logged into our system when
installed for system monitoring. A We run multiple quality checks throughout the process and have systems to track components and end-units from Asia to San Diego to the end-usera€™s
location. We record all component serial numbers, all torque settings, and annotate all required item numbers and functionality prior to packaging. A Assembly Inventory Purchase A In April
2023, we closed the bulk purchase of raw materials inventory from our contract manufacturer by making a cash payment to that company in the net amount of $1.3 million, after considering
credits for prepayments and other items of approximately $0.1 million. This transaction was completed pursuant to an amendment of our Master Supply Agreement with our contract
manufacturer. In addition to the purchase of the raw materials inventory from our contract manufacturer, this amendment provided for the eventual assumption by us of full responsibility from
our contract manufacturer for the manufacturing of our proprietary Energy Storage Systems (4€eESSA&€) units. Pursuant to the amendment, we assumed such responsibility for the
manufacturing process surrounding our ESS units from our contract manufacturer on June 1, 2023. In conjunction with assuming this responsibility, we hired the employees of our contract
manufacturer who previously performed contract manufacturing services for us. We plan to hire up to three additional 4€ceassemblersa€ in the future. All of our manufacturing certifications are
listed under NeoVolta. This amended agreement had no effect on our present Sublease Agreement with our contract manufacturer, pertaining to our existing manufacturing location in Poway,
CA (see a€celtem 2 a€“ Propertiesa€). A Employees A As of June 30, 2024, we have 10 full-time employees. Our CEO, who joined the Company in April 2024, manages all Company strategy,
sales and R&D, our CFO manages all finance and administration. Our manufacturing operations are performed by the new employees that we have hired from our former contract operator, as
noted above. The balance of the staff manages supply chain, technical support and marketing/sales support. We also contract for hire with four outside consultants and contractors on an
ongoing basis. Also, we enter into specific contracts for non-recurring R&D projects, as needed. A A A 9A A A Access to Information A Our website is at www.neovolta.com. We make
available, free of charge, on our corporate website, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the &€ceExchange Acta€), as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The SEC maintains an internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that
file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov. Information contained on our website does not, and shall not be deemed to, constitute part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our reference to
the URL for our website is intended to be an inactive textual reference only.A A ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS A The following risks and uncertainties should be carefully considered in addition to
the other information included in this Report. If any of the following conditions or other unknown conditions should occur, our business, financial condition or operating results could be
materially harmed. An investment in our securities is speculative in nature, involves a high degree of risk and should not be made by an investor who cannot bear the economic risk of its
investment for an indefinite period of time and who cannot afford the loss of its entire investment. A Risks Related to our Business and Industry A We are a relatively new company, with our
sales having only commenced in July 2019, and we continue to have some of the risks associated with start-up ventures. A We formed our corporation in 2018. Since formation, we have focused
on research, development and certification of our first energy storage system. We began marketing, sales, and installations via our certified installers in May 2019 (although no sales were
completed in the year ended June 30, 2019). We may never achieve commercial success with our energy storage systems. We have limited historical financial data upon which we may base our
projected revenue and operating expenses. Our relatively short operating history makes it difficult for potential investors to evaluate our technology or prospective operations and business
prospects. Accordingly, we continue to be subject to many of the risks inherent in business development, financing, unexpected expenditures, and complications and delays that often occur in a
new business. Investors should evaluate an investment in us in light of the uncertainties encountered by developing companies in a competitive environment. There can be no assurance that our
efforts will be successful or that we will ultimately be able to attain profitability. A We have a history of net losses and we are uncertain about our future profitability. A We have incurred
significant net losses since our inception. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, we have incurred net losses of $2.3 million and $2.6 million, respectively. As of June 30, 2024, we had an
accumulated deficit of $20.7 million. If our revenue grows more slowly than currently anticipated, or if operating expenses are higher than expected, we may be unable to consistently achieve
profitability, our financial condition will suffer, and the value of our common stock could decline. Even if we are successful increasing our sales, we may incur losses in the foreseeable future as
we continue to develop and market our products. If sales revenue from any of our current products or any additional products that we develop in the future is insufficient, or if our product
development is delayed, we may be unable to achieve profitability and, in the event we are unable to secure financing for prolonged periods of time, we may need to temporarily cease
operations and, possibly, shut them down altogether. Furthermore, even if we are able to achieve profitability, we may be unable to sustain or increase such profitability on a quarterly or annual
basis, which would adversely impact our financial condition and significantly reduce the value of our common stock. A We may experience in the future, delays or other complications in the
design, manufacture, launch and production ramp of our energy storage products which could harm our brand, business, prospects, financial condition and operating results. A We may
encounter unanticipated challenges, such as supply chain or logistics constraints, that lead to delays in producing and ramping our energy storage products. Any significant delay or other
complication in the production of our products or the development, manufacture, and production ramp of our future products, including complications associated with expanding our production
capacity and supply chain or obtaining or maintaining regulatory approvals, and/or coronavirus impacts, could materially damage our brand, business, prospects, financial condition and
operating results. A A A 10A A A We may be unable to meet our growing energy storage production plans and delivery plans, any of which could harm our business and prospects. A Our
plans call for achieving and sustaining significant increases in energy storage systems production and deliveries. Our ability to achieve these plans will depend upon a number of factors,
including our ability to utilize installed manufacturing capacity, achieve the planned production yield and further increase capacity as planned while maintaining our desired quality levels and
optimize design and production changes, and our suppliersa€™ ability to support our needs. If we are unable to realize our plans, our brand, business, prospects, financial condition and
operating results could be materially damaged. A We are dependent on our two main component vendors for our suppliers of batteries, inverters and other raw materials and the inability of
these single-source suppliers to deliver necessary components of our products according to our schedule and at prices, quality levels and volumes acceptable to us, or our inability to efficiently
manage these components, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results. A Our products contain numerous purchased parts which we source globally
from direct suppliers, the majority of whom are currently single-source suppliers. Any significant unanticipated demand would require us to procure additional components in a short amount of
time. While we believe that we will be able to secure additional or alternate sources of supply for most of our components in a relatively short time frame, there is no assurance that we will be
able to do so or develop our own replacements for certain highly customized components of our products. In addition, if we are required to use alternative suppliers for certain critical
components, we may need to have our products go through a re-certification process with various regulatory bodies, which process may be lengthy. In such event, we would not be able to sell
our products using these new components until we received all required certifications. A If we encounter unexpected difficulties with key suppliers such as our inverter or lithium-iron
phosphate cell supplier, and if we are unable to fill these needs from other suppliers, we could experience production delays and potential loss of access to important technology and parts for
producing, servicing and supporting our products. This limited, and in many cases single source, supply chain exposes us to multiple potential sources of delivery failure or component shortages
for the production of our products. The loss of any single or limited source supplier or the disruption in the supply of components from these suppliers could lead to significant product design
changes and delays in product deliveries to our customers, which could hurt our relationships with our customers and result in negative publicity, damage to our brand and a material and
adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results. A Changes in our supply chain may result in increased cost. If we are unsuccessful in our efforts to control
and reduce supplier costs, our operating results will suffer. A There is no assurance that our suppliers will ultimately be able to meet our cost, quality and volume needs, or do so at the times
needed. Furthermore, as the scale of our energy storage systems increase, we will need to accurately forecast, purchase, warehouse and transport to our manufacturing facilities components at
much higher volumes than we have experience with. If we are unable to accurately match the timing and quantities of component purchases to our actual needs, or successfully implement
automation, inventory management and other systems to accommodate the increased complexity in our supply chain, we may incur unexpected production disruption, storage, transportation
and write-off costs, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results. A We are currently selling two primary products and if these products that we
sell or install fail to perform as expected, our reputation could be harmed and our ability to develop, market and sell our products and services could be harmed. A If our energy products were
to contain defects in design and manufacture that cause them not to perform as expected or that require repair or take longer than expected to become enabled or are legally restricted, our
ability to develop, market and sell our products and services could be harmed. While we intend to perform internal testing on the products we manufacture, as a start-up company we currently
have no frame of reference by which to evaluate detailed long-term quality, reliability, durability and performance characteristics of our battery packs, inverters, and energy storage products.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect and fix any defects in our products prior to their sale to or installation for consumers. Any product defects, delays or legal restrictions
on product features, or other failure of our products to perform as expected could harm our reputation and result in delivery delays, product recalls, product liability claims, significant warranty
and other expenses, and could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, operating results and prospects. A A A 11A A A We depend on a small number of wholesale
dealers for a significant portion of our revenues to date. A Due to our limited operating history, we depend on a relatively small number of wholesale dealers and installers, primarily in
California, for our revenue. In the year ended June 30, 2024, two such dealers represented approximately 20% and 14% of the Companya€™ s revenues whereas in the year ended June 30, 2023,
three such dealers represented approximately 25%, 15% and 13% of the Companya€™s revenues. As of June 30, 2024, three such dealers represented approximately 22%, 18% and 14% of the
Companya€™s accounts receivable. Our limited customer base and concentration could expose us to the risk of substantial losses if a single dominant customer stops purchasing, or significantly
reduces orders for, our products. Our ability to maintain close relationships with these top customers is essential to the growth and profitability of our business. If we fail to sell our products to
one or more of these top customers in any particular period, or if a large customer purchases fewer of our products, defers orders or fails to place additional orders with us, or if we fail to
develop additional major customers, our revenue could decline, and our results of operations could be adversely affected. A If we fail to scale our business operations and otherwise manage
future growth and adapt to new conditions effectively as we grow our company, we may not be able to produce, market, sell and service our products successfully. A Any failure to manage our
growth effectively could materially and adversely affect our business, prospects, operating results and financial condition. Our future operating results depend to a large extent on our ability to
manage our expansion and growth successfully. We may not be successful in undertaking this expansion if we are unable to control expenses and avoid cost overruns and other unexpected
operating costs; adapt our products and conduct our operations to meet local requirements; implement the required infrastructure, systems and processes; and find and hire the right skills to
make our growth successful. A If we are unable to achieve our targeted manufacturing costs for our energy storage products our financial condition and operating results will suffer. A As a
relatively new company, we have limited historical data that ensures our targeted manufacturing costs will be achievable. While we expect in the future to better understand and control our
manufacturing costs, there is no guarantee we will be able to achieve sufficient cost savings to reach our gross margin and profitability goals. We may also incur substantial costs or cost
overruns in utilizing and increasing the production capability of our energy storage system facilities. A If we are unable to achieve production cost targets on our products pursuant to our
plans, we may not be able to meet our gross margin and other financial targets. Many of the factors that impact our manufacturing costs are beyond our control, such as potential increases in
the costs of our materials and components, such as lithium iron phosphate, nickel and other components of our battery cells. If we are unable to continue to control and reduce our
manufacturing costs, our operating results, business and prospects will be harmed. A Increases in costs, disruption of supply or shortage of materials, in particular for inverters and lithium iron
phosphate cells, could harm our business. A We may experience increases in the cost or a sustained interruption in the supply or shortage of materials. Any such increase, supply interruption
or shortage could materially and negatively impact our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results. We use various materials in our business, including inverters and lithium
iron phosphate cells, from suppliers. A The prices for these materials fluctuate, and their available supply may be unstable, depending on market conditions and global demand for these
materials, including as a result of increased production of energy storage products by our competitors, and could adversely affect our business and operating results. For instance, we are
exposed to multiple risks relating to inverters and lithium iron phosphate cells. A A A12A A A These risks include: A A-an increase in the cost, or decrease in the available supply, of
materials used; A-disruption in the supply of cells due to quality issues or recalls by manufacturers; A-tariffs on the materials we source in China, which make up a significant amount of the
materials we require; A-fluctuations in the value of the Chinese Renminbi against the U.S. dollar as our purchases for energy storage products are denominated in Chinese Renminbi.; and



A-potential increases in global shipping costs. A Our business is dependent on the continued supply of inverters and battery cells for the battery packs used in our energy storage products. Any
disruption in the supply of inverters or battery cells could disrupt production of our battery packs we require for our energy storage product. Substantial increases in the prices for our materials
or prices charged to us would increase our operating costs, and could reduce our margins if we cannot recoup the increased costs through increased prices. Any attempts to increase prices in
response to increased material costs could result in cancellations of energy storage orders and therefore materially and adversely affect our brand, image, business, prospects and operating
results. A Recent increases in mortgage interest rates may result in a decrease in demand by homeowners for our residential energy storage systems. A Sales volume in our homeowner
channel is partially dependent on the construction of new homes and the sale of existing homes in our residential markets. Many customers of our installation partners rely on mortgage loans
from banks and other lenders in order to finance a substantial portion of the purchase price for their home, including any related improvements. Increased mortgage interest rates may lead to
lower demand for new homes and a reduced number of homes available for solar origination through our homeowner channel. Additionally, increased interest rates may result in fewer
secondary home sales, a reduction in the number of customers refinancing their mortgages and uncertainty about the economy. A We are currently operating in a period of economic
uncertainty and capital markets disruption, which has been significantly impacted by geopolitical instability due to the ongoing military conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and between Gaza
and Israel. Our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected by any negative impact on the global economy and capital markets resulting from
these conflicts or any other geopolitical tensions. A U.S. and global markets are experiencing volatility and disruption following the escalation of geopolitical tensions and the start of the
military conflicts between Russia and Ukraine, beginning in in February 2022, and between Gaza and Israel, beginning in in October 2023. Although the length and impact of these ongoing
military conflicts are highly unpredictable, they could lead to further market disruptions, including significant volatility in commodity prices, credit and capital markets, as well as supply chain
interruptions. We are continuing to monitor the situations in both of these areas and globally and assessing any potential impacts on our business. A Any of the above mentioned factors could
affect our business, prospects, financial condition, and operating results. The extent and duration of the military actions, sanctions and resulting market disruptions are impossible to predict,
but could be substantial. Any such disruptions may also magnify the impact of other risks described in this report. A We may become subject to product liability claims, which could harm our
financial condition and liquidity if we are not able to successfully defend or insure against such claims. A Although we believe we have designed our products for safety, product liability claims,
even those without merit, could harm our business, prospects, operating results and financial condition. Our risks in this area are particularly pronounced given that we have only recently
begun to deliver energy storage products. Moreover, a product liability claim could generate substantial negative publicity about our products and business and could have material adverse
effect on our brand, business, prospects and operating results. A A A 13A A A The markets in which we operate are in their infancy and highly competitive, and we may not be successful in
competing in these industries as the industry further develops. We currently face competition from new and established domestic and international competitors and expect to face competition
from others in the future, including competition from companies with new technology. A The worldwide energy storage market is in its infancy, and we expect it will become more competitive
in the future. We also expect more regulatory burden as customers adopt this new technology. There is no assurance that our energy storage systems will be successful in the respective
markets in which they compete. A significant and growing number of established and new companies, as well as other companies, have entered or are reported to have plans to enter the energy
storage market. Most of our current and potential competitors have significantly greater financial, technical, manufacturing, marketing, sales networks and other resources than we do and may
be able to devote greater resources to the design, development, manufacturing, distribution, promotion, sale and support of their products. Increased competition could result in lower unit
sales, price reductions, revenue shortfalls, loss of customers and loss of market share, which could harm our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results. The energy storage
industry is highly competitive. A We face competition from other manufacturers, developers and installers of energy storage systems, as well as from large utilities. Decreases in the retail
prices of electricity from utilities or other renewable energy sources could make our products less attractive to customers. Reduction in various federal and state rebate and incentive programs
could also adversely affect product adoption. A Our products and services are subject to substantial regulations, which are evolving, and unfavorable changes or failure by us to comply with
these regulations could substantially harm our business and operating results. A As a manufacturer of energy storage systems, we are impacted by federal, state and local regulations and
policies concerning electricity pricing, the interconnection of electricity generation and storage equipment with the electric grid, and the sale of electricity generated by third-party owned
systems. For example, existing or proposed regulations and policies would permit utilities to limit the amount of electricity generated by our customers with their solar energy systems, adjust
electricity rate designs such that the price of our products may not be competitive with that of electricity from the grid, restrict us and our customers qualifying for government incentives and
benefits that apply to renewable energy, and limit or eliminate net energy metering. If such regulations and policies remain in effect or are adopted in other jurisdictions, or if other regulations
and policies that adversely impact the interconnection or use of our energy storage systems are introduced, they could deter potential customers from purchasing our energy storage products,
which could harm our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. A On April 14, 2023, California implemented Net Energy Metering 3 (NEM3) for subsequent new solar
installations. NEM3 reduces the amount of NEM credit for each kilowatt (KW) of solar power sent to the utility from a rate of approximately $0.20 per KW to $0.09 per KW (each Utility varies).
NEMS effectively increases the average solar Return of Investment (ROI) from 5-6 years to 10-12 years (each Utility varies). Effectively, the Company believes that solar installation in California
currently makes little financial sense without also including a battery system. Typically, installing NeoVolta nets a ROI of 4-6 years. We estimate that NEM3 reduced our sales from the
enactment date in December 2022 continuing through our last fiscal quarter, as solar installers worked off their permitted NEM2 installs. We expect our sales to gradually increase going
forward. A Our business and operations would suffer in the event of third-party computer system failures, cyber-attacks on third-party systems or deficiency in our cyber security. A We rely on
information technology (&€0eITa€) systems, including third-party d€cecloud baseda€ service providers, to keep financial records, maintain product support data, and corporate records, to
communicate with staff and external parties and to operate other critical functions. This includes critical systems such as email, other communication tools, electronic document repositories and
archives. If any of these third-party information technology providers are compromised due to computer viruses, unauthorized access, malware, natural disasters, fire, terrorism, war and
telecommunication failures, electrical failures, cyber-attacks or cyber-intrusions over the internet, then sensitive emails or documents could be exposed or deleted. Similarly, we could incur
business disruption if our access to the internet is compromised, and we are unable to connect with third-party IT providers. The risk of a security breach or disruption, particularly through
cyber-attacks or cyber intrusion, including by computer hackers, foreign governments and cyber terrorists, has generally increased as the number, intensity and sophistication of attempted
attacks and intrusions from around the world have increased. To the extent that any disruption or security breach results in a loss of or damage to our data or applications, or inappropriate
disclosure of confidential or proprietary information, we could incur liability and delay of our product development and support efforts. A A A 14A A A We may need to assert intellectual
property-related claims or defend ourselves against intellectual property infringement claims, which may be time-consuming and could cause us to incur substantial costs. A Others, including
our competitors, may hold or obtain patents, copyrights, trademarks or other proprietary rights that could prevent, limit or interfere with our ability to make, use, develop, sell or market our
products and services, which could make it more difficult for us to operate our business. From time to time, the holders of such intellectual property rights may assert their rights and urge us to
take licenses, and/or may bring suits alleging infringement or misappropriation of such rights. We may consider the entering into licensing agreements with respect to such rights, although no
assurance can be given that such licenses can be obtained on acceptable terms or that litigation will not occur, and such licenses could significantly increase our operating expenses. In addition,
if we are determined to have infringed upon a third partya€™s intellectual property rights, we may be required to cease making, selling or incorporating certain components or intellectual
property into the goods and services we offer, to pay substantial damages and/or license royalties, to redesign our products and services, and/or to establish and maintain alternative branding
for our products and services. In the event that we were required to take one or more such actions, our business, prospects, operating results and financial condition could be materially
adversely affected. In addition, any litigation or claims, whether or not valid, could result in substantial costs, negative publicity and diversion of resources and management attention. A In
August 2021, we entered into an exclusive long term supply agreement with our Asian supplier pertaining to our inverter component. This agreement contains provisions that address the
ownership and use of intellectual property rights. While we are unaware of any present dispute concerning this agreement or our other agreements that concern ownership of or use of
intellectual property rights, future disputes may arise concerning this or other agreements we have entered into that concern ownership of or use of intellectual property rights. A Our business
could be negatively impacted if we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property rights. A We consider our intellectual property rights to be important assets, and seek to protect them
through a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws, as well as licensing and confidentiality agreements. These protections may not be adequate to prevent third parties
from using our intellectual property without our authorization, breaching any confidentiality agreements with us, copying or reverse engineering our products, or developing and marketing
products that are substantially equivalent to or superior to our own. The unauthorized use of our intellectual property by others could reduce our competitive advantage and harm our business.
Not only are intellectual property-related proceedings burdensome and costly, but they could span years to resolve and we might not ultimately prevail. We cannot guarantee that any patents,
issued or pending, will provide us with any competitive advantage or will not be challenged by third parties. Moreover, the expiration of our patents may lead to increased competition with
respect to certain products. A Potential tariffs or a global trade war have increased our costs and could further increase the cost of our products, which could adversely impact the
competitiveness of our products and our financial results. A In 2019, the Trump Administration announced tariffs on goods imported from China in connection with Chinad€™s intellectual
property practices. Our products depend on materials from China, namely inverters and batteries, which are the main components of our products. Traditionally, the tariff rate for our imports
has been 3.4%. Presently, our tariff rate is 10.9% on these imports. To date, the Biden Administration has made no significant changes to these Chinese tariffs. A We cannot predict what
actions may ultimately be taken with respect to tariffs or trade relations between the United States and China, what products may be subject to such actions, or what actions may be taken by
the China in retaliation. The tariffs described above, the adoption and expansion of trade restrictions, the occurrence of a trade war, or other governmental action related to tariffs, trade
agreements or related policies have the potential to adversely impact our supply chain and access to equipment, our costs and our product margins. Any such cost increases or decreases in
availability could slow our growth and cause our financial results and operational metrics to suffer. A A A 15A A A Our industry is subject to technological change, and our failure to continue
developing new and improved products and to bring these products rapidly to market could have an adverse impact on our business. A New products, or refinements and improvements to our
existing products, may have technical failures, delayed introductions, higher than expected production costs or may not be well accepted by our customers. If we are not able to anticipate,
identify, develop and market high quality products in line with technological advancements that respond to changes in customer preferences, demand for our products could decline and our
operating results could be adversely affected. A Public company compliance may make it more difficult to attract and retain officers and directors. A The Sarbanes-Oxley Act and rules
subsequently implemented by the SEC have required changes in corporate governance practices of public companies. As a recent Nasdaq listed public company, we expect these rules and
regulations to increase our compliance costs and to make certain activities more time consuming and costly. As a public company, we also expect that these rules and regulations may make it
more difficult and expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance in the future and we may be required to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur substantially
higher costs to obtain the same or similar coverage. As a result, it may be more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our Board of Directors or as executive officers.
A Confidentiality agreements with employees and third parties may not prevent unauthorized disclosure of trade secrets and other proprietary information, and our inability to maintain the
confidentiality of that information, due to unauthorized disclosure or use, or other event, could have a material adverse effect on our business. A In addition to the protection afforded by
patents, we seek to rely on trade secret protection and confidentiality agreements to protect proprietary know-how that is not patentable or that we elect not to patent, processes for which
patents are difficult to enforce, and any other elements of our product discovery and development processes that involve proprietary know-how, information, or technology that is not covered by
patents. Trade secrets, however, may be difficult to protect. We seek to protect our proprietary processes, in part, by entering into confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants,
advisors, contractors and collaborators. Although we use reasonable efforts to protect our trade secrets, our employees, consultants, advisors, contractors, and collaborators might intentionally
or inadvertently disclose our trade secret information to competitors. In addition, competitors may otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or independently develop substantially equivalent
information and techniques. Furthermore, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent or in the same manner as the laws of the United States. As a
result, we may encounter significant problems in protecting and defending our intellectual property both in the United States and abroad. If we are unable to prevent unauthorized material
disclosure of our intellectual property to third parties, or misappropriation of our intellectual property by third parties, we will not be able to establish or maintain a competitive advantage in
our market, which could materially adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition. A We are heavily reliant on the services of both Ardes Johnson, our Chief Executive
Officer, and Brent Willson, our former CEO and current chief technology officer, and the departure or loss of either officer could disrupt our business. A We depend heavily on the continued
efforts of Ardes Johnson, our Chief Executive Officer, who joined the Company in April 2024, and Brent Willson, our former CEO and current chief technology officer, who are essential to our
strategic vision and day-to-day operations and would be difficult to replace. The departure or loss of either Mr. Johnson or Mr. Willson, or the inability to timely hire and retain qualified
replacements, could negatively impact our ability to manage our business. A A A 16A A A If we are unable to recruit and retain key management, technical and sales personnel, our business
would be negatively affected. A For our business to be successful, we need to attract and retain highly qualified technical, management and sales personnel. The failure to recruit additional key
personnel when needed with specific qualifications and on acceptable terms or to retain good relationships with our partners might impede our ability to continue to develop, commercialize and
sell our products. To the extent the demand for skilled personnel exceeds supply, we could experience higher labor, recruiting and training costs in order to attract and retain such employees.
We face competition for qualified personnel from other companies with significantly more resources available to them and thus may not be able to attract the level of personnel needed for our
business to succeed. A Artificial intelligence presents risks and challenges that can impact our business, including by posing security risks to our confidential information, proprietary
information and personal data. A Issues in the development and use of artificial intelligence, combined with an uncertain regulatory environment, may result in reputational harm, liability, or
other adverse consequences to our business operations. As with many technological innovations, artificial intelligence presents risks and challenges that could impact our business. We may
adopt and integrate generative artificial intelligence tools into our systems for specific use cases. Our vendors may incorporate generative artificial intelligence tools into their offerings without
disclosing this use to us, and the providers of these generative artificial intelligence tools may not meet existing or rapidly evolving regulatory or industry standards with respect to privacy and
data protection and may inhibit our or our vendorsa€™ ability to maintain an adequate level of service and experience. If we, our vendors, or our third-party partners experience an actual or
perceived breach or privacy or security incident because of the use of generative artificial intelligence, we may lose valuable intellectual property and confidential information and our
reputation and the public perception of the effectiveness of our security measures could be harmed. Further, bad actors around the world use increasingly sophisticated methods, including the
use of artificial intelligence, to engage in illegal activities involving the theft and misuse of personal information, confidential information, and intellectual property. Any of these outcomes could
damage our reputation, result in the loss of valuable property and information, and adversely impact our business. A Risks Related to Our Securities A Our executive officers and directors will
exercise significant control over us for the foreseeable future, which will limit our shareholders ability to influence corporate matters and could delay or prevent a change in corporate control.
A Our executive officers and directors currently hold or have the right to acquire, in the aggregate, up to approximately 18.1 % of our outstanding common stock. As a result, these stockholders
will be able to influence our management and affairs and heavily influence the outcome of matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, including the election of directors and any sale,
merger, consolidation, or sale of all or substantially all of our assets. A These stockholders may have interests, with respect to their common stock, that are different from our other
stockholders and the concentration of voting power among one or more of these stockholders may have an adverse effect on the price of our common stock. A In addition, this concentration of
ownership might adversely affect the market price of our common stock by: (1) delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of our company; (2) impeding a merger, consolidation,



takeover or other business combination involving our company; or (3) discouraging a potential acquirer from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to obtain control of our company. A
A A A17A A A Nevada law and provisions in our articles of incorporation and bylaws could make a takeover proposal more difficult. A We are a Nevada corporation and the anti-takeover
provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes may discourage, delay or prevent a change in control by prohibiting us from engaging in a business combination with an interested stockholder for a
period of three years after the person becomes an interested stockholder, even if a change in control would be beneficial to our existing stockholders. In addition, our articles of incorporation
and bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a change in our management or control over us that stockholders may consider favorable. Our articles of incorporation and bylaws: A A-authorize
the issuance of a€ceblank checka€ preferred stock that could be issued by our board of directors to thwart a takeover attempt; A-place restrictive requirements (including advance notification of
stockholder nominations and proposals) on how special meetings of stockholders may be called by our stockholders; do not provide stockholders with the ability to cumulate their votes; and
A-provide that our board of directors may amend our bylaws. A Additionally, our authorized capital includes preferred stock issuable in one or more series. Our board has the authority to issue
preferred stock and determine the price, designation, rights, preferences, privileges, restrictions and conditions, including voting and dividend rights, of those shares without any further vote or
action by stockholders. The rights of the holders of common stock will be subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of holders of any preferred stock that may be issued in the
future. The issuance of additional preferred stock, while providing desirable flexibility in connection with possible financings and acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could make it more
difficult for a third party to acquire a majority of the voting power of our outstanding voting securities, which could deprive our holders of common stock of a premium that they might otherwise
realize in connection with a proposed acquisition of our company. A As an 4&€ceemerging growth companya€ under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, or JOBS Act, we are permitted to,
and intend to, rely on exemptions from certain disclosure requirements. A As an &€ceemerging growth companya€ under the JOBS Act, we are permitted to, and intend to, rely on exemptions
from certain disclosure requirements. We are an emerging growth company until the earliest of: A A-the last day of the fiscal year during which we have total annual gross revenues of $1
billion or more; A-the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of our initial public offering; A-the date on which we have, during the previous 3-year period, issued more than $1
billion in non-convertible debt; or A-the date on which we are deemed a 4€celarge accelerated issuera€ as defined under the federal securities laws. A For so long as we remain an emerging
growth company, we will not be required to: A A-have an auditor report on our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; A-comply with any
requirement that may be adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditora€™ s report providing additional
information about the audit and the financial statements (auditor discussion and analysis); A-submit certain executive compensation matters to shareholders advisory votes pursuant to the
d€cesay on frequencya€ and a&€cmesay on paya€ provisions (requiring a non-binding shareholder vote to approve compensation of certain executive officers) and the d€cesay on golden
parachuted€ provisions (requiring a non-binding shareholder vote to approve golden parachute arrangements for certain executive officers in connection with mergers and certain other
business combinations) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010; and A-include detailed compensation discussion and analysis in our filings under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and instead may provide a reduced level of disclosure concerning executive compensation. A A A 18A A A For so long as we remain an
emerging growth company, we: A A-may present only two years of audited financial statements and only two years of related Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations, or MD&A; and A-are eligible to claim longer phase-in periods for the adoption of new or revised financial accounting standards under A§107 of the JOBS Act. A We
intend to take advantage of all of these reduced reporting requirements and exemptions. A Certain of these reduced reporting requirements and exemptions were already available to us due to
the fact that we also qualify as a &€cesmaller reporting companya€ under SEC rules. For instance, smaller reporting companies are not required to obtain an auditor attestation and report
regarding managementa€ ™s assessment of internal control over financial reporting; are not required to provide a compensation discussion and analysis; are not required to provide a pay-for-
performance graph or CEO pay ratio disclosure; and may present only two years of audited financial statements and related MD&A disclosure. A We cannot predict if investors will find our
securities less attractive due to our reliance on these exemptions. If investors were to find our common stock less attractive as a result of our election, we may have difficulty raising additional
capital. A Our shareholders may experience dilution of their ownership interests because of the future issuance of additional shares of our common or preferred stock or other securities that
are convertible into or exercisable for our common or preferred stock. A We are authorized to issue an aggregate of 100,000,000 shares of common stock and 5,000,000 shares of 4€ceblank
checka€ preferred stock. In the future, we may issue our authorized but previously unissued equity securities, resulting in the dilution of the ownership interests of our present stockholders. A
We intend to seek to raise additional funds, finance acquisitions or develop strategic relationships by issuing equity or convertible debt securities, which would reduce the percentage ownership
of our existing stockholders. Our board of directors has the authority, without action or vote of the stockholders, to issue all or any part of our authorized but unissued shares of common or
preferred stock. Our articles of incorporation authorizes us to issue up to 100,000,000 shares of common stock and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock. Future issuances of common or
preferred stock would reduce our stockholders influence over matters on which stockholders vote and would be dilutive to earnings per share. In addition, any newly issued preferred stock
could have rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of the common stock. Those rights, preferences and privileges could include, among other things, the establishment of dividends
that must be paid prior to declaring or paying dividends or other distributions to holders of our common stock or providing for preferential liquidation rights. These rights, preferences and
privileges could negatively affect the rights of holders of our common stock, and the right to convert such preferred stock into shares of our common stock at a rate or price that would have a
dilutive effect on the outstanding shares of our common stock. A We do not anticipate paying dividends on our common stock, and investors may lose the entire amount of their investment. A
Cash dividends have never been declared or paid on our common stock, and we do not anticipate such a declaration or payment for the foreseeable future. We expect to use future earnings, if
any, to fund business growth. Therefore, stockholders will not receive any funds absent a sale of their shares of common stock. If we do not pay dividends, our common stock may be less
valuable because a return on your investment will only occur if our stock price appreciates. We cannot assure stockholders of a positive return on their investment when they sell their shares,
nor can we assure that stockholders will not lose the entire amount of their investment. A A A 19A A A The Warrants we issued in our July 2022 offering are speculative in nature, and the
trading market for our Warrants are volatile, sporadic and limited. A The Warrants we issued in our July 2022 offering do not confer any rights of common stock ownership on their holders,
such as voting rights or the right to receive dividends, but rather merely represent the right to acquire shares of our common stock at a fixed price for a limited period of time. Specifically,
commencing on the date of issuance, holders of the Warrants may exercise their right to acquire the common stock and pay an exercise price of $4.00 per share, up to five years from the date of
issuance, after which date any unexercised Warrants will expire and have no further value. In addition, the trading market for the Warrants is volatile, sporadic and limited. A Holders of the
Warrants we issued in our July 2022 offering will have no rights as a common stockholder until they acquire our common stock. A Until holders of the Warrants we issued in our July 2022
offering acquire shares of our common stock upon exercise of the Warrants, the holders will have no rights with respect to shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants.
Upon exercise of the Warrants, the holder will be entitled to exercise the rights of a common stockholder as to the security exercised only as to matters for which the record date occurs after
the exercise. A Although our securities became listed on Nasdaq in August 2022, there can be no assurance that we will be able to comply with the continued listing standards of Nasdaq, a
failure of which could result in a de-listing of our common stock. A The Nasdaq Capital Market requires that the trading price of its listed stocks remain above one dollar in order for the stock
to remain listed. If a listed stock trades below one dollar for more than 30 consecutive trading days, then it is subject to delisting from Nasdaq. In addition, to maintain a listing on Nasdaq, we
must satisfy minimum financial and other continued listing requirements and standards, including those regarding director independence and independent committee requirements, minimum
stockholdersa€™ equity, and certain corporate governance requirements. Additionally, we may become subject to an evolving set of compliance regulations pertaining to environmental, social
and governance (a€ceESGa€) matters as well as cybersecurity standards that are promulgated by Nasdaq or other regulatory bodies. If we are able to maintain the listing of our securities on
Nasdaq, we may be unable to satisfy these requirements or standards and we could subject our securities to delisting, which would have a negative effect on the price of our common stock and
would impair our security holdersa€™ ability to sell or purchase our common stock or Warrants when they wish to do so. In the event of a delisting, we would expect to take actions to restore
our compliance with the listing requirements, but we can provide no assurance that any such action taken by us would allow our securities to become listed again, stabilize the market price or
improve the liquidity of our securities, prevent our securities from dropping below the minimum bid price requirement, or prevent future non-compliance with the listing requirements. A The
price of our common stock and Warrants may be volatile. A The market - price of our common stock and Warrants is highly volatile and could fluctuate widely in price in response to various
factors, many of which are beyond our control, including the following: A A-changes in our industry; A-competitive pricing pressures; A-our ability to obtain working capital financing;
A-additions or departures of key personnel; A-conversions from preferred stock to common stock; A-sales of our common and preferred stock; A-our ability to execute our business plan;
A-operating results that fall below expectations; A-loss of any strategic relationship; A-regulatory developments; and A-economic and other external factors. A In addition, the securities markets
have from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. These market fluctuations may also
materially and adversely affect the market price of our common stock and Warrants. A A A 20A A A Negative research about our business published by analysts or journalists could cause our
stock price to decline. A lack of regularly published research about our business could cause trading volume or our stock price to decline. A The trading market for our common stock depends
in part on the research and reports that analysts and journalists publish about us or our business. If analysts or journalists publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our
stock price would likely decline. If we fail to meet the expectations of analysts for our operating results, or if the analysts who covers us downgrade our stock, our stock price would likely
decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of us or fails to publish reports on us regularly, demand for our stock could decrease, which could cause our stock price and trading
volume to decline. A Claims for indemnification by our directors and officers may reduce our available funds to satisfy successful third-party claims against us and may reduce the amount of
money available to us. A Our articles of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that eliminate, to the maximum extent permitted by the corporation law of the State of Nevada, the
personal liability of our directors and executive officers for monetary damages for breach of their fiduciary duties as a director or officer. Our articles of incorporation and bylaws also provide
that we will indemnify our directors and executive officers and may indemnify our employees and other agents to the fullest extent permitted by the corporation law of the State of Nevada. Any
claims for indemnification made by our directors or officers could impact our cash resources and our ability to fund the business. A Shareholder activism could cause material disruption to our
business. A Publicly traded companies have increasingly become subject to campaigns by activist investors advocating corporate actions such as actions related to environment, social and
governance (ESG) matters, among other issues. Responding to proxy contests and other actions by such activist investors or others in the future could be costly and time-consuming, disrupt our
operations and divert the attention of our Board of Directors and senior management from the pursuit of our business strategies, which could adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.A A ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS A None. A ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY A Risk Management and Strategy A Due to our small size, we have not
established formal policies and procedures for assessing, identifying, and managing material risk from cybersecurity threats. However, we monitor cybersecurity threats internally, including
any potential unauthorized occurrence on or conducted through our information systems that we use through third party providers. A As of June 30, 2024, and through the date of the filing of
this report, we are not aware of any cybersecurity incidents that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect us, including our business strategy, results of operations or
financial condition. A Governance A Our board of directors is responsible for monitoring and assessing strategic risk exposure, and our three executive officers are responsible for the day-to-
day management of the material risks we face and are responsible for reporting to our board of directors any cybersecurity incidents. Although at present, our executive officers have no direct
experience or training in cybersecurity matters, they have experience as officers of other companies similar to our company that may have similar cybersecurity issues. Due to our small size,
our board of directors has not designated any Board committee or any other subset of Board members to provide oversight of our cybersecurity program as part of a periodic review of our
overall risk management program. A A A A21A A A ITEM 2. PROPERTIES A Commencing January 2021, we moved into a new dedicated headquarters and manufacturing facility in Poway,
California, just north of San Diego. This state-of-the-art, energy-efficient facility has ample square footage, shipping and receiving space, and office spaces to support the companya€™s growth
by providing double the production capability and increases shipping efficiency from that of our previous facility. The facility was secured under a sublease agreement with our former contract
manufacturer. Under the terms of the sublease agreement, we were required to make rental payments of approximately $11,000 per month during the initial one-year term and any subsequent
renewals of the agreement. The sublease agreement is renewable upon mutual agreement of both parties for up to four additional years at a modest increase in the monthly rent, however, we
are under no obligation to renew it. A We do not own any real property. A ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS A We are currently not a party to any pending legal proceeding, nor is our property
the subject of a pending legal proceeding, that we believe is not ordinary routine litigation incidental to our business or otherwise material to the financial condition of our business. A ITEM 4.
MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES A Not applicable. A A A A A22A A A PARTII A ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT4€™S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES A Market Information A Our common stock and Warrants are listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market (4€ceNasdaqa€) under the symbols
4€eNEOVA€ and 4€ceNEOVW, A€ respectively. A Holders A As of September 27, 2024, there were approximately 30 holders of record of our common stock. The number of record holders does
not include beneficial owners of common stock whose shares are held in the names of banks, brokers, nominees or other fiduciaries. A Dividends A We have never paid any cash dividends on
our common stock. We currently anticipate that we will retain all future earnings for use in our business. Consequently, we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
The payment of dividends in the future will depend upon our results of operations, as well as our short term and long-term cash availability, working capital, working capital needs, and other
factors as determined by our Board of Directors. A Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities A In the three months ended June 30, 2024, we issued no new shares of our common stock. A
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers A We did not repurchase any of our equity securities during the yearA ended June 30, 2024. A ITEM 6. [RESERVED] A
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENTA€™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS A The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the
financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. Certain statements in this &€ceManagementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operationsa€ are forward-looking statements that are based on current expectations and involve various risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from
those expressed in these forward-looking statements. We encourage you to review the &€ceCautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements&€ and a€ceRisk Factorsa€ sections in this
report. A Overview A We are a designer, manufacturer, and seller of high-end Energy Storage Systems (or ESS), primarily our NeoVolta NV14, NV 24 and, to a lesser extent, our NV14-K,
which can store and use energy via batteries and an inverter at residential or commercial sites. We were founded to identify new ways to leverage emerging technologies with the dynamic
changes that are taking place in the energy delivery space. We primarily market and sell our products directly to our certified solar installers and solar equipment distributors. We are also
pursuing agreements with residential developers, commercial developers, and other commercial opportunities. Because we are purely dedicated to energy solar systems, virtually all of our
current resources and efforts go into further developing our flagship NV14 and NV 24 products, while focusing on specific industry needs for our next generation of products. We believe we are
unique in the marketplace due to our low cost, our innovative battery chemistry, our product versatility and our commitment to installer service. Because of these factors, we believe NeoVolta is
uniquely equipped to establish itself as a major player in the energy storage market. A A A 23A A A In May 2019, we completed a public offering of shares of our common stock pursuant to
Regulation A of the Securities Act (the &4€eIPO4&€). The IPO was for a total of 3,500,000 shares of our common stock at an offering price of $1.00 per share. We used the proceeds of the IPO to
ramp up production, marketing, and sales of our NV14 product line. In that regard, we have used the proceeds from the offering to fund the marketing, production and distribution of our
products, which commenced in July 2019 through a group of wholesale customers in California, as well as to provide additional working capital for other corporate purposes. We have expanded
to include one wholesale distribution customer in Nevada. A As further discussed below under a€ceLiquidity and Capital Resources,a€ we completed an underwritten public offering of our
equity securities in the form of Units in August 2022. We sold a total of 1,121,250 Units in the offering at an offering price to the public of $4.00 per Unit. The gross proceeds of the offering



were $4,485,000 and the net proceeds, after deduction of underwriting discounts and other offering costs, were approximately $3,780,000. We are using the proceeds of this public offering to
increase our current production capacity, expand our product portfolio, enlarge our product marketing and sales efforts, and for other general corporate purposes. A Results of Operations A
Comparison of the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 A Revenues - Revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended June 30, 2024 were $2,645,072 compared to $3,455,813 for
the year ended June 30, 2023. Such decrease was primarily due to various macroeconomic and regulatory factors including the negative impact of new utility regulations in the State of
California that we believe has caused an extended economic disincentive for residential utility customers to acquire our energy storage systems since the December 2022 enactment date and
continuing through the year ended June 30, 2024. A Cost of Goods Sold - Cost of goods sold for the year ended June 30, 2024 were $2,134,725 compared to $2,767,818 for the year ended June
30, 2023. The cost of goods sold in both periods reflected the cost of procuring and assembling the component parts of the energy storage systems that were sold in each fiscal year and resulted
in gross profits on such sales of approximately 19% and 20%, respectively, with such decrease largely being due to a partial reserve for obsolescence on component parts of our NV-14Ka€™s of
$90,000 in the year ended June 30, 2024, which was offset in part by efficiencies that we have realized from taking over responsibility for manufacturing of our products from a contract
operator since last year. A General and Administrative Expense - General and administrative expenses for the year ended June 30, 2024 were $2,828,147 compared to $3,293,758 for the year
ended June 30, 2023. Such decrease was primarily due to the reduction in the expense recorded for the fair value of incentive shares of common stock earned by our executive officers under
their current employment contracts. A Research and Development Expense - Research and development expenses for the year ended June 30, 2024 were $19,154 compared to $29,936 for the
year ended June 30, 2023. Such fluctuation was due to a modest decrease in the level of our product development efforts. A Other Income and Expense - Interest income for the year ended June
30, 2024 was $33,644 compared to zero for the year ended June 30, 2023. This increase was due to rising money market rates which have enabled the Company to earn interest on its investable
cash in the year ended June 30, 2024. Interest expense for the year ended June 30, 2024 was zero compared to $4,134 for the year ended June 30, 2023, reflecting the conversion of our 2018
and 2021 convertible notes in conjunction with the closing of our public equity offering in August 2022. A Net Loss - Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2024 was $2,303,310 compared to
$2,639,833 for the year ended June 30, 2023, representing the aggregate of the various revenue and expense categories indicated above. We have not recognized any income tax benefit for
these net losses due to the uncertainty of our ultimate realization. A A A 24A A A Liquidity and Capital Resources A Operating activities. Net cash used in operating activities in the year
ended June 30, 2024 was $1,016,362, compared to $2,108,001 in the year ended June 30, 2023, reflecting a significant decrease in net working capital requirements in the current fiscal year
period. A Financing activities. Net cash provided by financing activities in the year ended June 30, 2024 was zero compared to $3,780,405 in the year ended June 30, 2023. As further discussed
below, our net cash provided by financing activities in the year ended June 30, 2023 was entirely attributable to the successful completion of an underwritten public offering of our equity
securities in early August 2022. A We completed an underwritten public offering of our equity securities in the form of Units in early August 2022. Each Unit consisted of one share of common
stock and one warrant to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share. We sold a total of 1,121,250 Units in the offering at an offering price to the public of $4.00
per Unit. The gross proceeds of the offering, including the underwritersa€™ exercise of the overallotment option, were $4,485,000 and the net proceeds, after deduction of underwriting
discounts and other offering costs, were approximately $3,780,000. A In conjunction with the public offering, all holders of our 2018 convertible notes in the total amount of $59,251, including
accrued interest, converted their debt into a total of 9,404,867 shares of common stock at the stated conversion rate, and all holders of our 2021 convertible notes in the total amount of
$1,068,000 converted their debt into a total of 267,000 shares of common stock at the stated conversion rate. As a result of the simultaneous conversion of both sets of convertible notes, we
fully eliminated our convertible debt. A As of June 30, 2024, we had a cash balance of approximately $1.0 million and net working capital of approximately $4.6 million. Currently, we are not
generating a break-even level of net operating cash flow from our net sales. However, we anticipate that demand for our products will ultimately increase over time and that we will have
sufficient cash to operate for at least the next 12 months. A Assembly Inventory Purchase A In April 2023, we closed the bulk purchase of raw materials inventory from our contract
manufacturer by making a cash payment to that company in the net amount of approximately $1.3 million. This transaction was completed pursuant to an amendment of our Master Supply
Agreement with our contract manufacturer. In addition to the purchase of the raw materials inventory from our contract manufacturer, this amendment provided for the eventual assumption by
us of full responsibility from our contract manufacturer for the manufacturing of our proprietary Energy Storage Systems (4€eESSA€) units. Pursuant to the amendment, we assumed such
responsibility for the manufacturing process surrounding our ESS units from our contract manufacturer on June 1, 2023. In conjunction with assuming this responsibility, we hired the
employees of our contract manufacturer who previously performed contract manufacturing services for us. A We plan to hire additional 4€ceassemblersa€ as necessary. All of our
manufacturing certifications are listed under NeoVolta. The amended agreement in April 2023 had no effect on our present Sublease Agreement with our contract manufacturer, pertaining to
our existing manufacturing location in Poway, CA (see a€celtem 2 &€“ Propertiesa€). A Other Developments A We continue to monitor current international developments occurring in Ukraine
and Israel. However, we do not believe that they will have a significant impact on either the domestic markets for our products or the international supply chains for our product components,
which are largely sourced from Asia. A Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements A We have no obligations, assets or liabilities which would be considered off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in
Item 303 of Regulation S-K. A A A25A A A Critical Accounting Policies A The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States, or GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported expenses incurred during the reporting periods. Our estimates are based on our limited
historical experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. A We believe that certain
accounting policies, particularly those related to the recognition of revenues arising from the sales of our ESS products to customers of our business, affect our more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements. With regard to revenue recognition, the Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Accounting Standard Update ("ASU")
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which was adopted on July 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method, with no impact to the Companya€™s comparative
financial statements. Revenues are recognized when control of the promised goods is transferred to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be
entitled to in exchange for transferring those goods or services. Revenue is recognized based on the following five step model: A A-Identification of the contact with a customer A-Identification
of the performance obligations in the contract A-Determination of the transaction price A-Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract A-Recognition of
revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation A See 4€ceNote 1. Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policiesa€ of the notes to our financial statements for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, set forth below under, 4€celndex to Financial Statementsa€, for a further description of our critical accounting policies and estimates. A Emerging Growth
Company and Smaller Reporting Company Status A We are an emerging growth company, as defined in the JOBS Act. Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can delay adopting new
or revised accounting standards issued subsequent to the enactment of the JOBS Act until such time as those standards apply to private companies. We elected to use this extended transition
period for complying with new or revised accounting standards that have different effective dates for public and private companies until the earlier of the date that we (i) are no longer an
emerging growth company or (ii) affirmatively and irrevocably opt out of the extended transition period provided in the JOBS Act. As a result, these financial statements may not be comparable
to companies that comply with the new or revised accounting pronouncements as of public company effective dates. We are using the extended transition period for any other new or revised
accounting standards during the period in which we remain an emerging growth company. A We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest of (i) the last day of our first fiscal
year (a) following the fifth anniversary of the completion of our August 2022 offering, (b) in which we have total annual gross revenues of at least $1.235 billion or (c) in which we are deemed to
be a large accelerated filer, which means the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700.0 million as of the prior June 30th and (ii) the date on which we have
issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt securities during the prior three-year period. A We are also a &€cesmaller reporting company,a€ meaning that the market value of our
stock held by non-affiliates is less than $700.0 million and our annual revenue is less than $100.0 million during the most recently completed fiscal year. We may continue to be a smaller
reporting company if either (i) the market value of our stock held by non-affiliates is less than $250.0 million or (ii) our annual revenue is less than $100.0 million during the most recently
completed fiscal year and the market value of our stock held by non-affiliates is less than $700.0 million. If we are a smaller reporting company at the time we cease to be an emerging growth
company, we may continue to rely on exemptions from certain disclosure requirements that are available to smaller reporting companies. Specifically, as a smaller reporting company we may
choose to present only the two most recent fiscal years of audited financial statements in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K and, similar to emerging growth companies, smaller reporting
companies have reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation. A ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS A We are a smaller
reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and are not required to provide information required under this item. A A 26A A A ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA A NeoVolta Inc. Index to Financial Statements A A Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID# 206) 28 A A A A Balance Sheets as of
June 30, 2024 and 2023 29 A A A A Statements of Operations for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 30 A A A A Statements of Stockholdersa€™ Equity for the years ended June 30,
2024 and 2023 31 A A A A Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 32 A A A A Notes to the Financial Statements 33 A A A A27A A A REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM A To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of NeoVolta, Inc. A Opinion on the Financial Statements A We have audited the
accompanying balance sheets of NeoVolta, Inc. (the 4€ceCompanya€) as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of operations, stockholdersa€™ equity, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the a€cefinancial statementsa€). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. A Basis for Opinion A These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companya€™s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Companya€™s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the PCAOB. A We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal
control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. A Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. A A A /s/ MaloneBailey, LLP
www.malonebailey.com We have served as the Company's auditor since 2018. Houston, Texas September 27, 2024 A A A28A A A NEOVOLTA INC. Balance Sheets A A A A June 30,A A

June 30, A A A 2024A A 2023A Assets Current assets:A AAAA AAA Cash and cash equwalentsA $986 427A A $2 002,789A Accounts receivable, netA A 1,805,980A A A 1,826,385A

Inventory, netA A 1,787,308A A A 2,580,571A Prepaid insurance and other current assetsA A 76,815A A A 96,119A Total current assetsA A 4,656,530A A A 6,505,864A AA AAAA AAA

Total assetsA $4,656,530A A $6 505,864A AA AAAA AAA Liabilities and Stockholders' EqultyA AAAA AAA Current liabilities:A AAAA AAA Accounts payableA $5, 316A A $a€ “A

Accrued liabilitiesA A 55,784A A A 39,491A Total current liabilitiesA A 61,100A A A 39,491A AA AAAA AAA Commitments and contingencies (Note 4)A AAAA AAA AA AAAA

A AA Stockholders' equity: A AAAA AAA Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 33,236,091 shares and 33,155,127 shares issued and outstanding, respectlvelyA
A 33,236A A A 33,155A Additional paid-in capitalA A 25,304,732A A A 24,872,446A Accumulated deficitA A (20,742,538)A A (18,439,228) Total stockholders' equltAyA A 4,595,430A A

A 6,466,373A AA AAAA AAA Total liabilities and stockholders' equityA $4,656,530A A $6,505,864A A A See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. A A A 29A A A NEOVOLTA
INC. Statements of OperationsA A AA A A A A A AA AA Year Ended June 30,A AA 2024A A 2023A AA AAA A A Revenues from contracts with customersA $2,645,072A A

$3,455,813A Cost of goods soldA A 2,134,725A A A 2,767,818A Gross profltA A510,347A A A687,995A AA AAAA AAA Operating expenses: A AAAA AAA General and

administrativeA A 2,828,147A A A 3,293,758A Research and developmentA A 19,154A A A 29,936A Total operating expensesA A2,847,301A A A3,323,694A AA AAAA AAA Loss from
operatlonsA A (2,336, 954)A A (2,635, 699) AA AAAA AAA Other income (expense) A AAAA AAA Interest incomeA A 33,644A A A a€“A Interest expenseA A a€e“A A A (4,134) Total

other income (expense)A A 33,644AA A (4,134) AA AAAA AAA NetlossA $(2,303, 310)A $(2,639,833) AA AAAA AAA Weighted average shares outstanding - basic and dilutedA
A 33,213,306A A A 32,025,620A AA AAAA AAA Netloss per share - basic and dilutedA $(0 07)A $(0 08) A A See Accompanymg Notes to Financial Statements. A A A 30A A A
NEOVOLTA INC. Statements of Stockholders' Equity Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 A AA AAA AAA AdditionalAA AAA TotalA AA Common StockA A Paid-inA A
AccumulatedA A Stockholders'A A A SharesA A AmountA A CapltalAA DeficitA A EqultyA AA AAA AAA AAA AAA AA Balance at June 30, 2022A A 21,977,251A A $21, 978A A

$18 394,641A A $(15 799, 395)A $2,617,224A A A AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Issuance of common stock in underwritten public offerlngA A1,121,250AA A1,121AA
A3,779,284A A Aae“AA A3,780,4056A A AAAA AAAA AAAA

A
A1,169,614AA Aae“AA A1,179,286A AA AAAA AAAA AAA‘/S
A

A A A TIssuance of common stock for conversion of debt and accrued interestA A 9,671,867A A A 9,672A A

{\ AAA Stock compensation expenseA AA3A8% 7§9AA A 384A A A1,528,907AA Aa€“AA A1,529,291A AA
‘A A

AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA NetlossA Aae“AA Aa€“A A(2.6.39 QSB)A A(2 639, 833)AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Balance at June 30, 2023A

&
A 33,155,127A A A 33,155A A A 24,872,446A A A(18 439,228)A A 6,466,373A AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Stock compensation expenseA A80,964A A A81AA

A 432,286AA Aae“AA A432,367A AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA NetlossA Aa€e“AA Aae“AA Aa€“AA A(2,303,310)A A (2,303,3100)0AA AAAA AAAA AAAA

A AAA AAA Balance at June 30, 2024A A 33,236,091A A $33 236A A $25,304,732A A $(20,742, 538)A $4 595,430A A A See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. A A A31A A

A NEOVOLTA INC. Statements of Cash FlowsA AA A A A’ A A A AA Year Ended June 30, AA 2024A A 2023A Cash flows from operating activities:A AAAA AAA NetlossA
$(2,303,310)A $(2,639,833) Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operations: A AAAA AAA Stock compensation expenseA A 432,367A A A 1,529,291A Provision for
expected credit losses/bad debt expenseA A 540,000A A A 490,000A Reserve for obsolete inventoryA A 90,000A A A a€“A Changes in current assets and liabilitiesA AAAA A AA Accounts
receivableA A (519,595)A A (998,647) InventoryA A 703,263A A A (342,363) Prepaid expenses and other current assetsA A 19,304A A A 142,882A Accounts payableA A5,316A A

A (205,600) Accrued expensesA A 16,293A A A (83,731) Net cash flows used in operating activitiesA A (1,016,362)A A (2,108,001) AA AAA A AAA Cash flows from financing activities:A
AAAA AAA Underwritten public offering of common stockA A a€“A A A 3,780,405A Net cash flows from financing activitiesA A 4€“A A A 3,780,405A AA AAAA AAA Net increase
(decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsA A (1,016,362)A A 1,672,404A AA AAAA AAA Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of periodA A 2,002,789A A A330,385A AA AAAA

A A A Cash and cash equivalents at end of perlodA $986, 427A A $2,002, 789A AA AAAA AAA Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:A AAAA AAA Cash paid for interestA
$a€“A A $a€“A Cash paid for income taxesA A a€“AA Aa€“A AA AA AA AAA Supplemental non-cash financing activities:A AAAA AAA Convertible notes payable and accrued
interest converted to common stockA $&4€“A A $1,179,286A A See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. A A A32A A A NEOVOLTA INC. Notes to Financial Statements June 30,
2024 A A (1)Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies A Description of Business 4€“ NeoVolta Inc. (A€cewea€, a&€ceoura€ or the "Company") is a Nevada corporation, which

was formed on March 5, 2018. The Company is a designer, seller and manufacturer of Energy Storage Systems (ESS) which can store and use energy via batteries and an inverter at residential

A
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A ae’
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sites. The Company sells its proprietary ESS units through wholesale customers, primarily in California, and in an expanding number of other states. In August 2022, the Company completed an
underwritten public offering of its equity securities resulting in its common stock and warrants becoming listed on a national exchange (see Note 2). A Basis of Presentation 4€“ The
accompanying financial statements and related notes have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (a€ceU.S. GAAPa€) and in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the &€0eSEC4&€). A Cash and Cash Equivalents 4€“ The Company considers all highly liquid
accounts with original maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition to be cash equivalents.A Periodically, the Company may carry cash balances at financial institutions in excess
of the federally insured limit of $250,000. At June 30, 2024, the Company maintained all of its accounts at one bank and the combined balances of all accounts at this bank was in excess of the
FDIC insurance limit by $736,427. A Inventory &€ Inventory consists of batteries and inverters purchased from Asian suppliers and delivered to a location near the Companya€™s offices, for
assembly into ESS units. Additionally, we closed a bulk purchase of raw materials consisting of assembly parts from our former contract manufacturer in April 2023, for a gross amount of $1.4
million. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, cost being determined using the first-in, first out (FIFO) method. The Company periodically reviews the value of items in
inventory and records an allowance to reduce the carrying value of inventory to the lower of cost or net realizable value based on its assessment of market conditions, inventory turnover and
current stock levels. Inventory write-downs are charged to cost of goods sold. The following table presents the components of inventory (net of reserve for obsolescence on assembly parts of
$90,000 and zero, respectively) as of June 30, 2024 and 2023: A Schedule of mventoryA AAAAAAAAA June30,A AA 2024AA 2023A AA AAA AA Raw materials, consisting of
assembly parts, batteries and invertersA $1,076,479A A $2,353,055A Work-in-processA A 89,386A A A 4€“A Finished goodsA A 621,443A A A 227,516A AA AAAA AAA TotalA
$1,787,308A A $2,580,571A A Revenue Recognition 4€“ The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Accounting Standard Update ("ASU") 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606). Revenues are recognized when control of the promised goods is transferred to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be
entitled to in exchange for transferring those goods or services. Revenue is recognized based on the following five step model: A A-Identification of the contact with a customer A-Identification
of the performance obligations in the contract A-Determination of the transaction price A-Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract A-Recognition of
revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation A A A A 33A A A The Company generates revenues from contracts with customers, consisting of a relatively small
number of wholesale dealers and installers, primarily in California. In the year ended June 30, 2024, two such dealers represented approximately 20% and 14% of the Companya€™s revenues,
however, no other dealers accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in such period. Those same two dealers plus one other one represented an aggregate of approximately 22%, 18% and
14% of the Companya€™ s gross accounts receivable as of June 30, 2024, however, no other dealers accounted for more than 10% of the accounts receivable as of June 30, 2024. In the year
ended June 30, 2023, three such dealers represented approximately 25%, 15% and 13% of the Companya€™ s revenues. Under its present contracts with customers, the Companya€™s sole
performance obligation is the delivery of products to the customer. Since all of the Companya€™s revenue is currently generated from the sales of similar products delivered to customers in
domestic locations, no further disaggregation of revenue information for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 is provided. A Allowance for Expected Credit Losses 4€“A The Company
recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses whenever a loss is expected to be incurred in the realization of a customera€™s account. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, our allowance for
expected credit losses was $1,030,000 and $490,000, respectively. A Income Taxes 4€“ The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial reporting and the tax bases of reported assets and liabilities and are measured using the
enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. The Company must then assess the likelihood that the resulting deferred tax assets will be
realized. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. A The Company accounts for uncertain tax
positions in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (4€0eASCa€) 740-10 which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial
statement disclosure of tax positions taken, or expected to be taken, on its tax return. The Company evaluates and records any uncertain tax positions based on the amount that management
deems is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination and ultimate settlement with the tax authorities in the tax jurisdictions in which it operates. A Stock Compensation Expense &4€“
Employee and non-employee share-based payment compensation is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense over the requisite service
period. A Loss Per Common Share 4€“ Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per common share is determined using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for the dilutive
effect of common stock equivalents. In periods when losses are reported, the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding excludes common stock equivalents, because their
inclusion would be anti-dilutive. As of June 30, 2024, the Company had total outstanding common stock equivalents of 2,577,931 shares as follows: (i) 1,348,181 shares related to restricted
stock units granted to an officer and another employee in April 2024; (ii) 1,121,250 shares related to warrants issued to investors in the public offering completed in August 2022; (iii) 58,500
shares related to warrants issued to the underwriters in that same offering; and (iv) 50,000 shares related to restricted stock units granted to an officer in March 2022 (see Note 2). A Research
and Development Costs 4€“ Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. A Use of Estimates 4€“ Management has made a number of estimates and assumptions in preparing
these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates. A Related Parties - The
Company accounts for related party transactions in accordance with ASC 850 (&€aeRelated Party Disclosuresa€). A party is considered to be related to the Company if the party directly or
indirectly or through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Company. Related parties also include principal owners of the Company, its
management, members of the immediate families of principal owners of the Company and its management and other parties with which the Company may deal if one party controls or can
significantly influence the management or operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. A
party which can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the transacting parties or if it has an ownership interest in one of the transacting parties and can significantly
influence the other to an extent that it might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests is also a related party. A A A A 34A A A Fair Value Measurements and Financial
Instruments - ASC 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for
the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. ASC 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between (1) market
participant assumptions developed based on market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs) and (2)A an entitya€™s own assumptions about market participant assumptions
developed based on the best information available in the circumstances (unobservable inputs). The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels, which gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are
described below: A Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities. A Level 2 - Inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (e.g., interest rates); and
inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means. A Level 3 - Inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and
unobservable. The carrying value of certain on-balance-sheet financial instruments approximated their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments. These financial instruments
include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and long-term debt. The carrying value of long-term debt approximates fair value since the related rate of interest
approximates current market rates. A At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company didA not have any financial assets or liabilities measured and recorded at fair value on the Companya€™s
balance sheets on a recurring basis. A Recent Accounting Pronouncements 4€“ From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board,
(&€eFASBa€), or other standard setting bodies and adopted by us as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise discussed, the impact of recently issued and prospective standards that are
not yet effective will not have a material impact on the Companya€™s financial position or results of operations upon adoption. The Company has considered all other recently issued accounting
pronouncements, including the newly effective accounting standard pertaining to &€cecurrent expected credit losses,a€ and does not believe the adoption of such pronouncements will have a
material impact on its financial statements. Effective July 1, 2023, the Company adopted the provisions of ASC 326 (Financial Instruments 4€“ Credit Losses) pertaining to 4€cecurrent expected
credit losses,a€ which had no material impact on the Companya€™s financial statements. A Liquidity 4€“ These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which
assumes the Company will continue to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The continuation of the Company as a going concern has been dependent
upon our ability to obtain necessary debt and equity financing to continue operations and the attainment of profitable operations. The Company has a history of recurring losses from operations
and negative cash flows from operations which has raised substantial doubt as to the Companya€™s ability to continue as a going concern. A Despite our history of recurring operating losses
and negative cash flows, we believe that based on our current business plan, which includes increased generation of revenues and raising funds through debt financing, the above referenced
substantial doubt has been alleviated. As disclosed in Note 6, we recently entered into an agreement with a financing entity whereby we have obtained a line of credit for borrowings of up to
$5,000,000, in order to meet any near-term borrowing needs. As a result, we believe that we will have sufficient financial resources available to us in order to operate our business for at least
the next 12 months from the date these financial statements are issued. A (2)Equity A Common Stock 4€“ In August 2022, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of its equity
securities in the form of Units with each Unit consisting of one share of common stock and one warrant (each, a &€ceWarranta€ and collectively, the &€ceWarrantsa€) to purchase one share of
common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share. The shares of common stock and the Warrants comprising the Units were immediately separated at closing of the offering and each is now
independently listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market. Each Warrant became exercisable on the date of issuance and will expire five years from the date of issuance. A A A A35A A A Inthe
underwritten public offering, a total of 1,121,250 Units, including exercise of the underwritera€™s overallotment option, were sold at an offering price to the public of $4.00 per Unit. The gross
proceeds of the offering were $4,485,000 and the net proceeds, after deduction of underwriting discounts and other offering costs were approximately $3,780,000. The Company also granted
the underwriter non-tradeable warrants to purchase a total of 58,500 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.40 per share for a period of five years. A In conjunction with the public
offering, all holders of the Companya€™s 2018 convertible notes in the total amount of $59,251, including accrued interest, converted their debt into a total of 9,404,867 shares of common
stock at the stated conversion rate, and all holders of the Companya€™s 2021 convertible notes in the total amount of $1,068,000 converted their debt into a total of 267,000 shares of common
stock at the stated conversion rate. A Warrants 4€“ The Warrants for a total of 1,179,750 shares of common stock issued to investors and the underwriters are exercisable at any time after
their original issuance and at any time up to the date that is five years after their original issuance, or August 1, 2027. The Warrants may be exercised upon payment of the exercise price in
cash on or prior to the expiration date. Under the terms of the Warrant Agreement, we must use our best efforts to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement and current
prospectus relating to common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants until the expiration of the Warrants. If we fail to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement and current
prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, the holders of the Warrants shall have the right to exercise the Warrants solely via a cashless exercise feature
provided for in the Warrants, until such time as there is an effective registration statement and current prospectus. In June 2024, the Company filed an updated registration statement
applicable to the exercise of the Warrants. A The following table presents activity with respect to the Companya€™s warrants for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023: A Schedule of
warrant act1v1tyA NumberA A Wtd. Avg. AA Wtd. Avg.A A AggregateA A A ofA A ExerciseA A RemainingA A IntrinsicA A A SharesA A PriceA A Term (Yrs. JAA ValueA AA AAA AAA

AAA AA Outstanding at July 1, 2022A Aa€e“AA $a€“AA AAAA $a€"A Warrants issued to Public InvestorsA A 1,121,250A A A4.00AA AAAA AA A Warrants issued to UnderwritersA

A58500AA A4.40AA AAAA AAA Outstanding at June 30, 2023A A1,179,750A A A4.02AA A41AA A &€“A Warrants issuedA A a€“AA Aa€“AA AAAA AAA Warrants
exer01sed/forfe1tedA Aae“AA Aae"AA AAAA AAA Outstanding at June 30, 2024A A 1,179,750A A $4.02A A A3.1AA $a€“A AA AAAA AAAA AAAA AAA Exercisable at June
30, 2024A A 1,179,750A A $4.02A A A3.1A A $a€“A A These warrants were issued in conjunction with an underwritten public equity offering, therefore, there was no employee or non-
employee compensation expense recognized. A Stock Compensation Expense 4€“ In April 2024, we entered into an employment agreement with a new Chief Executive Officer (4€ceCEQA£),
providing for an initial term extending through June 30, 2027, which will be automatically renewed for additional one-year terms unless either party chooses not to renew it. Pursuant to the
agreement, our new CEO received an initial equity grant equal to 1,280,000 restricted stock units (4€ceRSU&€ ™ sa€), with a grant date value of $2,854,000, which will vest over a four-year
period, subject to his continued employment with the Company, and will be entitled to earn additional RSUa€™s on each anniversary in the form of three annual performance-based equity
grants, beginning in the year ending June 30, 2025, with a target value of up to $660,000 each. A A A A36A A A In February 2022, we entered into a new employment agreement with our
then CEO, effective April 1, 2022. As noted above, we engaged a new CEO effective April 29, 2024, replacing our former CEO who remains as Chairman of the Board and chief technology
officer. Pursuant to the agreement, we issued our former CEO an RSU award for up to 150,000 shares of our common stock upon achieving the following milestones (which achievements shall
be determined by the Board): (i) Milestone 1 - Successfully complete an uplisting of our common stock in 2022 and continue his employment with our company until January 1, 2023: 50,000
shares; and (ii) Milestone 2 - Produce 2,000 ESSs in 2022 and continue his employment with our company until January 1, 2023: 100,000 shares. As of December 31, 2023, Milestone 1 had been
achieved, however, Milestone 2 had not been achieved and was no longer achievable. The underlying 50,000 shares of common stock earned under Milestone 1 were issued to our former CEO
as of January 1, 2023. A In February 2022, we entered into a new employment agreement with our Chief Financial Officer (4€ceCFO&€), effective March 1, 2022. Pursuant to the agreement, we
issued our CFO an RSU award for up to 300,000 shares of our common stock upon achieving the following milestones (which achievements shall be determined by the Board): (i) Milestone 1 -
Successfully complete an uplisting of our common stock in 2022 and continue his employment with our company until January 1, 2023: 250,000 shares; and (ii) Milestone 2 - successfully
complete and file the Companya€™s Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2023 no later than September 29, 2023 and continue his employment with our company until January 1, 2024:
50,000 shares. Milestone 1 was achieved as of January 1, 2023, and the underlying 250,000 shares of common stock earned under Milestone 1 were issued to our CFO as of that date. Milestone
2 was achieved as of January 1, 2024, and the underlying 50,000 shares of common stock earned under Milestone 2 are expected to be issued to our CFO at a later date. A Based upon our
assessment of the probability of our three executive officers noted above, plus a non-executive recipient of another RSU award issued in June 2024, ultimately achieving any applicable
milestones specified under the RSU awards indicated above, we have calculated the grant date value of such awards and are amortizing it as stock compensation expense over the underlying
performance periods. We have recognized stock compensation expense applicable to such RSU awards in the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 in the amounts of $214,992 and $1,241,563,
respectively. A In conjunction with our public offering in August 2022, we appointed two new independent directors and adopted a new compensation plan for all independent directors based
on an annual compensation amount of $65,000 to be paid quarterly with not less than 70% of such amount paid in shares of our common stock, calculated based on the share price at the end of
such prior fiscal quarter, and up to 30% paid in cash, with such final amounts to be determined by each director. As of June 30, 2024, we booked an annual accrual of $195,000 of compensation
expense (of which $175,500 will be settled through the issuance of shares) for our three independent directors under this plan. A In the year ended June 30, 2024, we recognized total non-cash
stock compensation expense of $432,367 as follows: (i) $214,992 for the amortized value of the RSUs granted to our three executive officers and a non-executive recipient, as previously
described; (ii) $175,500 for the amortized value of the portion of the new compensation plan for our independent directors that is attributable to stock; (iii) $29,450 for the net amortized value
of the shares granted to various advisors under their annual service contracts; and (iv) $12,425 for the fair value of incentive shares earned by a wholesale dealer as of December 31, 2023 (see
Note 4). There was a total of 80,964 shares of common stock that were issued to our independent directors in the year ended June 30, 2024, which were previously expensed in the year ended
June 30, 2023. A In the year ended June 30, 2023, we recognized total non-cash stock compensation expense of $1,529,291 as follows: (i) $1,241,563 for the amortized value of the RSUs



granted to our two executive officers, as previously described; (ii) $175,500 for the amortized value of the portion of the new compensation plan for our independent directors that is
attributable to stock; (iii) $85,000 for the net amortized value of the shares granted to various advisors under their annual service contracts; and (iv) $27,228 for the fair value of incentive
shares earned by two wholesale dealers as of December 31, 2022 (see Note 4). There was a total of 384,759 shares of common stock that were issued to various grantees, including our two
executive officers, in the year ended June 30, 2023, of which 75,000 shares were previously expensed in the year ended June 30, 2022. A Other Matters &€ In February 2019, the
Companya€™s Board of Directors approved the establishment of a new 2019 Stock Option Plan with an authorization for the issuance of up to 2,500,000 shares of common stock. The Plan is
designed to provide for future discretionary grants of stock options, stock awards and stock unit awards to key employees and non-employee directors. As of June 30, 2024, we have made total
awards of 1,893,779 shares under the Plan as follows: (i) 1,798,181 shares for the RSUs granted to our three executive officers and a non-executive recipient, as noted above; (ii) 54,964 shares
for the initial services of our three independent directors in the year ended June 30, 2023, pursuant to the new compensation plan adopted in August 2022 for independent directors; and (iii)
40,634 shares granted to several wholesale dealers under an incentive sales program. A A A A 37A A A (3)Income Taxes A The Company is subject to United States federal income taxes at
an approximate rate of 21%. The reconciliation of the provision for income taxes at the federal statutory rate, compared to the Companya€™s income tax expense as reported, is as follows
(rounded to nearest $00): A AA A’ A A A A AA Schedule of income tax expenseA Year Ended June 30,A AA 2024A A 2023A AA AAA AA Income tax benefit computed at statutory
rateA $279,400A A $130,300A Change in valuation allowanceA A (279,400)A A (130,300) Provision for income taxesA $a€ “AA $a€“A A Significant components of the Companya€ ™s
deferred tax assets at the currently enacted corporate income tax rate are as follows (rounded to nearest $00): A AA AAA A A Schedule of deferred taxesA June 30, 2024A A June 30
2023A Deferred income tax assets:A AAAA AAA Net operating lossesA $824,300A A $544,900A Valuation allowanceA A (824,300)A A (544,900) Net deferred income tax assetsA

$a€“A A $a€“A A The Company has a cumulative tax operating loss carry forward as of June 30, 2024 of approximately $3,915,000, with an indefinite expiration period. A (4)Commitments
and Contingencies A Effective January 1, 2021, we secured new corporate and manufacturing office space under a sublease agreement with a company that served as our contract
manufacturer at that time. Under the terms of the sublease agreement, we were required to make rental payments of $10,350 per month during the initial one-year term of the agreement.
Further, under the terms of the sublease agreement, we were granted the right to renew the sublease for additional terms of 12 months each upon mutual agreement of both parties, provided
thirty daysa€™ notice is given for each subsequent term, at a modest increase in the monthly rent, through February 28, 2025. However, we were under no obligation to renew it. At inception
of the sublease, management determined that exercise of the renewal option was not reasonably certain and, notwithstanding that the Company elected to renew the agreement for additional
one year periods as of January 1, 2022, 2023 and 2024, continues to believe that is the case. Accordingly, we have accounted for it as a short-term lease under ASC 842, Leases. Under an
amendment to our supply agreement with our former contract manufacturer in April 2023, we took over direct responsibility for the manufacturing process surrounding our ESS units on June 1,
2023, however, that amendment had no effect on the sublease agreement with our former contract manufacturer (see Note 5). A As indicated in Note 1, the Company sells its proprietary ESS
units through wholesale dealers, primarily in California. In that regard, the Company has entered into agreements with several wholesale dealers operating in California and other states under
which the Company has incentivized the dealers to achieve quarterly sales above targeted levels by agreeing to grant them shares of the Companya€™s common stock for exceeding such
quarterly sales targets, subject to defined maximums, as determined annually on a calendar year basis. A We are dependent on our two main component vendors for our suppliers of batteries,
inverters and other raw materials and the inability of these single-source suppliers to deliver necessary components of our products according to our schedule and at prices, quality levels and
volumes acceptable to us, or our inability to efficiently manage these components, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results. A A A A38A A A
From time to time in the ordinary course of our business, the Company may be involved in legal proceedings, the outcomes of which may not be determinable. The Company is not involved in
any legal proceedings at this time. The results of litigation are inherently unpredictable. Any claims against us, whether meritorious or not, could be time consuming, result in costly litigation,
require significant amounts of management time and result in diversion of significant resources. We are not able to estimate an aggregate amount or range of reasonably possible losses for
those legal matters for which losses are not probable and estimable. A (5)Related Party Transactions A In conjunction with our underwritten public offering completed in August 2022, we
appointed the former owner of our contract manufacturer to become a director of the Company. At the time of his appointment, the former owner of our contract manufacturer still had
significant related party influence over its operations in his capacity with the contract manufacturera€™s new parent company. However, we amended our agreement with our contract
manufacturer, effective April 1, 2023, resulting in our taking over direct responsibility for our manufacturing operations from that company, thus eliminating the related party relationship. Prior
to the termination of such relationship, we made contractual payments to that company to assemble our energy storage systems during the period from July 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 in the
total amount of $669,424. Additionally, we made contractual payments to that company for rental of our office space during the period from July 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 in the total amount
of $95,250 (see Note 4). A (6)Subsequent Events A In July 2024, we issued a total of 9,776 shares of our common stock, consisting of 7,776 shares issued to a wholesale dealer under our
incentive sales program and 2,000 shares issued to a non-employee adviser. A In September 2024, we entered into an agreement with a newly formed financing entity whereby we obtained a
line of credit for borrowings of up to $5,000,000. Under this agreement, we will be required to make monthly payments to the lender of accrued interest, at the rate of 16% per annum, on any
outstanding borrowings that we make, with the principal and any unpaid accrued interest being due at maturity in September 2026. In order to secure such borrowings, we have granted a
security interest in all of our assets to the lender. As a condition of receiving this line of credit from the lender, we have agreed not to issue any securities pursuant to the Companya€™s Form
S-3 (file number 333-280400), without the lendera€™s consent, so long as any borrowings remain outstanding. A A A A A A A AAA A A39A A A ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND
DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE A None. A ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES A Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and
Procedures. A Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer, who is our principal executive officer, and our Chief Financial Officer, who is our principal financial officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act), as of June 30, 2024, the
end of the period covered by this Report. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not
effective as of June 30, 2024, largely due to our relatively small number of employees rendering a full segregation of various disclosure control duties impractical. A Inherent Limitations over
Controls A Management does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. Controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the
cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control
issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that
breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by
management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance
that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or deterioration in
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. . Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting A Our principal executive officer and our principal accounting and financial officer, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act RuleA 13a-15(f). Management conducted an assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2024. In making this assessment, management used the criteria described in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Our management concluded that our internal controls over financial reporting were not
effectiveA as of June 30, 2024 largely due to our relatively small number of employees rendering a full segregation of various accounting control and financial reporting duties, which includes
multiple levels of review, impractical. A Our independent registered public accounting firm will not be required to formally attest to the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial
reporting for as long as we are an 4€ceemerging growth companya€ or a a€cenon-accelerated filer.A€ A Changes in Internal Controls A There were no changes in the Companya€™s internal
controls over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2024 that have materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over
financial reporting.A A ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION. A To our knowledge, no director or officer of the Company adopted or terminated a "Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangementa€ or 4€cenon-
Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement,a€ as each term is defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K, during the three months ended June 30, 2024. A ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN
JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS. A Not applicable. A A A40A A A PARTIII A ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE A The
information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 and is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K by reference. A Our Board of Directors has adopted a written Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics applicable to all officers, directors and employees, which is available on our website (Wwww.neovolta.com) under a€ceGovernancea€ within the d€celnvestorsa€ section. We
intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding amendment to, or waiver from, a provision of this Code by posting such information on the website address
and location specified above. A ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION A The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for the 2024 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 and is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-
K by reference. A ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS A The information required by this
item is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2024 and is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K by reference. A Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans A The following table sets
forth information regarding our equity compensation plans at June 30, 2024: A Plan categoryA Number of securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights
(a)A A Weighted- average exercise price of outstanding options, warrants and rights (b)A A Number of securities (by class) remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation
plans (excluding securities reflected in column (a)) (c)A i»¢;Equity compensation plans approved by security holders (1)A A 2,500,000A A $5.99A A A 606,221A Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders (2)A A 58,500A A $4.40A A A 58,500A A A (1) Represents shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding restricted stock units under our 2019
Stock Plan. A A (2) Consists of warrants issued to underwriters. A A’ A A41A A A ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
A The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission within 120 days of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 and is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K by reference. A ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND
SERVICES A The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our proxy statement for the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission within 120 days of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 and is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K by reference. AAAAAAA4A A A PARTIVA
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A (a)Documents filed as part of this Report A 1.All Financial Statements A The financial statements and notes are included herein under
a€cePart II-Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data&d€. A INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A A A Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm A 28 A Balance
Sheets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 29 A Statements of Operations for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 30 A Statements of Stockholdersa€™ Equity for the years ended June 30, 2024
and 2023 31 A Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 32 A Notes to the Financial Statements 33 A 2.Financial Statement Schedules A All schedules are
omitted because they are inapplicable or not required or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto. A 3.Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K A
Exhibit No. A Exhibit Description 3.1 A A Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of NeoVolta, Inc. (incorporated by reference to exhibit 2.1 of the Companya€™s Form 1-A (file no.
024-10942)). 3.2 A A Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of NeoVolta, Inc. (incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.3 of the Companya€™s Form S-1 (file no. 333-264275)). 4.1 A Form of
Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued in July 2022 offering (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.3 of the Companya€™s Form S-1 (file no. 333-264275)). 4.2 A Form of Warrant Agent
Agreement dated July 27, 2022 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.4 of the Companya€™s Form S-1 (file no. 333-264275)). 4.3 A Form of Underwritera€™s Warrant issued in July 2022
offering (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.5 of the Companya€™s Form S-1 (file no. 333-264275)). 4.4 A Description of the Companya€™s Securities (incorporated by reference to exhibit
4.6 to the Companya€™s Form 10-K filed September 27, 2022). 10.1 A A NeoVolta, Inc. 2019 Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to exhibit 6.4 of the Companya€™s Form 1-A (file no. 024-
10942)) 10.2+ A Employment Agreement between NeoVolta, Inc. and Brent Willson dated February 23, 2022 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 6.5 of the Companya€™s Form 1-SA for the
fiscal semi-annual period ended December 31, 2021, filed on March 28, 2022) 10.3+ A Employment Agreement between NeoVolta, Inc. and Steve Bond dated February 23, 2022 (incorporated
by reference to exhibit 6.6 of the Companya€™s Form 1-SA for the fiscal semi-annual period ended December 31, 2021, filed on March 28, 2022) 10.4%*++ A Distribution Agreement, dated as
of October 7, 2019, between NeoVolta, Inc. and PMP Energy, LLC (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.7 of the Companya€™s Form S-1 (file no. 333-264275)). 10.5%*++ A Exclusive Supply
Agreement, effective as of August 30, 2021, by and between NeoVolta, Inc. and NingBo Deye Inverter Technology Co, Ltd. (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.8 of the Companya€™s Form
S-1 (file no. 333-264275)). A A A43A A A 10.6%* A Consent to Sublease dated August 16, 2021 between NeoVolta, Inc. and ConnectPV, Inc. (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.9 of the
Companya€™s Form S-1 (file no. 333-264275)). 10.7+ A Independent Director Agreement, dated April 11, 2022, by and between NeoVolta, Inc. and Susan Snow (incorporated by reference to
exhibit 10.10 of the Companya€™s Form S-1 (file no. 333-264275)). 10.8+ A Independent Director Agreement, dated April 7, 2022, by and between NeoVolta, Inc. and John Hass (incorporated
by reference to exhibit 10.11 of the Companya€™s Form S-1 (file no. 333-264275)).. 10.9+ A Independent Director Agreement, dated July 1, 2022, by and between NeoVolta, Inc. and James
Amos (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.12 to the Companya€™s Form 10-K filed September 27, 2022). 10.10+ A Form of Amendment to Independent Director Agreement, dated
November 4, 2022, by and between NeoVolta, Inc. and each of James Amos, John Hass and Susan Snow (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.13 to the Companya€™s Form 10-Q filed
November 10, 2022) 10.11+ A Employment Agreement between NeoVolta, Inc. and Ardes Johnson dated April 19, 2024 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the Companya€™s Form 8-
K filed April 24, 2024) 10.12+ A Amendment to Employment Agreement between NeoVolta, Inc. and Brent Willson dated April 22, 2022 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the
Company4a€™s Form 8-K filed April 24, 2024) 10.13 A Line of Credit Agreement between NeoVolta, Inc. and National Energy Modelers, Inc., dated September 3, 2024 (incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.1 to the Companya€™s Form 8-K filed September 4, 2024) 19.1* A Insider Trading Policy 23.1* A Consent of MaloneBailey, LLP 31.1* A Certification of Principal
Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 31.2* A Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 32.1* A
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 32.2* A Certification of Principal
Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 97.1* A NeoVolta, Inc. Restatement Recoupment Policy
101.INS * A Inline XBRL Instance Document 101.SCH * A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101.CAL * A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF * A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document 101.LAB * A Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document 101.PRE * A Inline XBRL Taxonomy
Extension Presentation Linkbase Document 104 A Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101) A + Management contract or compensatory plan or
arrangement. * Filed herewith. ** Previously filed. ++Pursuant to Item 601(b)(10)(iv) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC, certain portions of this exhibit have been redacted. The
Company hereby agrees to furnish supplementally to the SEC, upon its request, an unredacted copy of this exhibit. A ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY. A None. A A A A44A A A
SIGNATURES A Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the



undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. A A NEOVOLTA, INC. A A A A By: /s/ Ardes Johnson A A Ardes Johnson A A Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) A Date:
September 27, 2024 A Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities
and on the dates indicated. A Signature A Title A DateA A A A A /s/ Brent Willson A Chairman, Chief Technology Officer, and A September 27, 2024 Brent Willson. A DirectorA A A A
A A A /s/ Ardes Johnson A Chief Executive Officer A September 27, 2024 Ardes Johnson. A (Principal Executive Officer) A AAAAA A /s/Steve Bond A Chief Financial
Officer and Director A September 27, 2024 Steve Bond. A (Principal Financial & Accounting Officer) A AAAAAA /s/James Amos A Director A September 27, 2024 James Amos AAA
A A /s/ Susan Snow A Director A September 27, 2024 Susan SnowA A A A A A A A A /s/John Hass A Director A September 27, 2024 John Hass AAAAAAA45A A A EX-19.12
neovolta_ex1901.htm INSIDER TRADING POLICY Exhibit 19.1 A NeoVolta, Inc. A INSIDER TRADING POLICY (adopted September 15, 2022) A Purpose A This Insider Trading Policy (the
4€cePolicya€) provides guidelines with respect to transactions in NeoVolta, Inc. (the &4€eCompanya€) securities and the handling of confidential information about the Company and the
companies with which the Company does business. The Companya€™s board of directors has adopted this Policy to promote compliance with federal and state securities laws that prohibit
certain persons who are aware of material nonpublic information about a company from: (i) trading in securities of that company; or (ii) providing material nonpublic information to other
persons who may trade on the basis of that information. A Persons Subject to the Policy A This Policy applies to all employees of the Company (and any future subsidiaries), and all members of
the Companya€™s board of directors. The Company may also determine that other persons should be subject to this Policy, such as contractors or consultants who have access to material
nonpublic information. This Policy also applies to family members, other members of a person&€™s household and entities controlled by a person covered by this Policy, as described below. A
Transactions Subject to the Policy A This Policy applies to transactions in the Companya€™s securities (collectively referred to in this Policy as &ceCompany Securitiesa€), including the
Companya€™s common stock, options to purchase common stock, or any other type of securities that the Company may issue, including (but not limited to) preferred stock, convertible
debentures and warrants, as well as derivative securities that are not issued by the Company, such as exchange-traded put or call options or swaps relating to the Companya€™s Securities. A
Administration of the Policy A Steve Bond shall serve as the Compliance Officer for the purposes of this Policy, and in his absence, Brent Willson or another employee designated by the
Compliance Officer shall be responsible for administration of this Policy. All determinations and interpretations by the Compliance Officer shall be final and not subject to further review. A
Individual Responsibility A Persons subject to this Policy have ethical and legal obligations to maintain the confidentiality of information about the Company and to not engage in transactions in
Company Securities while in possession of material nonpublic information. Persons subject to this policy must not engage in illegal trading and must avoid the appearance of improper trading.
Each individual is responsible for making sure that he or she complies with this Policy, and that any family member, household member or entity whose transactions are subject to this Policy, as
discussed below, also comply with this Policy. In all cases, the responsibility for determining whether an individual is in possession of material nonpublic information rests with that individual,
and any action on the part of the Company, the Compliance Officer or any other employee or director pursuant to this Policy (or otherwise) does not in any way constitute legal advice or
insulate an individual from liability under applicable securities laws. You could be subject to severe legal penalties and disciplinary action by the Company for any conduct prohibited by this
Policy or applicable securities laws, as described below in more detail under the heading 4€ceConsequences of Violations.4€ A A A A1A A A Statement of Policy A It is the policy of the
Company that no director, officer or other employee of the Company (or any other person designated by this Policy or by the Compliance Officer as subject to this Policy) who is aware of
material nonpublic information relating to the Company may, directly, or indirectly through family members or other persons or entities: A 1.Engage in transactions in Company Securities,
except as otherwise specified in this Policy under the headings 4&€ceTransactions Under Company Plans,&€ 4€ceTransactions Not Involving a Purchase or Salea€ and 4€ceRule 10b5-1 Plans;a€ A
2.Recommend the purchase or sale of any Company Securities; A 3.Disclose material nonpublic information to persons within the Company whose jobs do not require them to have that
information, or outside of the Company to other persons, including, but not limited to, family, friends, business associates, investors and consulting firms, unless any such disclosure is made in
accordance with the Companya€™ s policies regarding the protection or authorized external disclosure of information regarding the Company; or A 4.Assist anyone engaged in the above
activities. A In addition, it is the policy of the Company that no director, officer or other employee of the Company (or any other person designated as subject to this Policy) who, in the course of
working for the Company, learns of material nonpublic information about a company with which the Company does business (or may in the future conduct business or enter into a transaction),
including a customer, supplier, or business partner of the Company, may trade in that companya€™s securities until the information becomes public or is no longer material. A There are no
exceptions to this Policy, except as specifically noted herein. Transactions that may be necessary or justifiable for independent reasons (such as the need to raise money for an emergency
expenditure), or small transactions, are not excepted from this Policy. The securities laws do not recognize any mitigating circumstances, and, in any event, even the appearance of an improper
transaction must be avoided to preserve the Companya€™s reputation for adhering to the highest standards of conduct. A Definition of Material Nonpublic Information A Material Information.
Information is considered a€cemateriala€ if a reasonable investor would consider that information important in making a decision to buy, hold or sell securities. Any information that could be
expected to affect a companya€™s stock price, whether it is positive or negative, should be considered material. There is no bright-line standard for assessing materiality; rather, materiality is
based on an assessment of all of the facts and circumstances, and is often evaluated by enforcement authorities with the benefit of hindsight. While it is not possible to define all categories of
material information, some examples of information that ordinarily would be regarded as material are: A A-The status of new or updated products; A A A A-The status of any regulatory
approvals for our products; A A A A-Projections of future earnings or losses, or other earnings guidance; A A A A-A pending or proposed merger, acquisition or tender offer; AA A A-A pending
or proposed acquisition or disposition of a significant asset; A A'A A2A A A A-Apending or proposed joint venture; A A A A-Significant related party transactions; AAA A-A change in
management; A A A A-A change in auditors or notification that the auditora€™s reports may no longer be relied upon; A A A A-Development of a significant new product or service; AAA
A-Pending or threatened significant litigation, or the resolution of such litigation; A A A A-Impending bankruptcy or the existence of severe liquidity problems; A A A A-The gain or loss of a
significant customer or supplier; A A A A-A significant cybersecurity incident, such as a data breach, or any other significant disruption in the companya€™s operations or loss, potential loss,
breach or unauthorized access of its property or assets, whether at its facilities or through its information technology infrastructure; or A A A A-The imposition of an event-specific restriction on
trading in Company Securities or the securities of another company or the extension or termination of such restriction. A When Information is Considered Public. Information that has not been
disclosed to the public is generally considered to be nonpublic information. In order to establish that the information has been disclosed to the public, it may be necessary to demonstrate that
the information has been widely disseminated. Information generally would be considered widely disseminated if it has been disclosed through newswire services, publication in a widely-
available newspaper, magazine or news website, or public disclosure documents filed with the SEC that are available on the SEC4€™s website. By contrast, information would likely not be
considered widely disseminated if it is available only to the Companya€™s employees, or if it is only available to a select group of analysts, brokers and institutional investors. A Once
information is widely disseminated, it is still necessary to provide the investing public with sufficient time to absorb the information. As a general rule, information should not be considered fully
absorbed by the marketplace for two trading days. If, for example, the Company were to make an announcement on Monday morning, you should not trade in Company Securities until
Wednesday. Depending on the particular circumstances, the Company may determine that a longer or shorter period should apply to the release of specific material nonpublic information. A
Transactions by Family Members and Others A This Policy applies to your family members who reside with you (including a spouse, a child, a child away at college, stepchildren, grandchildren,
parents, stepparents, grandparents, siblings and in-laws), anyone else who lives in your household, and any family members who do not live in your household but whose transactions in
Company Securities are directed by you or are subject to your influence or control, such as parents or children who consult with you before they trade in Company Securities (collectively
referred to as &€ceFamily Membersa€). You are responsible for the transactions of these other persons and therefore should make them aware of the need to confer with you before they trade in
Company Securities, and you should treat all such transactions for the purposes of this Policy and applicable securities laws as if the transactions were for your own account. A Transactions by
Entities that You Influence or Control A This Policy applies to any entities that you influence or control, including any corporations, partnerships or trusts (collectively referred to as
a€ceControlled Entitiesa€), and transactions by these Controlled Entities should be treated for the purposes of this Policy and applicable securities laws as if they were for your own account. A
A A A3A A A Transactions Under Company Plans A This Policy does not apply in the case of the following transactions, except as specifically noted: A Stock Option Exercises. This Policy
does not apply to the exercise of an employee or director stock option acquired pursuant to the Companya€™ s plans, or to the exercise of a tax withholding right pursuant to which a person has
elected to have the Company withhold shares subject to an option to satisfy tax withholding requirements. This Policy does apply, however, to any sale of stock as part of a broker-assisted
cashless exercise of an option, or any other market sale for the purpose of generating the cash needed to pay the exercise price of an option. A Restricted Stock Awards. This Policy does not
apply to the vesting of restricted stock, or the exercise of a tax withholding right pursuant to which you elect to have the Company withhold shares of stock to satisfy tax withholding
requirements upon the vesting of any restricted stock. The Policy does apply, however, to any market sale of restricted stock. A Transactions Not Involving a Purchase or Sale A Bona fide gifts
are not transactions subject to this Policy, unless the person making the gift has reason to believe that the recipient intends to sell the Company Securities while the officer, employee or
director is aware of material nonpublic information. Further, transactions in mutual funds that are invested in Company Securities are not transactions subject to this Policy. A Special and
Prohibited Transactions A The Company has determined that there is a heightened legal risk and/or the appearance of improper or inappropriate conduct if the persons subject to this Policy
engage in certain types of transactions. It therefore is the Companya€™s policy that any persons covered by this Policy may not engage in any of the following transactions, or should otherwise
consider the Company4€™s preferences as described below: A Short Sales. Short sales of Company Securities (i.e., the sale of a security that the seller does not own) may evidence an
expectation on the part of the seller that the securities will decline in value, and therefore have the potential to signal to the market that the seller lacks confidence in the Companya€™s
prospects. In addition, short sales may reduce a sellera€™s incentive to seek to improve the Companya€™s performance. For these reasons, short sales of Company Securities are prohibited. In
addition, Section 16(c) of the Exchange Act prohibits officers and directors from engaging in short sales. A Publicly-Traded Options. Given the relatively short term of publicly-traded options,
transactions in options may create the appearance that a director, officer or employee is trading based on material nonpublic information and focus a directora€™s, officera€™s or other
employeea€™ s attention on short-term performance at the expense of the Companya€™s long-term objectives. Accordingly, transactions in put options, call options or other derivative
securities, on an exchange or in any other organized market, are prohibited by this Policy. A Hedging Transactions. Hedging or monetization transactions can be accomplished through a
number of possible mechanisms, including through the use of financial instruments such as prepaid variable forwards, equity swaps, collars and exchange funds. Such transactions may permit a
director, officer or employee to continue to own Company Securities obtained through employee benefit plans or otherwise, but without the full risks and rewards of ownership. When that
occurs, the director, officer or employee may no longer have the same objectives as the Companya€™ s other shareholders. Therefore, directors, officers and employees are prohibited from
engaging in any such transactions, without receiving for approval by the Compliance Officer. Any request for clearance of a hedging or similar arrangement must be submitted to the
Compliance Officer at least two weeks prior to the proposed execution of documents evidencing the proposed transaction and must set forth a justification for the proposed transaction. A A A
A 4A A A Margin Accounts and Pledged Securities. Securities held in a margin account as collateral for a margin loan may be sold by the broker without the customera€™s consent if the
customer fails to meet a margin call. Similarly, securities pledged (or hypothecated) as collateral for a loan may be sold in foreclosure if the borrower defaults on the loan. Because a margin sale
or foreclosure sale may occur at a time when the pledgor is aware of material nonpublic information or otherwise is not permitted to trade in Company Securities, directors, officers and other
employees are prohibited from holding Company Securities in a margin account or otherwise pledging Company Securities as collateral for a loan. A Standing and Limit Orders. Standing and
limit orders (except standing and limit orders under approved Rule 10b5-1 Plans, as described below) create heightened risks for insider trading violations similar to the use of margin accounts.
There is no control over the timing of purchases or sales that result from standing instructions to a broker, and as a result the broker could execute a transaction when a director, officer or
other employee is in possession of material nonpublic information. The Company therefore prohibits placing standing or limit orders on Company Securities, unless such order are structured to
comply with the pre-clearance requirements set forth in this Policy. If a person subject to this Policy determines that they must use a standing order or limit order, the order should be limited to
a short duration and must otherwise comply with the restrictions and procedures outlined below under the heading &€ceAdditional Procedures.4€ A Additional Procedures A The Company has
established additional procedures in order to assist the Company in the administration of this Policy, to facilitate compliance with laws prohibiting insider trading while in possession of material
nonpublic information, and to avoid the appearance of any impropriety. A Pre-Clearance Procedures. All Company directors, employees, officers, as well as the Family Members and Controlled
Entities of such persons, may not engage in any transaction in Company Securities without first obtaining pre-clearance of the transaction from the Compliance Officer. Such pre-clearance must
be in the form of an email from the Compliance Officer: (i) to the officera€™ s or employeea€™s Company-provided email account; or (ii) if to a director or to an individual that does not have a
Company-provided email account, to such email account with which the individual conducts business with the Company (or if no such email account exists, in a written notification from the
Compliance Officer). A request for pre-clearance should be submitted to the Compliance Officer at least two business days in advance of the proposed transaction. Any pre-cleared trades must
be effected within two business days of receipt of pre-clearance unless an exception is granted. Transactions not effected within such time limit would be subject to pre-clearance again. The
Compliance Officer is under no obligation to approve a transaction submitted for pre-clearance, and may determine not to permit the transaction. If a person seeks pre-clearance and permission
to engage in the transaction is denied, then he or she should refrain from initiating any transaction in Company Securities, and should not inform any other person of the restriction. A When a
request for pre-clearance is made, the requestor should carefully consider whether he or she may be aware of any material nonpublic information about the Company, and should describe fully
those circumstances to the Compliance Officer. The requestor that is a director or executive officer should also indicate whether he or she has effected any non-exempt a€ceopposite-waya€
transactions within the past six months, and should be prepared to report the proposed transaction on an appropriate Form 4 or Form 5. The requestor should also be prepared to comply with
SEC Rule 144 and file Form 144, if necessary, at the time of any sale. A Black-Out Periods. No officer, director or other employee shall purchase or sell any security of the Company during the
period beginning at 11:59 p.m., Eastern time, on the 14th calendar day before the end of any fiscal quarter of the Company and ending upon the completion of the second full trading day after
the public release of earnings data for such fiscal quarter or during any other trading suspension period declared by the Company, except for purchases and sales made pursuant to the
permitted transactions described herein. For example, if the Companya€™ s fourth fiscal quarter ends at 11:59 p.m., Eastern time, on June 30, the corresponding blackout period would begin at
11:59 p.m., Eastern time, on June 16. For the avoidance of doubt, any designation by the Board of the employees who are subject to quarterly blackout periods may be updated from time to time
by the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Compliance Officer. A A A A5A A A Exceptions to the black-out period policy may be approved only by the Compliance Officer (or, in
the case of an exception for the Compliance Officer or persons or entities subject to this policy as a result of their relationship with the Compliance Officer, the Chief Executive Officer or, in the
case of exceptions for directors or persons or entities subject to this policy as a result of their relationship with a director, the Board). A Event-Specific Trading Restriction Periods. From time
to time, an event may occur that is material to the Company and is known by only a few directors, officers and/or employees. So long as the event remains material and nonpublic, the persons
designated by the Compliance Officer may not trade Company Securities, including making any pre-clearance requests. In addition, the Companya€ ™ s financial results may be sufficiently
material in a particular fiscal quarter that, in the judgment of the Compliance Officer, designated persons should refrain from trading in Company Securities. In that situation, the Compliance
Officer may notify these persons that they should not trade in the Companya€™s Securities, without disclosing the reason for the restriction. The existence of an event-specific trading
restriction period will not be announced to the Company as a whole, and should not be communicated to any other person. Even if the Compliance Officer has not designated you as a person
who should not trade due to an event-specific restriction, you should not trade while aware of material nonpublic information. Exceptions will not be granted during an event-specific trading
restriction period. A Exceptions. The event-specific trading restrictions do not apply to those transactions to which this Policy does not apply, as described above under the headings



d€ceTransactions Under Company Plansa€ and a€ceTransactions Not Involving a Purchase or Sale.a€ Further, the requirement for pre-clearance and event-specific trading restrictions do not
apply to transactions conducted pursuant to approved Rule 10b5-1 plans, described under the heading 4&€ceRule 10b5-1 Plansa€ below. A Rule 10b5-1 Plans A Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange
Act provides a defense from insider trading liability under Rule 10b-5. In order to be eligible to rely on this defense, a person subject to this Policy must enter into a Rule 10b5-1 plan for
transactions in Company Securities that meets certain conditions specified in the Rule (a &€ceRule 10b5-1 Plana€). If the plan meets the requirements of Rule 10b5-1, Company Securities may
be purchased or sold without regard to certain insider trading restrictions. To comply with the Policy, a Rule 10b5-1 Plan must be approved by the Compliance Officer and meet the
requirements of Rule 10b5-1. In general, a Rule 10b5-1 Plan must be entered into at a time when the person entering into the plan is not aware of material nonpublic information. Once the plan
is adopted, the person must not exercise any influence over the amount of securities to be traded, the price at which they are to be traded or the date of the trade. The plan must either specify
the amount, pricing and timing of transactions in advance or delegate discretion on these matters to an independent third party. A Any Rule 10b5-1 Plan must be submitted for approval 20 days
prior to the entry into the Rule 10b5-1 Plan. No further pre-approval of transactions conducted pursuant to the Rule 10b5-1 Plan will be required. A Post-Termination Transactions A This Policy
continues to apply to transactions in Company Securities even after termination of service to the Company. If an individual is in possession of material nonpublic information when his or her
service terminates, that individual may not trade in Company Securities until that information has become public or is no longer material. A A A A A A6A A A Consequences of Violations A
The purchase or sale of securities while aware of material nonpublic information, or the disclosure of material nonpublic information to others who then trade in the Companya€™s Securities, is
prohibited by federal and state laws. Insider trading violations are pursued vigorously by the SEC, U.S. Attorneys and state enforcement authorities as well as the laws of foreign jurisdictions.
Punishment for insider trading violations is severe, and could include significant fines and imprisonment. While the regulatory authorities concentrate their efforts on the individuals who trade,
or who tip inside information to others who trade, the federal securities laws also impose potential liability on companies and other &€cecontrolling personsa€ if they fail to take reasonable steps
to prevent insider trading by company personnel. A In addition, an individuala€™s failure to comply with this Policy may subject the individual to Company-imposed sanctions, including
dismissal for cause, whether or not the employeea€™ s failure to comply results in a violation of law. Needless to say, a violation of law, or even an SEC investigation that does not result in
prosecution, can tarnish a persona€™s reputation and irreparably damage a career. A Company Assistance A Any person who has a question about this Policy or its application to any proposed
transaction may obtain additional guidance from the Compliance Officer, who can be reached by telephone at (619) 846-4516 or by e-mail at shond@neovolta.com. A Certification A All persons
subject to this Policy must certify their understanding of, and intent to comply with, this Policy. A CERTIFICATION A I certify that: A 1.I have read and understand the Companya€™s Insider
Trading Policy (the 4€cePolicya€). A Iunderstand that the Compliance Officer is available to answer any questions I have regarding the - Policy. A 2.Since September 15, 2022 (the date the
Policy became effective), or such shorter period of time that I have been an employee of the Company, I have complied with the Policy. A 3.I will continue to  comply with the Policy for as long
as I am subject to the Policy. A A Print name: A Signature: A Date: AAAAAAAA7A EX2313
neovolta_ex2301.htm CONSENT OF MALONEBAILEY, LLP Exhibit 23.1 A A A A A A A CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM A A We consent to the
incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-264275), Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-280400), and Registration Statement on Form S-
8 (File No. 333-267823) of our report dated September 27, 2024 with respect to the financial statements of NeoVolta, Inc. appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June
30, 2024. A A /s/ MaloneBailey, LLP www. malonebailey.com Houston, Texas September 27, 2024 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAEX3114
neovolta_ex3101.htm CERTIFICATION Exhibit 31.1 A CERTIFICATION A I, H. Ardes Johnson, certify that: A 1.I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NeoVolta, Inc. (the
a€ceregistranta€); A A A 2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; A A A 3.Based on my knowledge, the financial
statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report; A A A 4.The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have: AAA a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; A A A b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reportmg and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; A A A c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and A A A d)Disclosed in
this report any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrantd€™s internal control over financial reporting; and A A A 5.The

registranta€™ s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit
committee of the registranta€™ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function): AAA a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registranta€™ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and A A A
b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting. A Date:
September 27, 2024 A A /s/ H. Ardes Johnson H. Ardes Johnson Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) A A A EX-31.2 5 neovoltarex3102 htm CERTIFICATION Exhibit 31.2 A
CERTIFICATION A 1, Steve Bond, certify that: A 1.I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NeoVolta, Inc. (the 4€ceregistranta€); A A A 2.Based on my knowledge, this report does
not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; A A A 3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, falrly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; A A A 4.The registranta€™s
other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant
and have: A A A a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being

prepared; A A A b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; A A A
c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and A A A d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; and A A A 5.The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent

function): A A A a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and A A A b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting. A Date: September 27, 2024 A /s/ Steve Bond Steve Bond Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial/Accounting Officer) A A A EX-32.16 neovolta_ex3201.htm CERTIFICATION Exhibit 32.1 A CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 A In connection with the Annual Report of NeoVolta, Inc. (the &€ceregistrantd€) on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2024, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the &€ceReporta€), I, H. Ardes Johnson, Chief Executive Officer of the registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of this Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge: A (1)The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934; and A (2)The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the registrant at the dates
and for the periods indicated. A A /s/H. Ardes Johnson H. Ardes Johnson Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) September 27, 2024 A A EX-32.2 7 neovolta_ex3202.htm
CERTIFICATION Exhibit 32.2 A CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 A In
connection with the Annual Report of NeoVolta, Inc. (the a€ceregistranta€) on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the a€ceReporta€), I, Steven Bond, Chief Financial Officer of the registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of this Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002,
that, to my knowledge: A (1)The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; and A (2)The information contained in the
Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the registrant at the dates and for the periods indicated. A A /s/Steve Bond Steve Bond Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial/Accounting Officer) September 27, 2024 A A EX-97.18 neovolta_ex9701.htm NEOVOLTA, INC. RESTATEMENT RECOUPMENT POLICY Exhibit 97.1 A
NeoVolta, Inc. Dodd-Frank Restatement Recoupment Policy A A 1.Introduction A The Board of Directors (the &€ceBoarda€) of NeoVolta, Inc. (the 4€ceCompanya€) has determined that it is in
the best interests of the Company to adopt a policy providing for the recoupment by the Company of certain Incentive-Based Compensation paid to Executives Officers in the case of a
Restatement (as defined below) (the &€aePolicya€). In such case, the Company (a) may recoup the Incentive-Based Compensation that was paid or that vested and (b) may cancel any
outstanding or unearned Incentive-Based Compensation. A 2.Definitions A For purposes of this Policy, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below: A 4€ceCommitteed€ means
the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. A a€ceErroneously Awarded Compensation&€ means the amount of Incentive-Based Compensation received that
exceeds the amount of Incentive-Based Compensation that otherwise would have been received had it been determined based on the restated amounts resulting from a Restatement, and it must
be computed without regard to any taxes paid. For Incentive-Based Compensation based on stock price or total shareholder return, where the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation is
not subject to mathematical recalculation directly from the information in a Restatement: (a) the amount must be based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the Restatement on the stock
price or total shareholder return upon which the Incentive-Based Compensation was received; and (b) the Company must maintain documentation of the determination of that reasonable
estimate and provide such documentation to the Nasdaq Stock Market. A &€ceExecutive Officera€ means any employee of the Company who is currently, or within the period covered by this
Policy, employed as the Companya€ ™s president, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer (or if there is no such accounting officer, the controller), any vice-president of the
Company in charge of a principal business unit, division, or function (such as sales, administration, or finance), any other officer who performs a significant policy-making function, or any other
person who performs similar significant policy-making functions for the Company, including Executive Officers of the Companya€™ s subsidiaries if they perform such policy making functions
for the Company, and shall include each Named Executive Officer as determined under Section 402(a)(3) or 402(m)(2) of Regulation S-K, as applicable. A 4€ceFinancial Reporting Measuresa€
mean those measures that are determined and presented in accordance with the accounting principles used in preparing the Companya€™s financial statements, and any measures that are
derived wholly or in part from such measures. Stock price and total shareholder return are also Financial Reporting Measures. A Financial Reporting Measure need not be presented within the
financial statements or included in a filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. A &€ceIncentive-Based Compensationa€ means any compensation that is granted, earned, or vested
based wholly or in part upon the attainment of a Financial Reporting Measure. For purposes of this Policy, Incentive-Based Compensation is deemed received in the Companya€™s fiscal period
during which the Financial Reporting Measure specified in the award is attained, even if the payment or grant occurs after the end of that period. A 4€ceNon-Employee Boarda€ means the
members of the Board who are not employed by the Company or any affiliate thereof. A 4€ceRecoupment Rulesd€ means Rule 10D-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 5608
of the Nasdaq Stock Market. A 4€ceRestatementa€ means an accounting restatement required to be prepared by the Company due to the material noncompliance of the Company with any
financial reporting requirement under the securities laws, including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial statements that is material to the
previously issued financial statements, or that would result in a material misstatement if the error were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period. The date of a
Restatement shall be the earlier to occur of: (a) the date the Companya€™s board of directors, a committee of the board of directors, or the officer or officers of the Company authorized to take
such action if board action is not required, concludes, or reasonably should have concluded, that the Company is required to prepare a Restatement; or (b) the date a court, regulator, or other
legally authorized body directs the Company to prepare a Restatement. The Companya€™ s obligation to recover Erroneously Awarded Compensation is not dependent on if or when restated
financial statements are filed. A A A A1A A A 3.Administration of this Policy A This Policy shall be administered by the Committee. The Committee shall have full power and authority to
construe and interpret this Policy, and to recommend to the Non-Employee Board its determinations as to whether recoupment is required under the Policy, the amount of Incentive-Based
Compensation to recoup from an Executive Officer and whether any other action should be taken pursuant to Section 6 of the Policy. Upon the approval of the Committeea€™ s recommendations
by a majority of the members of the Non-Employee Board (even if less than a quorum), the final decision shall be binding and conclusive on all parties. A 4.Recoupment of Incentive
Compensation A In the event that the Company is required to prepare a Restatement, the Company must recover reasonably promptly the Erroneously Awarded Compensation received by a
person (a) after beginning service as an Executive Officer, (b) who served as an Executive Officer at any time during the performance period for that Incentive-Based Compensation, and (c)
during the recovery period described in Section 5 below. Recovery is subject only to those exceptions set forth in the Recoupment Rules. A The Committee can recommend that the Non-
Employee Board recoup from the Executive Officer all or a portion of the following in order to satisfy the Executive Officera€™s recoupment obligation: A Cash Incentive Plan: The Committee
can recommend that the Non-Employee Board (i) cancel and forfeit the Executive Officera€™ s annual or other cash incentive opportunity for the then current plan year, and/or (ii) require
repayment of any annual or other cash incentive awards previously paid for prior years within the period described in Section 5. A Stock Plan: The Committee can recommend that the Non-
Employee Board (i) cancel and forfeit any outstanding equity awards under its stock-based plans, (ii) require the Executive Officer to return a number of shares of Company stock received upon
vesting and settlement of any restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards during the period described in Section 5 (or pay the cash value of such shares), and (iii) require the Executive
Officer to return a number of shares received upon the exercise of any stock options during the period described in Section 5 (or pay the cash value of such shares). The cash value shall be
determined as of the date of the Committeed€™s demand for recoupment. A The Committee can also recommend that the Non-Employee Board recoup similar compensation under any
subsequently adopted plans, arrangements or agreements, or compensation under any severance arrangements or any non-qualified deferred compensation arrangements. A 5.Limitation on
Period for Recoupment A In the event that the Company is required to prepare a Restatement, the Company must recover Erroneously Awarded Compensation received by Executive Officers
during the three completed fiscal years immediately preceding the date that the Company is required to prepare a Restatement, and any transition period (that results from a change in the
Companya€™s fiscal year) of less than nine months within or immediately following those three completed fiscal years. A A A A A2A A A 6.No Impairment of Other Remedies A This Policy
shall not preclude the Committee from recommending that the Non-Employee Board take any other action to enforce an Executive Officera€™s obligation to the Company, including termination
of employment, institution of civil proceedings, or action to effect criminal proceedings. A 7.Miscellaneous A Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent any provision of applicable law,




including the Recoupment Rules, requires non-discretionary recoupment or would result in a larger recoupment than permitted under this Policy, the provision of such applicable law shall
supersede the relevant provisions of this Policy. A 8.Effective Date A This Policy shall apply to all Incentive Compensation paid, awarded or granted on or after October 2, 2023. A A Policy
Acknowledgment and Consent A I hereby acknowledge that I have been designated an Executive Officer, I acknowledge and agree to the terms of this Policy, I agree to fully cooperate with the
Company in connection with the enforcement of the Policy, including the repayment by or recovery from me of Erroneously Awarded Compensation, and I agree that the Company may enforce
its rights under the Policy through any and all reasonable means permitted under applicable law as the Company deems necessary or appropriate under the Policy. A A

A A Printed Name: Date: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAZAA
EX-101.SCH 9 neov-20240630.xsd XBRL SCHEMA FILE 00000001 - Document - Cover link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 00000002 - Statement - Balance Sheets
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 00000003 - Statement - Balance Sheets (Parenthetical) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 00000004 -
Statement - Statements of Operations link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 00000005 - Statement - Statements of Operations (Parenthetical) link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 00000006 - Statement - Statements of Stockholders' Equity link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 00000007 - Statement -
Statements of Cash Flows link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995513 - Disclosure - Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995514 - Disclosure - Equity link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995515 - Disclosure - Income Taxes link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995516 - Disclosure - Commitments and Contingencies link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995517 - Disclosure - Related Party
Transactions link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995518 - Disclosure - Subsequent Events link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995519 -
Disclosure - Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Policies) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995520 - Disclosure - Business and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995521 - Disclosure - Equity (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink
link:definitionLink 995522 - Disclosure - Income Taxes (Tables) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995523 - Disclosure - Schedule of inventory (Details)
link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995524 - Disclosure - Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Details Narrative) link:presentationLink
link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995525 - Disclosure - Equity (Details - Warrant activity) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995526 - Disclosure - Equity (Details
Narrative) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995527 - Disclosure - Income Taxes (Details - Schedule of income tax expense) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink
link:definitionLink 995528 - Disclosure - Income Taxes (Details - Schedule of deferred taxes) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995529 - Disclosure - Income Taxes
(Details Narrative) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink link:definitionLink 995530 - Disclosure - Related Party Transactions (Details Narrative) link:presentationLink link:calculationLink
link:definitionLink EX-101.CAL 10 neov-20240630_cal.xml XBRL CALCULATION FILE EX-101.DEF 11 neov-20240630_def.xml XBRL DEFINITION FILE EX-101.LAB 12 neov-20240630_lab.xml
XBRL LABEL FILE Class of Stock [Axis] Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share Warrants, each warrant exercisable for one share of common stock Equity Components [Axis] Common Stock
[Member] Additional Paid-in Capital [Member] Retained Earnings [Member] Concentration Risk Benchmark [Axis] Revenue Benchmark [Member] Concentration Risk Type [Axis] Customer
Concentration Risk [Member] Customer [Axis] Dealer One [Member] Dealer Two [Member] Accounts Receivable [Member] Dealer Three [Member] Antidilutive Securities [Axis] Restricted Stock
Units [Member] Counterparty Name [Axis] Officer And Another Employee [Member] Investor Warrants [Member] Underwriter Warrants [Member] One Officer [Member] Sale of Stock [Axis]
Underwritten Public Offering [Member] Units [Member] August Public Offering [Member] Securities Financing Transaction [Axis] May 2018 Notes Payable [Member] October 2021 Notes
Payable [Member] Title and Position [Axis] Chief Executive Officer [Member] Transaction Type [Axis] Milestone 1 [Member] Chief Financial Officer [Member] Award Type [Axis] Restricted
Stock Units (RSUs) [Member] Three Independent Directors [Member] Amortized value of RSUs granted [Member] Independent Directors [Member] Amortized Value Of Shares Granted To
Various Advisors [Member] Fair Value Of Incentive Shares Wholesale Dealer [Member] Fair Value Of Incentive Shares Two Wholesale Dealer [Member] Stock Option Plan 2019 [Member] Three
Executive Officers And One Non Executive Recipient [Member] Several Wholesale Dealers [Member] Public Investors [Member] Underwriters [Member] Assembly Of Energy Storage Systems
[Member] Rental Of Office Space [Member] Statement [Table] Statement [Line Items] Document Type Amendment Flag Amendment Description Document Registration Statement Document
Annual Report Document Quarterly Report Document Transition Report Document Shell Company Report Document Shell Company Event Date Document Period Start Date Document Period
End Date Document Fiscal Period Focus Document Fiscal Year Focus Current Fiscal Year End Date Entity File Number Entity Registrant Name Entity Central Index Key Entity Primary SIC
Number Entity Tax Identification Number Entity Incorporation, State or Country Code Entity Address, Address Line One Entity Address, Address Line Two Entity Address, Address Line Three
Entity Address, City or Town Entity Address, State or Province Entity Address, Country Entity Address, Postal Zip Code Country Region City Area Code Local Phone Number Extension Written
Communications Soliciting Material Pre-commencement Tender Offer Pre-commencement Issuer Tender Offer Title of 12(b) Security No Trading Symbol Flag Trading Symbol Security
Exchange Name Title of 12(g) Security Security Reporting Obligation Annual Information Form Audited Annual Financial Statements Entity Well-known Seasoned Issuer Entity Voluntary Filers
Entity Current Reporting Status Entity Interactive Data Current Entity Filer Category Entity Small Business Entity Emerging Growth Company Elected Not To Use the Extended Transition
Period Document Accounting Standard Other Reporting Standard Item Number Entity Shell Company Entity Public Float Entity Bankruptcy Proceedings, Reporting Current Entity Common
Stock, Shares Outstanding Documents Incorporated by Reference [Text Block] Document Financial Statement Error Correction [Flag] Auditor Firm ID Auditor Name Auditor Location Statement
of Financial Position [Abstract] Assets Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents Accounts receivable, net Inventory, net Prepaid insurance and other current assets Total current assets Total
assets Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current liabilities: Accounts payable Accrued liabilities Total current liabilities Commitments and contingencies (Note 4) Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 33,236,091 shares and 33,155,127 shares issued and outstanding, respectively Additional paid-in capital Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders' equity Total liabilities and stockholders' equity Common Stock, Par or Stated Value Per Share Common Stock, Shares Authorized Common Stock, Shares, Issued Common
Stock, Shares, Outstanding Income Statement [Abstract] Revenues from contracts with customers Cost of goods sold Gross profit Operating expenses: General and administrative Research and
development Total operating expenses Loss from operations Other income (expense): Interest income Interest expense Total other income (expense) Net loss Weighted Average Number of
Shares Outstanding, Basic Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding, Diluted Earnings Per Share, Basic Earnings Per Share, Diluted Beginning balance, value Shares, Outstanding,
Beginning Balance Issuance of common stock in underwritten public offering Issuance of common stock in underwritten public offering, shares Issuance of common stock for conversion of debt
and accrued interest Issuance of common stock for conversion of debt and accrued interest, shares Stock compensation expense Issuance of common stock for conversion of debt and accrued
interest, shares Net loss Ending balance, value Shares, Outstanding, Beginning Balance Statement of Cash Flows [Abstract] Cash flows from operating activities: Adjustments to reconcile net
loss to net cash used in operations: Stock compensation expense Provision for expected credit losses/bad debt expense Reserve for obsolete inventory Changes in current assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable Inventory Prepaid expenses and other current assets Accounts payable Accrued expenses Net cash flows used in operating activities Cash flows from financing activities:
Underwritten public offering of common stock Net cash flows from financing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for interest Cash paid for income taxes Supplemental non-cash financing activities:
Convertible notes payable and accrued interest converted to common stock Pay vs Performance Disclosure [Table] Executive Category [Axis] Individual [Axis] Adjustment to Compensation [Axis]
Measure [Axis] Pay vs Performance Disclosure, Table Company Selected Measure Name Named Executive Officers, Footnote Peer Group Issuers, Footnote Changed Peer Group, Footnote PEO
Total Compensation Amount PEO Actually Paid Compensation Amount Adjustment To PEO Compensation, Footnote Non-PEO NEO Average Total Compensation Amount Non-PEO NEO Average
Compensation Actually Paid Amount Adjustment to Non-PEO NEO Compensation Footnote Equity Valuation Assumption Difference, Footnote Compensation Actually Paid vs. Total Shareholder
Return Compensation Actually Paid vs. Net Income Compensation Actually Paid vs. Company Selected Measure Total Shareholder Return Vs Peer Group Compensation Actually Paid vs. Other
Measure Tabular List, Table Total Shareholder Return Amount Peer Group Total Shareholder Return Amount Net Income (Loss) Company Selected Measure Amount Other Performance
Measure, Amount Adjustment to Compensation, Amount PEO Name Name Non-GAAP Measure Description Additional 402(v) Disclosure Pension Benefits Adjustments, Footnote Erroneously
Awarded Compensation Recovery [Table] Restatement Determination Date [Axis] Restatement Determination Date Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Amount Erroneous Compensation
Analysis Stock Price or TSR Estimation Method Outstanding Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Amount Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Not Yet Determined Name Forgone Recovery due
to Expense of Enforcement, Amount Forgone Recovery due to Violation of Home Country Law, Amount Forgone Recovery due to Disqualification of Tax Benefits, Amount Forgone Recovery,
Explanation of Impracticability Name Compensation Amount Restatement does not require Recovery Awards Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures [Table] Award Timing MNPI Disclosure Award
Timing Method Award Timing Predetermined Award Timing MNPI Considered Award Timing, How MNPI Considered MNPI Disclosure Timed for Compensation Value Awards Close in Time to
MNPI Disclosures, Table Name Underlying Securities Exercise Price Fair Value as of Grant Date Underlying Security Market Price Change Trading Arrangements, by Individual [Table] Trading
Arrangement [Axis] Material Terms of Trading Arrangement Name Title Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted Adoption Date Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement
Terminated Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated Termination Date Expiration Date Arrangement Duration Insider Trading Policies and Procedures [Line Items] Insider Trading Policies
and Procedures Adopted Insider Trading Policies and Procedures Not Adopted Organization, Consolidation and Presentation of Financial Statements [Abstract] Business and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies Equity [Abstract] Equity Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract] Income Taxes Commitments and Contingencies Disclosure [Abstract] Commitments and Contingencies
Related Party Transactions [Abstract] Related Party Transactions Subsequent Events [Abstract] Subsequent Events Description of Business Basis of Presentation Cash and Cash Equivalents
Inventory Revenue Recognition Allowance for Expected Credit Losses Income Taxes Stock Compensation Expense Loss Per Common Share Research and Development Costs Use of Estimates
Related Parties Fair Value Measurements and Financial Instruments Recent Accounting Pronouncements Liquidity Schedule of inventory Schedule of warrant activity Schedule of income tax
expense Schedule of deferred taxes Raw materials, consisting of assembly parts, batteries and inverters Work-in-process Finished goods Total Nature of Operation, Product Information,
Concentration of Risk [Table] Product Information [Line Items] Cash, Uninsured Amount Inventory, Gross [custom:ReserveForObsoleteInventory] Concentration Risk, Percentage Accounts
Receivable, Allowance for Credit Loss Antidilutive shares Offsetting Assets [Table] Offsetting Assets [Line Items] Warrants outstanding, beginning Weighted Average Exercise Price, Beginning
Aggregate Intrinsic Value, Ending Warrants outstanding, beginning Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Grants in
Period, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value Warrants outstanding, beginning Weighted Average Exercise Price, Beginning Warrants and Rights Outstanding, Term Share-Based
Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Forfeited in Period Weighted Average Exercise Price, Beginning Warrants exercisable,
weighted average exercise price Warrants term, exercisable Aggregate Intrinsic Value, Exercisable Subsidiary or Equity Method Investee, Sale of Stock, Type [Table] Subsidiary, Sale of Stock
[Line Items] Unit description Shares issued new, units issued Gross proceeds from sale of equity Net proceeds from sale of equity Debt converted, amount converted Debt converted, shares
issued Class of Warrant or Right, Outstanding Stock Issued During Period, Shares, Restricted Stock Award, Gross Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash Expense Accrued compensation
expenses Income tax benefit computed at statutory rate Change in valuation allowance Provision for income taxes Deferred income tax assets: Net operating losses Valuation allowance Net
deferred income tax assets Operating loss carry forward Related Parties Amount in Cost of Sales Business Description Policy [Policy Text Block] Amortized value of RSUs granted [Member]
Assets, Current Assets [Default Label] Liabilities, Current Equity, Attributable to Parent Liabilities and Equity Gross Profit Operating Expenses Operating Income (Loss) Interest Expense,
Nonoperating Nonoperating Income (Expense) Shares, Outstanding Shares Issued, Shares, Share-Based Payment Arrangement, after Forfeiture Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Inventories Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Expense and Other Assets Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, and Restricted Cash Equivalents, Period Increase (Decrease), Excluding Exchange Rate Effect Cash,
Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, and Restricted Cash Equivalents Forgone Recovery, Individual Name Outstanding Recovery, Individual Name Awards Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures,
Individual Name Trading Arrangement, Individual Name Income Tax, Policy [Policy Text Block] Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments
Other than Options, Grants in Period Deferred Tax Assets, Valuation Allowance EX-101.PRE 13 neov-20240630_pre.xml XBRL PRESENTATION FILE GRAPHIC 14 image_001.jpg GRAPHIC
begin 644 image 001.jpg M_]C_X 02D9)1@ ! 0$ 8 !@ #_VP!# H'IPD'!@H)" D+"PH,#QD0#PX. M#QX6%Q(9)" F)2,@(R(H+3DP*"HV*R(C,DOR-CL]0$! )C!&2T4"2CD_0#W_ MVP!# OL+"P\-
#QTO0$!T]*2,1/3T1/3T1/3T1/3T1/3T)/3T1/3T)/3T1/3T] M/3T1/3TI/3TY/3TI/3TY/3TI/3TI/3W P 1" M, T# 2( A$! Q$! \O M'P 04! 0$! 0% $" P0%!@<("OH+ \0 M1 @$# P($ P4% M! 0 %] O(#
01!1(A,4$&$U%AIR)Q%#*!D:$((T*QP152T? D,V)R@@D* M%A<8&1HE)B7]#A(6&AXB)BI*3E)66 EYBOFJ*CI*6FIZBIJK*SM+6VM[BYNL+#Q,7& MQ\C)RM+3U-76U]JCOVN'BX~3EYN?
HZ>KQ\O/T]2;W~/GZ \0 'P$ P$! 0$! M 0$! 0 $" PO%!@<("OH+ \0 M1$ @$"! 0#! <%! 0 0)W $" M Q$$!12$Q!A)!140=A<1,B,H$(%$*1H;'!"2,540 58G+1"A8D-.$E\1<8&1HF M)R@I*C4V-S@Y.D-
$149'2$E*4U155E=865IC9&5F9VAL:G-T=79W>'EZ@H.$ MAS8:'B(F*DI.4E9:7F)F:H].DI::GJ*FJLK.TM;:WN+FZPL/$Q<;'R,G*TM/4 MU=;7V-G:XN/DY>;GZ.GJ\O/T1?;W~/GZ_IH # ,! (1 Q$
/P#V:BO'=8"( MVK"~%?B3K50Y4M 1,;10)#R3 I1,LI[,GMG->F~'_1)IGB?3Q>:3CQGT8=C0!JT5D>+)'B\(:Q)$[(Z64S*RG!!V'D&0.K4;P L[RWAN[@WO M#?0_ #6W P#'QC[V<].* [7%\8\*?
#S5/$0AFRU90&&]0&YAL8P6;AB.N\ M>E: "H-2 Z'?5?R; XYO!ZA17#>+KR \"?"YA:7KW%[ JO+=2C+$LV"V"3S M@US&@ #G6?$.A6>K77C/4XY;R(3%%+L%#
<@IWB@#V"].KWTNFVIN8H1,$/S@ MMC ]:\]_X5!J7_0[ZK"3?_"*I>$KG6/#0Q.F\(:CJDN]JV,L+$&* F:P;:5 "WB1H M)2?LDN!D_P!T]# " !X/XUVIMH& XPQDGG.TS6YA3G*:M>S6YE?V[
M) SQ3\ZI77BV6UFV-9J01D-YG7*Z'[+; \ /"+ +X%<7>D>(0$:6EHJK;1 M$J60 <#[S?T%36]1%*TM6*K*<$K/5G5:-J$NIV?VB2 OHQP@WIW#UKOKR+Q; MYGN AWN\UU-)-*S2Y>1RS']X
MW&".0!6]~ #0#IU-/%FIW M1$]Q"~66=.N><[SZ5KZ\+12U71+& ;QEJLINK=)B@+';N4'&=_00!ZW45Q<1 M6MNW\A(HQNICV%8.CV4?@7PI/A VIJTUY%;%YI+F?.['IR3"~'UKS;PO\39]
M6\774'B!731]9;R[=7)"P$<+@" 0D=\'B@#V*PU&VU.V$I)YD9.,X(JU533 MM-M]+MO(M5(3.3DY)-6Z /+= 19/CWXE1U#(UD%96&01B+@BI=?"&EYH~HMK MO@&X-
E>+RJEG$/3%:VD>%-2LOBOK'B"980L%W;B.,A\MG$?4?\ M!-=00!Y@>+_ >D>K7;?1>5=%1748PZ>Q O#V/Z5AMX&U*W"$5QX7B>":]RP1]Q M5&'G;P>>G'ZT G>MO_A5 M7B/_
*W4O0RD_P#CES5-'T/XH:%I4&G6$VEIL 0 JBL58@$D]2/4U=\GXM?\ & ME?DG"% %OXMP/: "[H)96F>)H$:1NKD$ D_6ND\! P#(A:' ->47 H(IJW MAJ \5_#["R=;GCCU.2-6>6,902*L5Y*W_)R2_\
70\ ~“T*M~3\60"?C20R3_"K'@ P)KL/C&7Q1 MXKO08);XH4CC@Z#*{ M;65LSVX YZLG8 AT *NCK@-;AD\+>)HMOME_T:9BVT=/IM?ZC_ZU837)+G7S M.20"ZFJJVV90~+M9 LS3?)B;%Q<
J,=57N?Z40A"2/[/TT3S+BXN &(/55[# M~M<]I<3]J?LD)#;3T 'W5_'J?QKT"B"YY\["~0]J+]M-U7MLO\ ,\E; M_DY)?~0?_P!H5ZU7G/C+P)KD_B~'Q1X508(;]4"/-T.MR."#D<$&JWD_%K
M_GXTK\D_PK<[#L?'/ (BZY UXR_~@FO./#0_";0]?TF_P#0Q5W4=%"*>M6$ MVGWEYIB6URICE*[0=IZC(7/Y5T""~19M-"%=SX:L95GNY(6R[":K.S9/T";\* M %" #W _)-=- WI?\
T8U=07D&A~'OB=X=TF+3=.ETQ+:(L45BK'DDGDCU-:'D M_%0_)"-* )A\* +OQN_Y)\W_7U'_6NJ\(?\B;HO_7C# P"@"N<\9>&]>\4?
M#JVTZ3[.~K[XWG.X*F1G.#CWK4FLM>+K;P7HDG" C12;KR9>1N'7/LOZMQV%=/XS"'%G]G@:'2] M+A$=QIB;K,JVA2D_P"U_/!|J3X9"!&\'Z29--?E)-5NVS,ZG<%4'A0?U/O]*[ M>@#@?
A3XT;Q'HK:=]#$:KIXV2!~&DO0S,SPII"Z+1,5M MPI3\TK#NYZ X?A6G110E9600BH145L@HHHIE!1110 4444 %%%% !1110 44 %44 ?_]D! end GRAPHIC 15 image 002.jpg GRAPHIC begin 644
image_002.jpg M_]C X 02D9)1@ ! 0% 8 !@ #_VP!# H'!PD'!@H)" D+"PH,#QD0#PX. M#QX6%Q(9)" F)2,@(R(H+3DP*"HV*R(C,DOR-CL]0$! )C!&2T4~2CD_0#W_MVP!# OL+"P\-
#QTO0$!T1*2,1/3T1/3T1/3T1/3T1/3T1/3T1/3T1/3T1/3T] M/3T1/3T1/3T1/3T1/3T1/3TI/3TI/3W_P 1" IM )@# 2( A$! Q$! \0 M'P 04! 0$! 0% $" P0%!@<("OH+_\0 M1 @$# P($ P4% M! 0 %] O(#
01!1(A,4$&$U%AIR)Q%#*!D:$((T*QP152T? D,V)R@@D* M%A<8&1HE)B7]#A(6&AXB)BI*3E)66 EYBOFJ*CI*6FIZBIJK*SM+6VM[BYNL+#Q,7& MQ\C)RM+3U-76U]JCOVN'BX~3EYN?
HZ>KQ\O/T]?;W"/GZ \0 'P$ P$! 0$! M 0$! 0 $" PO%!@<("OH+_\0 M1$ @$"! 0#! <%! 0 )W $" M Q$$!2$Q!A)!140=A<1,B,H$(%$*1H;'!"2,540 58G+1"A8D-.$E\1 <8&1HF M)R@I*C4V-S@Y.D-
$149'2$E*4U155E=865IC9&5F9VAIL:G-T=79W>'EZ@H.$ MAS8:'B(F*DI.4E9:7F)F:H].DI::GJ*FJLK.TM;:WN+FZPL/$Q<;'R,G*TM/4 MU=;7V-G:XN/DY>;GZ.GJ\O/T1?;W~/GZ_IH # ,! (1 Q$ /P#O-
M+MI™*7 M%2(CH\5GW4>[-;,[~3;2R8SLOMCUP,UP) ™ (#21AFTY1G _IK /6IN2BM2HPE M+X2YJMF)$88KR]E\Q77".)C"(S7=3>,1- RYH/A\ MI_]:N4CL%%SYWG<$L2N
MWKFLY3B:1HS[%6'YDSGW]7'RC\:M0Z6%R1(=1/ VI*MC1>/180/16;FC;V,N MQW'P8'EZ+]; -ZY4?DO_P!>021,*D\*ZE<>%]-GMH($N%EE,NYV*GH!CCZ M5NKXWO&Q H$(S TT-




:JM"VYBV4OL1_$KQ/"VGRZOIDB?>/,.1\P'/Y=#7FL M6HPVEG%+L#RJQ'S#@?3U_&NCUK3XM>U.2]NE.~3JH8E0:SY/#<7V<1)(R1@] M HKGE.,G]'U:1V,.35I;B1Y;F0")NB!>">U68M?6XO( -
MLJD)O1?N@=_?TJ M>;08V&TSRD 8Z#BDMM%M;;>?GD8XVN2/D(]!0~ 1H/J13L6]1M?.M'B-X9F0B M15)XP>Q'8UE'1;LP-)9CS90?N8P%! ~ 0>MBV2*SWEHC <;LD[P, F*CO/$=U)* MZ!0D>-
H"=0?2H3G'2)$Z;A\12@2STNTV. G7)R6D[9]![50DOG:(G8]J01A1 MZ]Z+F[\QC'K,R P"%),>,-%3=PU_M!73 !IC= %'RR;1 M]G3C'UKF *D3K)N _"N.=E)I'H4[N";(P\ 0.<$"@K-OYA%?
9W%>,,1US6TML M9#@MCZIKE=2NC'J\17<$6$N&#, P W/17%032*8]V- MC?3K3#>!P%4'Y1P334CDN6 VEBQ"~4+WK9(XCA\*L\OC31"1@#4(/ 1BT5+X6
MY\7:+H4#,]%0GZ~8M%7$:/;8K~.>ZL70 _NKJ!FC)]1@D?E_*]6M76R2"~@4D$ MV)?\B:PHI;C3K:YM)!_I&D7(N8_1J(G#XIL$\:N~)KA5U:SE0_N;RREBSZY M!(K/F=A-BZUJS)?PQ1L,2V84_P#
\'-7CWAT+9*MY"1 MJ<~BXJM*A+2!?"HM;6VIA@2A M:-BQ]<8P/SKC'B\G1TA+'$KY8~HZG] *[+PA++;VD]LORA7C.[UE(/'X9S P M$4ZE2?N(U]J] W M(! VC7,:E83 &RYN!
[VA[EL'&/K6MYL/W2N&QZUMI:LX;-K.96,3$MH) MW?7%*+<=B*~].3\D2 "'<# $M68FOM*EWQDPL8\Y!&2IXK (K52;.6Q-X0&[QCHOM?P?"~C%HIW@M"
M _BW1\9XOH"2/:1:*T0'I5K>K/:/+=KON[1?(N@1S-;GC=10"0:Q]/1(;= MFW3Z;&; 1X9&?P-UA;I\CT48 P *[#P38FZ0 MFN&W>2&\T*>G' /U/"%2,@*S"%6 P!D<8'N<&NQ\(: V96U&UTA M2-
&ROP8'RE@#NB8GT"Y54$N97+>QUM]=22W"V%FV)W&9)! RR3U"I[5/%MC" MVUH (XP S=00M[FJ5E:-&COPR%F#\QI$.1@]H3&YW M.ZRR[0DA4[0-4=#[D?RK'YX%88/ES9D! '
R.HK3T]2"K%L/(1DW7.H7TC=P6"?RK]51011,K&]~0,MT]:9N).Y?0J/S% MO00Z;:0DND(+ -YR6/ZTYV:-MR]M=I*RLDJC[DB"Y:(9.0&21S7 M%+>YT4I:D77!VMCD\BH#'$Y;S&)YZ>E7&N$/
#;1TP*SYT)F9@2.?QIP=GJC M3$/W4RE;6Q%YEV#*"&SV-2ZA-F92K#G@[3FGE7 B) I2;! $D;'W%;QK'+?'1&:["[TZ?P[/:&TNUN+:XX0S.(R3C.,.XQR.E8GBT)#=6>F1 *
M8DWM~7" E .M 3]GB'PF~FRI6FCCS#NYY7H/Z42DVE+H))%V:V75K40 '3=1 M3YU,D*L&7N,]&'N,$=2G\.V7B&P6\*7%E)<'841DV;QSE6(P5[8/(K/T+4C8 MPP6\XDC W1Y.3%CC@]
<"MI[4X(2]M>+(8XA JKB\&) [K>]'T-*,G"6I5[H MDM?&=PVI26.1:=+"R*&DBX,B+W91 P M%'4XY [&ND#9M .L;D21L,@,05(] M017'7MS'K$,45\GV?4; <[XOXFS)&<\,ASR/;03D\1S::RH5A 9?
G.UE20GJX M4$C.>H%=<9]6Y%CKEN.2KR2J1U. 5 /%/~\.9&8'H>/\*Y2;Q5/&RA$C??P MOV&~AJIO$=YORL$ SA5)P? *];* <1TEX DH/18$D.Y3 =/<'BO* $&Q=2
MG]'+8YYIXYSZ5U$WBRZDE\B:UC#0V"G>KLA<\T>+>)G..2/2LM"=PP>F*YR[M3: W31\KT90>H!YKFJP<-5L90:Y>\- MV<2~)M*< \7<)&# +8HH\-DCQ-I?
7Y%R/\45>'=TRHDOO#: \3;4E87MV M/+M+4'F*13[<=ZLZ/'IN97\TF6BL%R7;UQPHINM=5=_IR2~GEN+C7R\TK< MMIDX"]E W\"MBP~*V$5XHU'>]W/YKMY&/E N >INM*5)V+V/%?
&$Q'BIB2? M-"][GTI9OF 0$5H"$]4;[8]J=KL?E]- I~-=[]?P6_M/4Y[N372/.?=L~RIQ[ MOWU# #\#VMVWP"(F1Q@@K9]"#G"~ 6CIIPY23F=3N%TS5V\Z)CIIW~]1E',+=Q M[$'-:5E]\-G&+:\7[3I=T-
K..5'H3Z')/179:C\-|J*HLFI GLW'6NM3X9NL4<9U@E(SE +\#\CF&ABW%4EPV=FQVQA@.S=, 6]JL]A(I4 M"'8IR,'G/X?YXKMC\/UIMS:E(7 P&\OMC&#\W/\ /W].+X=M;JPAUIQN7;\T M.?
QQNK>.FXFCSV:WGEN?)*S$[NP]C5"Y\./<-0:>19 [*@\Y4=3QV M'YUZPW@0M+N~WH .G~C D?B6I) KR1HD>H1Q*HYVVWOV";CW]:&T]!ASZ9KH]/ADL46WD; )/S[AM'U'7G':NV/@*61RIM3
MC8$\A+79E>Z ?Z8H?X>HZ@#4&'S$D>3D$>F":$HH+,XQWV,9&N20.4 5SMHIN M/7('Y5*(I(@S, +;R\$R %\DX]<8SU[5US?#X!CY.H 4A& H@R,]CIZI!X"41
M!/[2FS@]6V=C"~/ZU5T%F<8SQH#*LC*L7WFY~4XZ'U \ USRU =&"~09;D'Y6Q MMSUQ7IM \,Y+V)(5U@10CEE%MG>?4G?5-?A#M/\ R&O "5 ~SKDK*<]$M :
M>R.*,EO~$ETK/' ~F0]/\M5Z%IWPQ73]1M;L:GO~SS)*% ~SXSM(.,[0:BGO0 (A*=QQ5C_ID! end GRAPHIC 16 image 003.jpg GRAPHIC begin 644 image 003jpg M ]C X 02D9)1@ ! 0% 8 !@
# VPI# H'IPD'|@H)" D+"PH,#QDO#PX. M#QX6%Q(9)" F)2,@(R(H+3DP*"HV*R(C,DOR-CL]0$! )C!&2T4~2CD 0#W _MVP!# OL+"P\-#QTO0$!TI*2,1/3T)/3T)/3T1/3TY/3TI/3T)/3T1/3T1/3T]
M/3T)/3TI/3TY/3TY3TI/3TY3TI/3W P 1" "A .<# 2( A$! Q$! \0 M'P 04! 0$! 0% $" PO%!@<("0H+ \0 M1 @$# P($ P4% M! 0 %] O(# 01!1(A,4$&$U%AIR)Q%#*ID:$((T*QP152T? D,V)R@@D*
M%A<8&1HE)B7]#A(6&AXB)BI*3E)66EYBIFJ*CI*6FIZBIJK*SM+6VM[BYNL+#Q,7& MQ\C)RM +3U-76UJCIVN'BX~3EYN?HZ>KQ\O/T]?;W~/GZ \0 'P$ P$! 0$! M 0$! 0 $" P0%!@<("OH+ \0
M1$ @$"! 0#! <%! 0 0)W $" M Q$$!2$Q!A)140=A<1,B,H$(%$*1H;'1"2,5S40 58G+1"A8D-.$E\1 <8& 1 HF M)R@I*C4V-S@Y.D-$149'2$E*4U155E=865ICO&5FIVALG-T=79W>'EZ@H.$
MAS:'B(F*DI.4E9: 7F)F:H].DI::GJ*FJLK.TM;:WN+FZPL/$Q<;'R,G*TM/4 MU=;7V-G:XN/DY>;GZ.GI\O/T1»;W~/GZ 1H # ,! (1 Q$ /P#UBXUFPMIF MAGN%21>JD'CJ*C_X2'3/~?M/RA
A7)>)6QKUP/IW~0K*WUP3Q7X4;NISC~=4\7-=! "VDNAZ1 PD.F?\ : \G_"C A(=, Y~U_[YA A7EU ME] VR$OY7E%)7BF5W&8]04G)/SHN==MK9IXMS!HG21FE4Y"; "U M@]M+:QZC_P )#IG_
#]K P\G_"C_A(=, YU [Y/~%>;1:A;S.B),AD==P3 M/S8P#T~A%50[9'IH2V30LDRX,>YAME7."5/MW%"QW9Z% P )#IG_#]I P\G "I;6+&[F$-O<*AZ* \XWUK" M%FSK\( V6 _E5PQJ VG9?
\ UOVF]17MM!<1*PBFOR;FP-H'KSUH~ MN2WL'MWV/5/[3LO~?N'_ +[%']IV7 /W# WVHIFUBTMYVCF<(1$)0,.-N"V MWKZYJVL)\;,55T+#] 02*/KDET#V[['I?]IV7 /W# P!IBC~T[+ G[A [[%>3
MP:S%U)XR2W0G7:Z'IT-Y; W#%89HY& ROKOHKD !COU&X P"N7]i1 M751]J>TCS&T)(KD?[O\ Z"*R/,KO=3\'66]JW\EW-<7:/)C*HX &! MCTJI P *~T[_)"[[ OX/\*XYX.41.5]S&5!MMW.\R@R<=:
[+ A7VG?\ =] M P! | Al P*~T[ )~[[ OX\*GZC/NA>PEW//KC2K:Z4&?A/X"TN)=TE[>*H[M*H 1380 ~D M3C,.H7;C_9F4 PI*I82K ,/V,NYPKZ?;2&" +!0\ 35VR@'VQD>AJK+H50+NW
M329<2IR,?-00(?1@ 5Z1 P *~T[_)"~[[ OX\*/"~%?:= SIWW ?P?X4UA*] MVD'L9+]>>1:5"]$5XUQH\D8*&QC&T+Z>V:GFLXK@QM.=[13>=&V,%#Z?2N M\ X5]IW #]WW ?P?X4?\* T[ G[OO\
OX/\*7U2H MI[&7D?\*~T[ GIOO™ @ M P */~%?:= SJWW_'\'"%"PE1;2#V,EU.,#A0 .@&!2°9792\* T[ G[OO"~ M_@ PH X5]IW_#JWW ?P?X5/U&?=""~KON<;YE;/A\~(H! LO *MG A7VG?\
M =] W' %7-*'V>DWZ7<-Q=.Z @+ (X(Y&/2KIX.49*5]AQHM-.YOUYQXH?' MB&Z'~[ (5Z/7.:IX,M=4U"6[DN[J-Y,95&&! @81*Z<12=6-D:U(.:LC@Y6+Q M.JD!F!
)&0*SKG2(YVGDCD: &6<(7*CY2Z$$-CWQ@UZ% PKRR P'?~] [Z7 " MC A7EE S PI[ P!]+ A7*L'4CLT9*C)=3SV'2(H+R.>.0J$=9-@'&X*5P.>G M.<4X:3$MEV1~"M>@?\ "O++ G O?~"E_P
*~%>67 | M > 1]+ A3~JU?Y@IC/N>;2: )I(/M)'F(0?DS@";YF>03/&*LVNG&WU66~:? M>TBLNP(% 1;=7H' KRR Y [W OI?\"@ #VQ'74+W _+[7 "AX6]].91[* M?:(;/[((MY]EE*/<2&12PR(R1S@?
7G\:[H M~ =/"74KO_OM?\*0> |-8X&IW9I/M(O\ A2~ TU.Z#V,NYYZ~C>=1;4-=0YD$B MMNC&Q6 ;.-N>006MYE=? P HLO~?~] [Z7_H X5[8DX~WWN?]Y?\ "AX. MHIVA.C)]2MX&?
=J=S UQ P#9A16YH?A>WT*YDFAN;B5I$V$2D$#G/845UT*; MIPY6;TX\L; &W1116Q852U!IMH2&4Q$C[P )J[5.]~ ~*GTH YVZTJ[ESLTYF/~ MTW-4'M)[9LLCH?4?XUU%%
&!1J1;XVSLP'9 FK1@\3R#'GVZM[HLIN&C\5=ZT +1110 4444 5=20/[/TZ>ZV; "EW;?6L>T\3I? >2RI0[C<& MK B09\/7H ZOFO+XV(PO<$=* /26U"ZN\0'X5&;JZ;K*P~EG8 2BX&ZTTQ" ], W _
"U432%/0S?FUBIC8 >ED/XTGD*>NX B:+CL M:S7-NO645$VHVB=).?:L[R(O[@IPC0=%4?A1 < +&C'XC6#B-1& TUK:T;4#J* M/(A4V@"/>N4QBND\-# 17(1&6[T@:-NBBBF(** "J=]]Y/H:N530N]J?
CO! M6HI*6@ Z5XM\20"@T;7!J5E)]IGAOF)7&5"2]JUR.F>H_&O0::S]XH \IL-8FMI-]1Q<1W.XK&?,A#D~VX\UJV>EZ1?6LEQ=[XGD MD8B+=Q&,] ,5Z+HOP~T/3UDY;(S.]3="?@ WL= :EO?"UL1YC?-
C@(@VK"~G M6@#S#1+36TMVGTS498%WNL<>YL2!>~#D"NT"&VM:CXFN;J+4]IA@C#+*D6PL MV[!1/3\]F?P]?6T+);!+:U;<2",L"1CY?2M7X?:/'-M*BNI?!&T ]-VC ID:\M7H
M*]5UL9T6\' 3)OY5YDBP-: DM'*IWZ-28&M8$ 8T'&*L55T CT6K5 PHHHH M *+& "NF\/#%E]2: YFNIT$8L4\T S4AHHHIB"BBB@ JG??P?C5RJEIT3\: M*=(L],Q4'##L:6JUUF.191VH MT52F64-
YL!;:PS@4Q;Z53B10WZ&@"S,K*Y MD$C*A'SH.C>A-5%NRTX4P10;L#N=G(*GM@5:2[BE4@@@'KD5B:@GD3PH#NOR M @~HH MV~IZ==/Y%S=K#+(W[].;C, #10,;K0C U: 2L"~M%/]60T%
#]*+ "BBB M@"IJHW:5=#UB; ~5>5PR](F7=M.,8(R#7K%ZNZQG'JA E7CN2+@].E)@=%IW_M !Z#ZFK54], X]?QJY0,**** "BBB@ KJ1&&+*+_':Y7%=;10Q:1# 8H$R_ M1113 *e+k "JE \ =3ZU;JI?
<3ZT 4Z9*GF1,0?M3]J6@"M9290QGJO2K# (K M_>4'ZBJDO~CW:R?PMU_K5IW"(6;H* *TZ1PD;, @GJ,\5%/8 :[7<>) =\?\ MGWIBE-U.6;[H.3 A5~ @#DIY28"IX(89%;NBMN$OMC~M9 B"S\K-
S&/E<_./0 M~OXU:\.MN2?_(#_ %H VC6BGW%"~E9QK27[H"E "T444 %%%% #)AN@D'JIK MQF5=MT?]XBO9WY10I7D%PH%W+*,='\Z3 U]+YM3]:NU1TK_CW/)Z]*O4#"BB M@=: %VTN***
"NOTX8MXQ L"NOKL;(8C0>B"EU$RU1115 %%%(>E 3BJ=XV M54>]3R-@5GRRI[I-OM0 VBBB@"*YC\V$CN.15)IGDCCCQDCCZGM6E4$5L$G:0 M1/X1Z4 20Q"&(*.0<~1J3-)10 DL2SPO%
(JX(-9F@V[VDUY#)U0]J ?4H#;]=R/250YUZ[7 MDNKC;K-V/~FK?SH 0:1 J'""M7ZSM( U3 6M&D,*IlUHHH =FC(IHI1UH AH 6GK]S\:93U~Y"- | M5~.3(%9S""D~U36DNY!0!H TM,0YI] /1110
5Y5X@7;KIX/~FAKU60+0%"[ M?$=W O I0 [1S\DGUK2K+T< P"LXKAI#"BBB@!1TH)I*7- #X.9HQT~85V4 M/W PKC[0;KN(?[0KL80Y-1113 ** "D(I[4M% $3P( 4"]%WHT% MP/FQ'\*U**
.2N/#;QDM;2,GMU%4Y%U"TP)(_,4=UKN"H/45$]LC]0* ./AU M5 <-E6]&&*NQ7:0_1?C6G=:)!.#N13~%8\ AN2+)MI&7VZB@"ZMSD"U65?] MUD\(/J@- $.CG!D~E:M9&D-\[CVK6S28T+1110
4C JC+, /,=&DD?~T8WD"[@ MIQ[5:CT6"?'[K:#W)H92*.., UMP~'#QY\A/LH] #I-K#C;#D~K GRAPHIC 17 image 004jpg GRAPHIC begin 644 image 004.jpg M_]C X 02D9)1@ ! 0$ 8 !@
# VPI# H'IPD'|@H)" D+"PH,#QDO#PX. M#QX6%Q(9)" F)2,@(R(H+3DP*"HV*R(C,DOR-CL]0$! )C!&2T4~2CD 0#W MVP!# OL+"P\-#QT0$!TI*2,1/3T/3T1/3T1/3T)/3T1/3T)/3T1/3T1/3T]
M/3T]/3TI/3TI/3TI/3TI/3TI/3TI/3W P 1" "Q 6(# 2( A$! Q$! \O M'P 04! 0$! 0% $" P0%!@<("OH+ \0 M1 @$# P($ P4% M! 0 %] O(# 01!1(A,4$&$U%AIR)Q%#*!D:$((T*QP152T? D,V)R@@D*
M%A<8&1HE)B7]#A(6&AXB)BI*3E)66EYBIFJ*CI*6FIZBIJK*SM+6VM[BYNL+#Q,7& MQ\C)RM +3U-76UJCIVN'BX~3EYN?HZ>KQ\O/T]?;W~/GZ \0 'P$ P$! 0$! M 08! 0 $" P0%!@<("0OH+ \0
M1$ @$"! O#! <%! 0 0)W $" M Q$$!2$Q!A)140=A<1,B,H$(%$*1H;'1"2,540 58G+1"A8D-.$E\1 <8&1HF M)R@I*C4V-S@Y.D-$149'2$E*4U155E=865ICI&5FIVAL:G-T=79W>'EZ@H.$
MAS8:'B(F*DI.4E9:7F)F:H].DI::GJ*FJLK.TM;:WN+FZPL/$Q<;'R,G*TM/4 MU=;7V-G:XN/DY>;GZ.G\O/T1»;W~/GZ 1H # ,! (1 Q$ /P#V:JFJSQ6N MDW=Q<1"*&%I&C('S!1G'/TJW36574JZAE88((R"*
.3.MZ%;PAK[3(86,8E MVK &"~4[SW4=D/],UH_\ "6Z3$WE*\GR$JOL9(0+0SG'0 1-~0]:T[03;._4+ M=VT4R@@X=<].G\S~=2K:P+(76"(.3DL$&2?7/XFFVV3&,8[(QY0%=]-/M+ZW MC:2VN)?
+,CY01~YX/?C\: TY+T+ITEVL3$(K-L) /'7~52?9+?9&GD1;8SN1= M@PI]1Z4]8HTC\M454 N@8'Y4BC./B"V0 2+()1]Y ,[?E+ " .<H7\36%;BV\(J>821SCC"?(.?PK4"~SP[57 MRH\*<@;1P?
6F 9+WRFGQ: MQ#(9@T M4L$0CQC8%$&,>F*&M+=BQ:"(E@ -B0' "%SWST M6AO$5DI/~M/4\) "Y;Z#:?RKO~RP< N(N<9~0=N!2 9X06/E1Y8Y;Y1SVYH M IW.MVMK=FU S5HF"
M(R>88D+_-[:, G2"V@4L5AC!8;20HY'I]* ,R?Q-901;F$I?#?NPINR!G'7 MT!]J50$EG&SK*LR,A?(VIX7.3QZX-:(M+< 6\6 " -@X!Z SI?LT&<"3'GG M~$="#0!6&KVW[X-YB- GF2JR\H.V?
KV~ AJ%M?MXY)4FCEC*=,@?,< X'/7YA MQ5];>)'E=8U#2 ?./JO<8YH"RP; GD1;1 #L&* \>([%D#KYI1B &V<'[O/T MRZTB>([-D#8EY&0-OWL#)Q],U>DL+6;R_,MXWIMR#;P#Z I11-8VMQ"8I8(V
MC/5=0% %&;Q#;Q@%8Y'5@A4CC.2H/Y;U /VITBOVLV%02&0@$+C'&,YY[>]7 MA:6X1$$$>U#E1M&%/M11DM_~>$74'[@ZCH: ,T>)[%8(Y)O,CIQDH5R5~4,. MG]#Q3I?
$51"2)%E4KG.5Z8QG\1 D5HFV@8@M#&2.A*CZ4P6%])Y) (C,L@PS% M M-E;MO\S2_9+?CIQ%P2?N#]>M %$>(;(RM%F7S%X9=G(;.- MI]\ A[lU&OB6S:!)&#]6?85/4HIJVL"L&6" (% M1@$(.10
RPOX=1MA/;[MA./F7%6::D:1+MC147T48%.H ** "BBB@ HHHH M ** "BBB@ HHHH **CGF2V@>63.U!D[1D_E0!)15>WNUN695CFQJ ?WD9 M7.?3/7I5B@
HK.CMI[&WE9[MYG>4/EE'0X&. 'TQ6CO 4444 %%%% 11110 M4444 %%%% 11110 4444 %%0W)*Q J2#00Z:99V5I-YIXIM'0?X_T MZUJT 07G_'LWU7~8]>H+S_CV;ZK_ #%3T %%%% 11110 4444
%%%% 11110 M 4444 %%%% $-U J1_UT3 T(5"VDV+SO,UM&9'.6;)Z?X5+= ZD?[Z?"~A"] MYGEU E+1C;=&N!U;V3_* +U";L5&-QZV=C(LL*QQ,,!)$!SCDL ?3DDTB MZ/8]JVY;=5; &02#@?
_K/YGUH?3(0B?90]'EC&$D3K"~/IX'0G~ =.@0&$HM[M1 M%.?ND'Y)/]T TZ 7K1?N-Q3UB, L;3P,"U0#)/&1R1BGIL:V3L45(F:*/R2,Y M¥KC[OMP:8]Q)>NT-FVV-3B2X;U5?4"~ 0>Y].:WCTSR[JW3;'&-
LX')9/[Q] M2#SGT)I7&H="N7H88[>%(85"1 HH55'8"T*0$$ @Y!I:HS"BBB@ HHHH *** M "BBB@ HHHH *** "BBB@ HHHH *** "HK](36LL9) 92, @X(J6H[A!);R M*Q8 J1E6P?P- &3X6D5]+
<*,;9211.3G SG@5M5B>%"S:02S.P,AP6;/&!T MSUSCC%;= &9]1@"~QVDH$S-OF$A& IR1Q~E:=07G_'LWU7"8]>@ HHHH *** M"BBB@ HHHH *** "BBB@ HHJ&[N1:VSRD%B.%4 =68\
#ZF@:5W9%'4CILG6 MT',,;(\ HV6&U/QZGV :TP |@#H!5%+8VUB!(0TSRH\K#NQ89 #L/8"K] M)=RI/HMD%1SP17,1BF170]014E%,A.VPU$6-%2-0]],10, "E(!!!&0>U+10
MI1L2;65[%SP@WO0$1X 3. (*>/IBFWZ)(MRDDOE(T*@0SQ\QI*GO;9IT1X2%G MB;=&3T]P?8CC_P#556*YM]1N[BUE&V;R5\VICAU&3SQV]™E::%R][WC/W6Y MVH-
;DW)C"A3D'[N,>N3TQGFK5C?6ELTGF:K]H+= Q.%")XZ]C~E:$&GVMN]JB M*",;>AVY/7/7Z\T\6=LI1)%0%">N$'IC ~5405AK5B93'YQW#KE2.>>.G7CI4T
M&H6MU(8X9E=P,X&?;/Y9'YTX65]%VBWA 1-@IZ0118\N)%QTV]!Z?X#\] )* M*** "BBD)"@DG '4F@!*C\" (R"5YB>9C.S< X"E/# D@$$@X//2@!:**165 MU#*00>A!H 6BFB1"Y0.N\?PYY +\13]
"BBB@ HHHH *K:A$)M/GC;SMK(0? M)." ]ZLTR7 5/RI\IY)Q~M &9X<>W,2PMJUP8D8]//"[AP#CY>,< T[5K5 MD>&K6:STLQ3]JD.<;6# <8'<$\ZUZ
(+S_CV;ZK_,5/68+6>"SD\Z8>WHOOU/MWO1QI%&]1 M]%11@*HP *G)+ZQBGB%0"YV*8@2,+N'/UKI? >MWNNZ5< M3ZA(KR)/L4]@7C:#V"~MQI1[59HHW&FT[HJ6UX6D M~ SW*B*Y S@?=
<>JGN/;J*MU#58+T@ECB. M<#"R>Q]& 0]02EMN592UB7:%%*9 4444 %177 'I- N- *:BNO~/2; '& MEO!C7T=@UQ(+@7!8]18(0!G&T$="AZ]/6JPCTH!#Y5X$+*IN7AC\O UO3\JZ M6A
U: 04Z@#ETCTP,NU;Z:144,XYYX/.3U]1TI9)--E@@ACBNW2!6C!4XP. M[[)+M+@[3@H0& GC\Z ,?P@JKI#A M=G~M_@ W5 R/;!ZUO5D"'7@DL)&MS-M,I\TC.2 >@ &,\:UJ (+S_ (IF
M~] S%3U!>?\'LWU7~8]>@ HHHH :SJI4$X+' ]Z@74+5E+"=,#N3@'Z>00] M*=/ *~W P!\ P#H)K#B:S>'S1I$YW*N QXQC:/3AC[<4 ;T=Q#,[1%*CLG MW@ISCZU+6+!.UF6~S:7*L;&\%CP
1(QVI@!~E3?VO*(_LZZ(SC(7GO_ (?] M.: -2BJ]E!X22?D?K5B@ HHHH *H,HU" 9&":VMOO+V>3KSZA1C\3 M[5/>W)MK8L@#2L0D:G~)CT_~O[ TZTMQ:VR1
EB.68168\D_B*W3?/*D:9QN=@!G\:A74[%V"K>6Q8G E7)/YUS/Q. /A5]=WYKN\<,WE,820 MQZ YZU1WI@T*Q7.V)ESC.'(RICCK[#\ M] &%KW[-%MO[;S5+>:Q
POPP/T%3T!L4K"1XVDLYF+20\JS'ET/0 4 M=#1/>KM4]0C=0EW"L:6#)VCJZ'[R P!1[@5:CD2:-9(V# (X#*1W!I+L7+7WA MU%%(2 ,G@4R!:BNO"/2; <;~5.\V/~~OYUA>
(/$#Z:\D"VXE!AWOIYYST%95 M:T*4>:;T+A3E-V101 ZM?H*=6)H6NOJLK1-;B(+&&~ 1D 3%;=.E5A5CS0>@I MP<':04445H2%%%% 11110 4444 %172NIKL;;*G:V,X/Z5+4-T"UK*%-+%2
MIY7&1~?'YT 9?A7 ) X)4*3(20/7BMJL+P@B1Z0ZQO&P\X\IC'0=Q"?XX[5 MNT 4)+>2&TH.:=0!!- Q\6 \ OG T$U/4$W~OM \ ?/A Z":GH **]SZE9VW M~NNH4]BXS ~5%KA8M45BS ~*]-
BX1Y)3 L(?ZXK/G\:]K>S &1 P"@JU3D~A:I MR?0ZJBN( P"$NU SJY$0C!R45>H],FNCN-6BETU);:4*9U."/ +,#[S' = G M@=Z4H..X.FUN31?Z9J+3=8;;,~*T9/$]1&Y2QD\FV7Y8TV
D#W)'4]37"ZK,1QJMU-*VZ1Y2S'&, MFJGOE320TJHTW*7(C.IB(TZ:J/;3\3U M~JY Y" ZY'~8KAH %VJH"6ECD'IUHQC],5>@\; .DAKFT~81D?NW] 0UT+
M#5$80S"C+K8[.BN8'CFU[VD YK CO CFT"Y2UG900D ?GFIJA4[&GUVA ,=/ M17#W'C:]DR+>"&(>IRQ 167<:]J=UGS+R4 ]D.T?I5QPLWOH8SS*DOANST>: MY@MUS/-'&/5V K,G\5:5
M(ZR(KH0589!'<52M?]#0'M#Q%)F2#V_O+"1.1['VK&\&ZMYTIT~9 MOGB&8B>Z~GX50WUNUQ! ~Z(6:,[XF/9A 0\@"Q-<56#A*QZ"~&K1JPANC 9B M:WKUWI~I-
1Y6P*#\RY//XU%:ZQ7A("1M7'K6;KIP+K4AA*HAHU MRIZJ>00?<'BI-% X\]4 Z] \:~;EB*KQ,HO[*)VUT,@@;3Q6QX MD X X?\ KW3~M8YZ&MCQ) Q P \ 7NGI:X*A\&?R 4Z7)?"Y H'A IJ' 7JU
M9)=]OWVZ?WC6MH'34?\ KU:L< = "G4?[FG\ P Q0~.7R/2+3 CS@ ZYK *I MJAM/"/*# KFO\J9&K>XM=+,=TDR.)#@2L".ZN9JWCK4GIKZA P UQ W\-=+-X7T
MFWV> =+ F]@BYDZD]IT]0>#K#>TAV#VD.QR,U[=7'"NN9I M!Z,Y-08'17:0X. T\HVQIPV."7[ E3)O#&D6YC$TLR&1MB R?>/ITI~UB/VL3 MC:*
[7 A#M/WGYIIN.F_O~5#>#M/VG:TX;'1+] RHIM$/;1.%) 1). *C-X8+ M2023"*8CAN.IRI~/4 AZ5VESX5TB"'=<23JA(l. OGCM27/@32[L;)FN&C& M" ),'/Y40:]1~ Q%6 <*E-P?4X);RW=@JSQEB<
1:P+[_ (Y P#?->JK\-]$ MC8/&+D.IRI,QZU%/X VK+FY>Y$K@N?WIYQU(XI5:WM(VOYF'PBH3;B[IH\V M' (#/ 7?~E5K? CYB_WQ _.O5H AJHDMLJQM<-;/AQB7]>QS]*5?AMH2.&476
M5.17~-0Y)M>10&FTI+NV>6ZE P A&?\ W]T=$ XI9/\ ? I7>W'@'0%D#7;W M ED!)/FD D#)[5-9>!1&6(-:271A;)/[S.3T]/8U=.HHU")[&-:A*=14UOI"~ M!QM)L7?0VC?C&[' AW _
(0K3/[US_W\ P#K5"WA'2H?+2:6<.~0/GZD#)[> M@-=7UJF>= 9M;NOZ"~1Q-%=M#X1TFY1)8)IWA8'D2=3GZ?6I0"$*TS"]< P#? MS_ZU'UJ'F+"S:W=?U\C@Z*90".E0",3S3AG) /F8!(!/IZ
E1#X2TFZCCF MMYIWAS89R).OTXH~MO\P_ LRMW?7]?(XFBN\ X0K3/[US W\ \ K5$WA#2H!&)Y MOPSMM7Y~I].GM1]:AYA 9M;NOZ~1QUIEV>I6UY:13I
M(BAUSM9@"/8UBV A32I]LMO+.R*Q#9?N.".GK50_(133>ZRGZ07!C*]2;7L MHI~KM~C/3R_"~Q3]K+?HM?\ (P?$R*FMR;% W*K'<~M+HO_!YZI U[ P"- M;UYHUC+
(LM _(YD)/~/~" KW3~M;0 "*Z= =E [~&DOM(L#M MEU"5\CY%;=@ @=-1 Z]6K' AKMK31 M;)$=K*1PKYBD";.0#@CGIS2?\(KIW]V7 OX:)Y97E3C%6TN$<734F~YBZAX@
ME=$@L9F2)8@CD+@EN"#UK!=0.0.2>M=C)X'-*NU;R& M=MC[7~ <\$=1"~5=\*.)CB5-2]R"UW~1F]1%0LEJ4?!7 'Q= [B S-==6=8Z'; M:,!>!~5>1.2E*Z. ;YG=$]%1>2W />3 Q MW "L:@D****
"BBB@ HHHH *9)$DIONN3&VY?8XQG133Z* "BBB@" &XM8KK8 M)EW!&# 9(Y%3444 %0W-1#=]JSIO53D#)]:B@ HHHH CEA2;9YB[MC!Q]1T- M2444 %1R01RNKNH+*" ?3/6T+*
&QQK%$D<8VH@"]/0"G444 136\<~WS%)* MYP02",C!P1[&]SW=GI7DVK, T8*DH-K,, #KS" (ZU>]&>T@N2#/$DA *C<,X!Q MG"0H @ MC3BK-]NMM]?>/FCCM1>W=A&]/=SQ*%4R*2_.-I!
(QUX)H;11/="C M6<)4C&"OT \ B1~5/FTVSN&4S6T3E%V+E>@]/UH @COM.L3":K((@RAQN#8"~ M;)&6/ )PW4A]C5B'4+2X=4AN879NBJX)/7 E23:99W$PEFMHI) FS++GY>>
M/U/YFD@TNSMITFA@5'1652.P8@M "9 H GE@CGV"8N[81** &0PL;Q+%$H5%& *?110 R6% M)@HD7<%8,/8CI3;>VAM(S';QK&A8LOH[GDFI:* "H;BVBNE59@2%8, &(Y'3
MIUJ:JUW9)>11)).FW./*F://UP1FAC5KZDT420J1&NT,Q8 4G) 6G9![U2AT MF&"9)%GO&*G(#W,C 4$X-5AX?0(R"ZG5&))52 .2\TE?].22V9I7%M%=($ MFI90P; 8CD=.G6DM][:&W# ~ON-
[;F.XG)Z= I5:UTH6USYQNOY." KMQI?M390W.""2AF .!@*<$GG%70LL' /& O@4I@B* M!3&A53D#:, U3<>B*CT11;7K$9Q(S8P>$/()VY~F>1/;6;6.[E@D+H8BOSE M?ER%W8S]/Y&K;01-
@MS$AP'=N\F//'. T=NE %>U MU:SO9!";S;W*E@-I' ~OUK#U?X@:9HN]J36%S#NF6&-""D M:*1P"%Q3'L[:5R\EO"[']S("30!A:3XWT[6(;N6WBN%6U"%]RKD[C@8P:0GQ
M%8"4CJTC[QD*J$GIS~615Y;2W165((E#?> 0#/UIPMXO0. /619=4AB8##L/+$A( &%/3]1Z=]L-;0NC*T2%7~\-H MY~M.>*.0]716*]"1G% %'~WK 1AFE98Y9IN% C;) M[<<>H-
73;PLO6BC)'0E1Q4<5C;02.\<"*[MNIL
)BI( QG\ZV(K*W@G>:*%%DD&&8#DTYK: | F+-#& M2>T*BK@XKXEX[&9;");2YLC=)-L$HBV[1DMC/K5E-8MY()I0) (< M"0%<%6)QM/OT ,5<6&-!A(TA9SPH'-+L7##:N&™\,=?K4ARM?
0J"DDN9W92;6 M;2/(F=HV'l4C<0>PXR,G!H76[!BP~T %1D@]1C*MBWA7&V*,;1@84<"D-0" MW6&,\YY4=:113;7]/1=S3%0>F8V&> >..>"#"-.&M6C+,R.S+%'YC,%.", D< M?B#5LPQ,,&-
"/0JAIJ40QJ6*QH" P1X@="?K0!376;3S6BDIHY%(#!AD#/3D MO'/UJ# A)+ '#-(0.#EN*TEABO )&B@= % Q0+>$9 BCP>ORB@"0/] M<$.F ;LL\. 05')R<=ZS/~$PL? GG/~0_QK=,:%-
A520]W'%,~S0?\ /& M +Y%<]16%:40W\KE-]%R2T49)&"2HY%'D18 \I, #MM%=IF55U>T>.1TD+>7&92- MIIVCOSZ]O6HQKID&*RNT3+P0OPSCC/49'2KP@B#,PC4%@%;CJ!G 4 GO+>%0 M
(HP%Z ** *?]M68D* S]1@2>@"~0'2F V_IYC+B8E1U(10;VIQ5X6\(3 M:(HJOIM&*BDT ~TE:-GMXR8SE/EX'X?@* (IKEB4W>:<8S]QNF<9Z=,]ZT*KS MV%K,C'8@ KO0!+17/P~';Z"*)(1:F41H%
$>%X.>F>GKW]"~U/CT&"11G6 MKEF(8%CG@E H(&<9!!/.1\QXZ&@#=HK*BT>;~S3:7-]+.24)E; X[6R>I1(YZ M?SS2-HTRO(8KQU$A7CYAM4$G PO!UQTH UJ*Q(]'U!E;S=4E3.1A"3 "1G)[
MY!/X\8J231[EYWD M"3!)VI@X 1,YSV'3TH UZ*R9]&GEAAB6 E6..18B!D; MB/XC@YY IUJ6YTZXN+Y)Q>,D2;2(@0!((//M~M &C16?>6$UZL(>5(RA8LR M*<~VTYX K59M +)Q1C SVP3@]R: -
FBD' &3GWI: "BBB@ HHHH M ** "BBB@ HHHH ** "BBB@ HHHH *** "BBB@ HHHH *** "BBB@ MHHHH ** "BBB@ HHHH *** "BBB@ HHHH *** "BBB@ HHHH *** "B MBB@
HHHH *+* "BBB@ HHHH *** "BBB@ HHHH ** "BBB@ HHHH *** 0* "BBB@ HHHH *** / V0$! end GRAPHIC 18 image 005.jpg GRAPHIC begin 644 image 005.jpg M _IC X 02D9)1@ ! 0$ 8
1@ # VP!# H'IPD'|@H)" D+"PH,#QD0#PX. M#QX6%Q(9)" F)2,@(R(H+3DP*"HV*R(C,DOR-CL]0$! )C!&2T4~2CD 0#W MVP!# OL+"P\-#QT0$!T1*2,1/3T)/3T]/3T)/3T)/3T1/3T1/3T)/3T1/3T]
M/3T1/3TI/3TY/3TY/3TI/3TY3TI/3W P 1" "$ -0# 2( A$! Q$! \0 M'P 04! 0$! 0$ $" PO%!@<("0H+ \0 M1 @$# P($ P4% M! 0 %] 0(# 01!1(A,4$&$U%AIR)Q%#*!D:$((T*QP152T? D,V)R@@D*




M%A<8&1HE)B7]#A(6&AXB)BI*3E)66EYBIFJ*CI*6FIZBIJK*SM+6VM[BYNL+#Q,7& MQ\C)RM +3U-76UICOVN'BX "~ 3EYN?HZ>KQ\O/TI?;W~/GZ \0 'P$ P$! 0$! M 08! 0 $" P0%!@<("OH+ \0
M1$ @$"! O#! <%! 0 0)W $" M Q$$!2$Q!A)140=A<1,B,H$(%$*1H;'1"2,S40 58G+1"A8D-.$E\1 <8& 1 HF M)R@I*C4V-S@Y.D-$149'2$E*4U155E=865ICI&5FIVAL:G-T=79W>'EZ@H.$
MAS:'B(F*DI.4E9: 7F)F:H].DI::GJ*FJLK.TM;:WN+FZPL/$Q<;'R,G*TM/4 MU=;7V-G:XN/DY>;GZ.GI\O/T1%;W~/GZ 1H # ,! (1 Q$ /P#469A RUF MI[X'~-/%TZ \ +:3_ +1# &L?[,?[[ \ ?LH%LW /1 \
OHUE?R*G[;) P ] M6 [\ P#UZ07DG /4?C$:R/L[ P#/:3 OHTV&.7'~ND_[ZIW\@-K[6 \ STO M5&%-2Y*W'R,T> ", @ RK+V3]IY/SIOES SW>B DIM?;85 = A ~M33<0-] MZ-#]
<5CGI4KC]~V/H*>6N1TE P#'11<#2)LV~;PGZJEIFUTY~39VY [9K5$ M&[/ "T4 5!0\ETN,&,@"~J47 N'3=%K80' +9BHSHVD-G_$&,?12*@+W' MIV( \ [IDGS_*N'"~[3$/;PYHIZV8 ]BU1-
X7T50~6+K])&H"T3[@/*BQ"~- MA~4?\L4 P"~C30:$1\*:1@A?.&?~FG_-:HSXITLD;9IQC_&Q A4YNI?\ MGB/~~S2+>2G )8 ~1#3%H0OCPA8@DK=3#Z[35W6-.COXK>$W C$0/.YX I@
MNY.\)P/ILU&U_(#_ *EN?1Z5AZ&= P (DA(VZB,#L4 ~00/"1 S_&C'~* M IK2"VMCF%"?ING&\PO~I?\ [Z% K(QT\(.#N&HOD_[IKH'8+(] @"~7%MX"F M*8EP"@/DR<_[0IDLZ-G,, O/HPJ6T-
*QJA@% [544[]0E; ~Z@'ZDU%%;R!@DQ'D E14K0J3SS16?LV>Al=CV("X M!&3@5*8,1)2/~ &J;GBM%N*UB>=+0B%H6Z3\"\91(M)N%RWGAOHA']:L MJV.M78;B-
4Y853=A*+9F"PFIYDQCV]";R) *9LD '/2MM@7.1TKG=;W1ZC" MR1PM\NS/MY7 P!>K"%P@ @M< =XS_C2 MT'=EK<*9,PVBH=[8 P"/>U [IG &F22E5YM;4Y V#Q"~M%D%V6]PICL,56+GM
M#;C_( 2\:C/DG*@\IN*TBDOSGO~$8A P">EW WZ'~-(GA: M)<_0;O\[\C_ IKIJ6JLIS)\,18 UMU WZ'~-- X12)B/WUUQ TR'"-=.30* M+ /A9"BJMS M,H'<1K_C67]J?A [%)&L=U(S2
G#1CC'XUVXKIU@[]5A3)( 4XST); ZU2TD5 MJSG!H]~K<0EE'0XQFIYM&NV@D$4;LQ!"C&*ZFXN%MK>6=\E8U+$#N!6!HVO7 MD"J0QS~8R3!@%"7"GJ]"
<>PK)S2Z&L*,YIR3V,35=&0UEMO9Y+9A; PMEW[#TIW MVC'<"NM\37)301 2?G=5 '/]*X2??¥]I'U=@/I[T*QFRTUX 20K~ =%4TBFC M7:K =N**7-$5F3MTJW;MF%?;BJG4?KA]H?
D8>AT1W*D6<@BG(4[BH: <5=D MR>>25DR]Y RXS@5CZN?GA;ZBKGF<5G:H284/H]58FXZ$M)Y:(-SNOJCU)K4 MLC5 #9N,>K"L6SEVSP/G[LBG]:]21$9 MG6__ ![Q?[@ E7GNOBO>-9P""
<1Y(1~45Z%; \'M# +B RJDA,E*5@13 MKGE/F>(9CR<.WZ "HEL-&KPPPQ"#V-*B(A™~ M5%'T %-"G -/7BL2S\93;;"VC\[§ W3CZBI;(9>0=LIICCIX?KI1;N([@$G ((-"!EQ|"H2U))=0| 05

M _J[7<(YWY UHFC-IDQ;%5-1.ZT8 Al 6G?:XF(&X\G&2.145W(I!@.270, M".F#1S(.5D%NWR#ZBO68GWOQMZJ# ~E>4)&(T->G:;)YNFVKI " ]$I 2K@QRI1=
M%.!IL.*S[:LG8DW49.:BIR@2C/)HL%SS Q&Q X3:X'~Q&? ':] M5)M8?] MQ?Y5Y[XE/ %;3,,ACCQ WS7H-] ~A08 YYK "I//$K@@#--R*1V.:9GYL&F M!)N%
(:83SQ2]LYH&2IAT/>E9<#V]%3DU*#4, M"A3QQ7,Z?/I'"?WSMS*L:,6V MDGJ=U=2TGEQ.W7:1/60+'GA$ ~YG7H3U]J:QJR>R+BEU.Z M[34 =M=Q9QGKVH M?6;%)-GF$MZI37 (ZSWC%
=H3KCBM:Y;9+.X/W5)K'WBUBMZO>I=7+2QGY:!, LFCV@# M LL8!'<=?\*X, UVOAM\Z'". ZEA~M:TJR); &ZTH7C&34+R%J86532:V2, VICP MQ%)NYIN:- M3$<)XB+7?)>"[ ;RTXIR.E>@V1
LH>3RBGD~U>>>)&SXS? KB MG\|J[FTDQ9P# *9K *DD,0,XS3"<].U0&OF@.13L!8!!IQ&%S54-A0:KFX>0 M0>@X ~M2]"XJXR, C/-3<9IN@SS4JQ !""JN[~>:I7M[=;(HX[ATWRA1L " 7C/M M6?-
‘§JTB#RYHK;[3*AB$$1$"-P2V,;B/Y5$FAK]@;;+$BW§/DBOXY1<55)YD102" 3GH#W/%E-=/#A8ECY,<%GQ1190R1V,";.50 [ "N<45/,19'C8>C=A P] M%&]*D[@UV7."+ M8V=[=*74[XP<*
<J#5005">0V>:0FFYT"<5TFOL)FFDUD7NJM; W+Q><,K "D M19J4I% YASN6QA>)O~1KO~L"?S-=?/ *%#NP/D&.?-N,12,?| A(:5R3A[ M=.6&#G)ZCM78V#::*G]@]. *<263A@@I>7[K< ~O%*Y.
>>/K5>6"~M81 M~|N84/7EQFK:0D6/FST7\|ITY=Q B ]<"LR7Q'IT2$M<%L=E4G ZU4l/&=C&N M(XI7;U) P 34-I%I'2*3|SG|?|*G1ER.!ICW)/\S7#S>.)
,0VR#/+M4D8A65%/38@&/QK.4XEHZCQ/=VB&W6X9%Y8@$5B#6[&(CRDSCKMCKG;V M_NMIF#7,CNR#"Y. <5'&/4G ' H*QEILT4F: "LZV=0M?LT<1C5NK,:H6M -86<< M5NJAD))8G.
[I*B*CY:% R>V*FR'S,EFU: N%" :'/8 "HM.N[FQO%N4?>P/ M1SG- CW$[>004B)\W;%%D%V=*B4J.I./059B,0ZCKZUHC$4$>M. M )Z*3"%3AHD Y44[SHU&-ZY"~M.XRL878]-N, ], U*MJX/WL?
2I#=11CYY%&/> MH [1MVZ2#|13N &V4ORIS@QLH Y*SIMOB"GYQ4%C>20W+W§+ MNC]%93@X(JHNS%+8]+]":[@AXEGB0O~C.!7$37D|D.~:>1V:LIA( +I5+SV/1 MMONH

K;VB, “4[B36[%.DQ?| W$) 6LZZ|\0VASX21L\;2X4?D,|US!?/#<~YI MHI1V)-'M!|\I=U2 MMI1G\UD*D+MVI )I#KUZ(ECCFE5%&., FIFJ$F6&5 # M#IFHXYFI/VR NV'<=*AS8IR3WS3 M2A4#WZC-
*Y5A-B81)ILGL*<"H"[$>>,YZTI7C 'O@FD#!4[ ?K0 T\G 0 ?G M4]JJZOG=C/3BF (.>2>]*FI(#EAGL.10- ZJWWNI[TT IL8&!W]:’R?NXSGJ# MT &D4# ?U&!Z&D-#]JO[H'I-*\Q" I[8ZTOS!&"|0XI5";-
QSD] 6D4(./\W? MJ*>B#>HW?*2IGTS1DYP ,].34=R&$.X@#)QP:EOQJ*U-R7Q:/#Q6P6YN%5%! M 1SC-%8;W=MRZW.EM]$BO",?2C/R_6BBFAD;*5=M | §]?:BBJ0 Y//)]. >;.P;HHR
M**["+FP:I>E1/| (XQZ9HHJ@(RQ #=S3UQ%. 0"** & >4|B*3M%2KRZ@ M|@CO]-**ICY?N*W|63S]*KEBQR<NXBHKROF&->,/0SHH] .);&D-RHRC-%%%8FY D! end XML 20 R1.htm IDEA:
XBRL DOCUMENT

Cover - USD ($)
$ in Thousands

12 Months Ended

Jun. 30, 2024 Sep. 27, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

Document Type 10-K
Amendment Flag false
Document Annual Report true
Document Transition Report false
Document Period End Date Jun. 30, 2024
Document Fiscal Period Focus FY
Document Fiscal Year Focus 2024
Current Fiscal Year End Date --06-30
Entity File Number 001-41447
Entity Registrant Name NeoVolta, Inc.
Entity Central Index Key 0001748137
Entity Tax Identification Number 82-5299263

Entity Incorporation, State or Country Code NV

Entity Address, Address Line One

13651 Danielson Street

Entity Address, Address Line Two Suite A

Entity Address, City or Town Poway

Entity Address, State or Province CA

Entity Address, Postal Zip Code 92064

City Area Code (800)

Local Phone Number 364-5464

Entity Well-known Seasoned Issuer No

Entity Voluntary Filers No

Entity Current Reporting Status Yes

Entity Interactive Data Current Yes

Entity Filer Category Non-accelerated Filer

Entity Small Business true

Entity Emerging Growth Company true

Elected Not To Use the Extended Transition Period false

Entity Shell Company false

Entity Public Float $ 45,300
Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding 33,245,867
Document Financial Statement Error Correction [Flag false

Auditor Firm ID 206

Auditor Name

Auditor Location

Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share
Title of 12(b) Security

MaloneBailey, LLP
Houston, Texas

Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share

Trading Symbol NEOV
Security Exchange Name NASDAQ

Warrants, each warrant exercisable for one share of common stock

Title of 12(b) Security
Trading Symbol
Security Exchange Name
XML 21 R2.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Balance Sheets - USD
(€3]

Current assets:

Warrants, each warrant exercisable for one share of common stock
NEOVW
NASDAQ

Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents $ 986,427 $ 2,002,789
Accounts receivable, net 1,805,980 1,826,385
Inventory, net 1,787,308 2,580,571
Prepaid insurance and other current assets 76,815 96,119
Total current assets 4,656,530 6,505,864
Total assets 4,656,530 6,505,864
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 5,316 0

Accrued liabilities 55,784 39,491
Total current liabilities 61,100 39,491
Stockholders' equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 33,236,091 shares and 33,155,127 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 33,236 33,155
Additional paid-in capital 25,304,732 24,872,446

Accumulated deficit

(20,742,538) (18,439,228)

Total stockholders' equity 4,595,430 6,466,373
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 4,656,530 $ 6,505,864
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Balance Sheets
(Parenthetical) - $ /
shares

Statement of Financial Position [Abstract]

Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023

Common Stock, Par or Stated Value Per Share $ 0.001 $ 0.001
Common Stock, Shares Authorized 100,000,000 100,000,000
Common Stock, Shares, Issued 33,236,091 33,155,127
Common Stock, Shares, Outstanding 33,236,091 33,155,127
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Statements of 12 Months Ended
Operations - USD ($) Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023
Income Statement [Abstract]
Revenues from contracts with customers $ 2,645,072  $ 3,455,813

Cost of goods sold 2,134,725 2,767,818
Gross profit 510,347 687,995
Operating expenses:
General and administrative 2,828,147 3,293,758
Research and development 19,154 29,936
Total operating expenses 2,847,301 3,323,694
Loss from operations (2,336,954) (2,635,699)
Other income (ex; ):
Interest income 33,644 0
Interest expense 0 (4,134)
Total other income (expense 33,644 (4,134)
Net loss $(2,303,310) $ (2,639,833)
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Statements of 12 Months Ended
Operations
(Parenthetical) - $ / Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023
shares

Income Statement [Abstract]
Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding, Basic 33,213,306 32,025,620
Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding, Diluted 33,213,306 32,025,620

Earnings Per Share, Basic $ (0.07) $ (0.08)
Earnings Per Share, Diluted $ (0.07) $ (0.08)
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Statements of
Stockholders' Equity - Common Stock [Member] Additional Paid-in Capital [Member] Retained Earnings [Member] Total
USD ($)
Beginning balance, value at Jun. 30, 2022 $ 21,978 $ 18,394,641 $(15,799,395) $2,617,224
Shares, Outstanding, Beginning Balance at Jun. 30, 2022 21,977,251
Issuance of common stock in underwritten public offering $1,121 3,779,284 3,780,405
Issuance of common stock in underwritten public offering, shares 1,121,250
Issuance of common stock for conversion of debt and accrued interest $9,672 1,169,614 1,179,286
Issuance of common stock for conversion of debt and accrued interest, shares 9,671,867
Stock compensation expense $ 384 1,528,907 1,529,291
Issuance of common stock for conversion of debt and accrued interest, shares 384,759
Net loss (2,639,833) (2,639,833)
Ending balance, value at Jun. 30, 2023 $ 33,155 24,872,446 (18,439,228) 6,466,373
Shares, Outstanding, Beginning Balance at Jun. 30, 2023 33,155,127
Stock compensation expense $ 81 432,286 432,367
Issuance of common stock for conversion of debt and accrued interest, shares 80,964
Net loss (2,303,310) (2,303,310)
Ending balance, value at Jun. 30, 2024 $ 33,236 $ 25,304,732 $(20,742,538) $ 4,595,430
Shares, Outstanding, Beginning Balance at Jun. 30, 2024 33,236,091
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Statements of Cash 12 Months Ended
Flows - USD ($) Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $(2,303,310) $ (2,639,833)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operations:
Stock compensation expense 432,367 1,529,291
Provision for expected credit losses/bad debt expense 540,000 490,000
Reserve for obsolete inventory 90,000 0
Changes in current assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (519,595) (998,647)
Inventory 703,263 (342,363)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 19,304 142,882
Accounts payable 5,316 (205,600)
Accrued expenses 16,293 (83,731)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (1,016,362) (2,108,001)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Underwritten public offering of common stock 0 3,780,405
Net cash flows from financing activities 0 3,780,405
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,016,362) 1,672,404
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,002,789 330,385
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 986,427 2,002,789
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest 0 0
Cash paid for income taxes 0 0
Supplemental non-cash financing activities:
Convertible notes payable and accrued interest converted to common stock $ 0 $1,179,286
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Pay vs Performance 12 Months Ended
Disclosure - USD ($) Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023
Pay vs Performance Disclosure [Table]
Net Income (Loss) $(2,303,310) $ (2,639,833)
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Insider Trading 3 Months Ended
Arrangements Jun. 30, 2024
Trading Arrangements, by Individual [Table]
Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted false
Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted false
Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated false
Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated false
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Business and 12 Months Ended
Summary of
Significant Jun. 30, 2024
Accounting Policies
Organization,
Consolidation and
Presentation of
Financial Statements

[Abstract]

Business and Summary
of Significant ) Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting Policies

Description of Business - NeoVolta Inc. (“we”, “our” or the "Company") is a Nevada corporation, which was formed on March 5, 2018. The Company is a designer, seller and manufacturer of Energy
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Storage Systems (ESS) which can store and use energy via batteries and an inverter at residential sites. The Company sells its proprietary ESS units through wholesale customers, primarily in California,
and in an expanding number of other states. In August 2022, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of its equity securities resulting in its common stock and warrants becoming listed on a
national exchange (see Note 2).

Basis of P ion - The accc nying financial statements and related notes have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“U.S. GAAP”) and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Company considers all highly liquid accounts with original maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition to be cash equivalents. Periodically, the
Company may carry cash balances at financial institutions in excess of the federally insured limit of $250,000. At June 30, 2024, the Company maintained all of its accounts at one bank and the combined
balances of all accounts at this bank was in excess of the FDIC insurance limit by $736,427.

Inventory - Inventory consists of batteries and inverters purchased from Asian suppliers and delivered to a location near the Company’s offices, for assembly into ESS units. Additionally, we closed a
bulk purchase of raw materials consisting of assembly parts from our former contract manufacturer in April 2023, for a gross amount of $1.4 million. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable
value, cost being determined using the first-in, first out (FIFO) method. The Company periodically reviews the value of items in inventory and records an allowance to reduce the carrying value of inventory
to the lower of cost or net realizable value based on its assessment of market conditions, inventory turnover and current stock levels. Inventory write-downs are charged to cost of goods sold. The following
table presents the components of inventory (net of reserve for obsolescence on assembly parts of $90,000 and zero, respectively) as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

June 30,
2024 2023
Raw materials, consisting of assembly parts, batteries and inverters $ 1,076,479 $ 2,353,055
‘Work-in-process 89,386 -
Finished goods 621,443 227,516
Total $ 1,787,308 $ 2,580,571

Revenue Recognition - The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Accounting Standard Update ("ASU") 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). Revenues are
recognized when control of the promised goods is transferred to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring those goods or
services. Revenue is recognized based on the following five step model:

Identification of the contact with a customer

Identification of the performance obligations in the contract

Determination of the transaction price

Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation

The Company generates revenues from contracts with customers, consisting of a relatively small number of wholesale dealers and installers, primarily in California. In the year ended June 30, 2024,
two such dealers represented approximately 20% and 14% of the Company’s revenues, however, no other dealers accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in such period. Those same two dealers plus
one other one represented an aggregate of approximately 22%, 18% and 14% of the Company’s gross accounts receivable as of June 30, 2024, however, no other dealers accounted for more than 10% of the
accounts receivable as of June 30, 2024. In the year ended June 30, 2023, three such dealers represented approximately 25%, 15% and 13% of the Company’s revenues. Under its present contracts with
customers, the Company’s sole performance obligation is the delivery of products to the customer. Since all of the Company’s revenue is currently generated from the sales of similar products delivered to
customers in domestic locations, no further disaggregation of revenue information for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 is provided.

Allowance for Expected Credit Losses - The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses whenever a loss is expected to be incurred in the realization of a customer’s account. As of
June 30, 2024 and 2023, our allowance for expected credit losses was $1,030,000 and $490,000, respectively.

Income Taxes - The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences
between the financial reporting and the tax bases of reported assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.
The Company must then assess the likelihood that the resulting deferred tax assets will be realized. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax
asset will not be realized.

The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 740-10 which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken, or expected to be taken, on its tax return. The Company evaluates and records any uncertain tax positions based on the amount that
management deems is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination and ultimate settlement with the tax authorities in the tax jurisdictions in which it operates.

Stock Compensation Expense - Employee and non-employee share-based payment compensation is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense
over the requisite service period.

Loss Per Common Share - Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted loss per common share is determined using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents. In
periods when losses are reported, the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding excludes common stock equivalents, because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. As of June 30, 2024, the
Company had total outstanding common stock equivalents of 2,577,931 shares as follows: (i) 1,348,181 shares related to restricted stock units granted to an officer and another employee in April 2024; (ii)
1,121,250 shares related to warrants issued to investors in the public offering completed in August 2022; (iii) 58,500 shares related to warrants issued to the underwriters in that same offering; and (iv)
50,000 shares related to restricted stock units granted to an officer in March 2022 (see Note 2).

Research and Development Costs - Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Use of Estimates - Management has made a number of estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Related Parties - The Company accounts for related party transactions in accordance with ASC 850 (“Related Party Disclosures”). A party is considered to be related to the Company if the party
directly or indirectly or through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Company. Related parties also include principal owners of the Company, its
management, members of the immediate families of principal owners of the Company and its management and other parties with which the Company may deal if one party controls or can significantly
influence the management or operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. A party which can significantly
influence the management or operating policies of the transacting parties or if it has an ownership interest in one of the transacting parties and can significantly influence the other to an extent that it might
be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests is also a related party.

Fair Value Measurements and Financial Instruments - ASC 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal
or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. ASC 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes
between (1) market participant assumptions developed based on market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs) and (2) an entity’s own assumptions about market participant
assumptions developed based on the best information available in the circumstances (unobservable inputs). The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels, which gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (e.g., interest rates); and
inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.

Level 3 - Inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable. The carrying value of certain on-balance-sheet financial instruments approximated their fair values due to
the short-term nature of these instruments. These financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and long-term debt. The carrying value of long-term debt
approximates fair value since the related rate of interest approximates current market rates.

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company did not have any financial assets or liabilities measured and recorded at fair value on the Company’s balance sheets on a recurring basis.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, (“FASB”), or other standard setting bodies and
adopted by us as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise discussed, the impact of recently issued and prospective standards that are not yet effective will not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations upon adoption. The Company has considered all other recently issued accounting pronouncements, including the newly effective accounting standard
pertaining to “current expected credit losses,” and does not believe the adoption of such pronouncements will have a material impact on its financial statements. Effective July 1, 2023, the Company adopted
the provisions of ASC 326 (Financial Instruments - Credit Losses) pertaining to “current expected credit losses,” which had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Liquidity - These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the Company will continue to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The continuation of the Company as a going concern has been dependent upon our ability to obtain necessary debt and equity financing to continue operations and the attainment of profitable
operations. The Company has a history of recurring losses from operations and negative cash flows from operations which has raised substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.,

Despite our history of recurring operating losses and negative cash flows, we believe that based on our current business plan, which includes increased generation of revenues and raising funds
through debt financing, the above referenced substantial doubt has been alleviated. As disclosed in Note 6, we recently entered into an agreement with a financing entity whereby we have obtained a line of
credit for borrowings of up to $5,000,000, in order to meet any near-term borrowing needs. As a result, we believe that we will have sufficient financial resources available to us in order to operate our
business for at least the next 12 months from the date these financial statements are issued.
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Equity

Equity [Abstract]
Equity

12 Months Ended
Jun. 30, 2024

(2)  Equity

Common Stock - In August 2022, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of its equity securities in the form of Units with each Unit consisting of one share of common stock and one
warrant (each, a “Warrant” and collectively, the “Warrants”) to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share. The shares of common stock and the Warrants comprising the
Units were immediately separated at closing of the offering and each is now independently listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market. Each Warrant became exercisable on the date of issuance and will expire
five years from the date of issuance.

In the underwritten public offering, a total of 1,121,250 Units, including exercise of the underwriter’s overallotment option, were sold at an offering price to the public of $4.00 per Unit. The gross
proceeds of the offering were $4,485,000 and the net proceeds, after deduction of underwriting discounts and other offering costs were approximately $3,780,000. The Company also granted the
underwriter non-tradeable warrants to purchase a total of 58,500 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.40 per share for a period of five years.

In conjunction with the public offering, all holders of the Company’s 2018 convertible notes in the total amount of $59,251, including accrued interest, converted their debt into a total of 9,404,867
shares of common stock at the stated conversion rate, and all holders of the Company’s 2021 convertible notes in the total amount of $1,068,000 converted their debt into a total of 267,000 shares of
common stock at the stated conversion rate.
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Warrants - The Warrants for a total of 1,179,750 shares of common stock issued to investors and the underwriters are exercisable at any time after their original issuance and at any time up to the
date that is five years after their original issuance, or August 1, 2027. The Warrants may be exercised upon payment of the exercise price in cash on or prior to the expiration date. Under the terms of the
‘Warrant Agreement, we must use our best efforts to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement and current prospectus relating to common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants until
the expiration of the Warrants. If we fail to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement and current prospectus relating to the common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, the holders
of the Warrants shall have the right to exercise the Warrants solely via a cashless exercise feature provided for in the Warrants, until such time as there is an effective registration statement and current
prospectus. In June 2024, the Company filed an updated registration statement applicable to the exercise of the Warrants.

The following table presents activity with respect to the Company’s warrants for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Number ‘Witd. Avg. ‘Witd. Avg. Aggregate
of Exercise Remaining Intrinsic

Shares Price Term (Yrs.) Value
Outstanding at July 1, 2022 - $ = $ =
Warrants issued to Public Investors 1,121,250 4.00
Warrants issued to Underwriters 58,500 4.40
Outstanding at June 30, 2023 1,179,750 4.02 4.1 -
Warrants issued = =
‘Warrants exercised/forfeited - -
Outstanding at June 30, 2024 1,179,750 $ 4.02 3.1 $ =
Exercisable at June 30, 2024 1,179,750 $ 4.02 3.1 $ -

These warrants were issued in conjunction with an underwritten public equity offering, therefore, there was no employee or non-employee compensation expense recognized.

Stock Compensation Expense - In April 2024, we entered into an employment agreement with a new Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), providing for an initial term extending through June 30, 2027,
which will be automatically renewed for additional one-year terms unless either party chooses not to renew it. Pursuant to the agreement, our new CEO received an initial equity grant equal to 1,280,000

restricted stock units (“RSU’s”), with a grant date value of $2,854,000, which will vest over a four-year period, subject to his continued employment with the Company, and will be entitled to earn additional
RSU'’s on each anniversary in the form of three annual performance-based equity grants, beginning in the year ending June 30, 2025, with a target value of up to $660,000 each.

In February 2022, we entered into a new employment agreement with our then CEO, effective April 1, 2022. As noted above, we engaged a new CEO effective April 29, 2024, replacing our former
CEO who remains as Chairman of the Board and chief technology officer. Pursuant to the agreement, we issued our former CEO an RSU award for up to 150,000 shares of our common stock upon achieving
the following milestones (which achi s shall be determined by the Board): (i) Milestone 1 - Successfully complete an uplisting of our common stock in 2022 and continue his employment with our
company until January 1, 2023: 50,000 shares; and (ii) Milestone 2 - Produce 2,000 ESSs in 2022 and continue his employment with our company until January 1, 2023: 100,000 shares. As of December 31,
2023, Milestone 1 had been achieved, however, Milestone 2 had not been achieved and was no longer achievable. The underlying 50,000 shares of common stock earned under Milestone 1 were issued to
our former CEO as of January 1, 2023.

In February 2022, we entered into a new employment agreement with our Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), effective March 1, 2022. Pursuant to the agreement, we issued our CFO an RSU award for
up to 300,000 shares of our common stock upon achieving the following milestones (which achi s shall be determined by the Board): (i) Milestone 1 - Successfully complete an uplisting of our
common stock in 2022 and continue his employment with our company until January 1, 2023: 250,000 shares; and (ii) Milestone 2 - successfully complete and file the Company’s Form 10-K for the year
ended June 30, 2023 no later than September 29, 2023 and continue his employment with our company until January 1, 2024: 50,000 shares. Milestone 1 was achieved as of January 1, 2023, and the
underlying 250,000 shares of common stock earned under Milestone 1 were issued to our CFO as of that date. Milestone 2 was achieved as of January 1, 2024, and the underlying 50,000 shares of common
stock earned under Milestone 2 are expected to be issued to our CFO at a later date.

Based upon our assessment of the probability of our three executive officers noted above, plus a non-executive recipient of another RSU award issued in June 2024, ultimately achieving any
applicable milestones specified under the RSU awards indicated above, we have calculated the grant date value of such awards and are amortizing it as stock compensation expense over the underlying
performance periods. We have recognized stock compensation expense applicable to such RSU awards in the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 in the amounts of $214,992 and $1,241,563, respectively.

In conjunction with our public offering in August 2022, we appointed two new independent directors and adopted a new compensation plan for all independent directors based on an annual
compensation amount of $65,000 to be paid quarterly with not less than 70% of such amount paid in shares of our common stock, calculated based on the share price at the end of such prior fiscal quarter,
and up to 30% paid in cash, with such final amounts to be determined by each director. As of June 30, 2024, we booked an annual accrual of $195,000 of compensation expense (of which $175,500 will be
settled through the issuance of shares) for our three independent directors under this plan.

In the year ended June 30, 2024, we recognized total non-cash stock compensation expense of $432,367 as follows: (i) $214,992 for the amortized value of the RSUs granted to our three executive
officers and a non-executive recipient, as previously described; (ii) $175,500 for the amortized value of the portion of the new compensation plan for our independent directors that is attributable to stock;
(iii) $29,450 for the net amortized value of the shares granted to various advisors under their annual service contracts; and (iv) $12,425 for the fair value of incentive shares earned by a wholesale dealer as
of December 31, 2023 (see Note 4). There was a total of 80,964 shares of common stock that were issued to our independent directors in the year ended June 30, 2024, which were previously expensed in
the year ended June 30, 2023.

In the year ended June 30, 2023, we recognized total non-cash stock compensation expense of $1,529,291 as follows: (i) $1,241,563 for the amortized value of the RSUs granted to our two executive
officers, as previously described; (ii) $175,500 for the amortized value of the portion of the new compensation plan for our independent directors that is attributable to stock; (iii) $85,000 for the net
amortized value of the shares granted to various advisors under their annual service contracts; and (iv) $27,228 for the fair value of incentive shares earned by two wholesale dealers as of December 31,
2022 (see Note 4). There was a total of 384,759 shares of common stock that were issued to various grantees, including our two executive officers, in the year ended June 30, 2023, of which 75,000 shares
were previously expensed in the year ended June 30, 2022.

Other Matters - In February 2019, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the establishment of a new 2019 Stock Option Plan with an authorization for the issuance of up to 2,500,000 shares of
common stock. The Plan is designed to provide for future discretionary grants of stock options, stock awards and stock unit awards to key employees and non-employee directors. As of June 30, 2024, we
have made total awards of 1,893,779 shares under the Plan as follows: (i) 1,798,181 shares for the RSUs granted to our three executive officers and a non-executive recipient, as noted above; (ii) 54,964
shares for the initial services of our three independent directors in the year ended June 30, 2023, pursuant to the new compensation plan adopted in August 2022 for independent directors; and (iii) 40,634
shares granted to several wholesale dealers under an incentive sales program.
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Income Taxes

12 Months Ended
Jun. 30, 2024

Income Tax Disclosure

[Abstract]

Income Taxes

3) Income Taxes

The Company is subject to United States federal income taxes at an approximate rate of 21%. The reconciliation of the provision for income taxes at the federal statutory rate, compared to the
Company’s income tax expense as reported, is as follows (rounded to nearest $00):

Year Ended June 30,

2024 2023
Income tax benefit computed at statutory rate $ 279,400 $ 130,300
Change in valuation allowance (279,400) (130,300)
Provision for income taxes $ = $ _

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets at the currently enacted corporate income tax rate are as follows (rounded to nearest $00):

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating losses $ 824,300 $ 544,900
Valuation allowance (824,300) (544,900)
Net deferred income tax assets $ - $ _

The Company has a cumulative tax operating loss carry forward as of June 30, 2024 of approximately $3,915,000, with an indefinite expiration period.
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Commitments and
Contingencies
Disclosure [Abstract]
Commitments and
Contingencies

12 Months Ended
Jun. 30, 2024

“) Commitments and Contingencies

Effective January 1, 2021, we secured new corporate and manufacturing office space under a sublease agreement with a company that served as our contract manufacturer at that time. Under the
terms of the sublease agreement, we were required to make rental payments of $10,350 per month during the initial one-year term of the agreement. Further, under the terms of the sublease agreement, we
were granted the right to renew the sublease for additional terms of 12 months each upon mutual agreement of both parties, provided thirty days’ notice is given for each subsequent term, at a modest
increase in the monthly rent, through February 28, 2025. However, we were under no obligation to renew it. At inception of the sublease, management determined that exercise of the renewal option was
not reasonably certain and, notwithstanding that the Company elected to renew the agreement for additional one year periods as of January 1, 2022, 2023 and 2024, continues to believe that is the case.
Accordingly, we have accounted for it as a short-term lease under ASC 842, Leases. Under an amendment to our supply agreement with our former contract manufacturer in April 2023, we took over direct
responsibility for the manufacturing process surrounding our ESS units on June 1, 2023, however, that amendment had no effect on the sublease agreement with our former contract manufacturer (see Note
5).

As indicated in Note 1, the Company sells its proprietary ESS units through wholesale dealers, primarily in California. In that regard, the Company has entered into agreements with several
wholesale dealers operating in California and other states under which the Company has incentivized the dealers to achieve quarterly sales above targeted levels by agreeing to grant them shares of the
Company’s common stock for exceeding such quarterly sales targets, subject to defined maximums, as determined annually on a calendar year basis.

We are dependent on our two main component vendors for our suppliers of batteries, inverters and other raw materials and the inability of these single-source suppliers to deliver necessary
components of our products according to our schedule and at prices, quality levels and volumes acceptable to us, or our inability to efficiently manage these components, could have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition and operating results.

From time to time in the ordinary course of our business, the Company may be involved in legal proceedings, the outcomes of which may not be determinable. The Company is not involved in any
legal proceedings at this time. The results of litigation are inherently unpredictable. Any claims against us, whether meritorious or not, could be time consuming, result in costly litigation, require significant
amounts of management time and result in diversion of significant resources. We are not able to estimate an aggregate amount or range of reasonably possible losses for those legal matters for which losses
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Related Party 12 Months Ended
Transactions Jun. 30, 2024
Related Party
Transactions
[Abstract]

Related Party
Transactions 5) Related Party Transactions

In conjunction with our underwritten public offering completed in August 2022, we appointed the former owner of our contract manufacturer to become a director of the Company. At the time of his
appointment, the former owner of our contract manufacturer still had significant related party influence over its operations in his capacity with the contract manufacturer’s new parent company. However,
we amended our agreement with our contract manufacturer, effective April 1, 2023, resulting in our taking over direct responsibility for our manufacturing operations from that company, thus eliminating
the related party relationship. Prior to the termination of such relationship, we made contractual payments to that company to assemble our energy storage systems during the period from July 1, 2022 to
March 31, 2023 in the total amount of $669,424. Additionally, we made contractual payments to that company for rental of our office space during the period from July 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023 in the total
amount of $95,250 (see Note 4).
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12 Months Ended

Subsequent Events Jun. 30, 2024

Subsequent Events
[Abstract]

Subsequent Events
(6) Subsequent Events

In July 2024, we issued a total of 9,776 shares of our common stock, consisting of 7,776 shares issued to a wholesale dealer under our incentive sales program and 2,000 shares issued to a non-
employee adviser.

In September 2024, we entered into an agreement with a newly formed financing entity whereby we obtained a line of credit for borrowings of up to $5,000,000. Under this agreement, we will be
required to make monthly payments to the lender of accrued interest, at the rate of 16% per annum, on any outstanding borrowings that we make, with the principal and any unpaid accrued interest being
due at maturity in September 2026. In order to secure such borrowings, we have granted a security interest in all of our assets to the lender. As a condition of receiving this line of credit from the lender, we
have agreed not to issue any securities pursuant to the Company’s Form S-3 (file number 333-280400), without the lender’s consent, so long as any borrowings remain outstanding.
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Summary of
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(Policies)

Organization
Consolidation and
Presentation of
Financial Statements

[Abstract]

Description of Business Description of Business - NeoVolta Inc. (“we”, “our” or the "Company") is a Nevada corporation, which was formed on March 5, 2018. The Company is a designer, seller and manufacturer of Energy
Storage Systems (ESS) which can store and use energy via batteries and an inverter at residential sites. The Company sells its proprietary ESS units through wholesale customers, primarily in California,
and in an expanding number of other states. In August 2022, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of its equity securities resulting in its common stock and warrants becoming listed on a
national exchange (see Note 2).

Basis of Presentation Basis of Pr ion - The 1ying financial statements and related notes have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“U.S. GAAP”) and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

Cash and Cash Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Company considers all highly liquid accounts with original maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition to be cash equivalents. Periodically, the

Equivalents Company may carry cash balances at financial institutions in excess of the federally insured limit of $250,000. At June 30, 2024, the Company maintained all of its accounts at one bank and the combined
balances of all accounts at this bank was in excess of the FDIC insurance limit by $736,427.

Inventory Inventory - Inventory consists of batteries and inverters purchased from Asian suppliers and delivered to a location near the Company’s offices, for assembly into ESS units. Additionally, we closed a
bulk purchase of raw materials consisting of assembly parts from our former contract manufacturer in April 2023, for a gross amount of $1.4 million. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable
value, cost being determined using the first-in, first out (FIFO) method. The Company periodically reviews the value of items in inventory and records an allowance to reduce the carrying value of inventory
to the lower of cost or net realizable value based on its assessment of market conditions, inventory turnover and current stock levels. Inventory write-downs are charged to cost of goods sold. The following
table presents the components of inventory (net of reserve for obsolescence on assembly parts of $90,000 and zero, respectively) as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

June 30,
2024 2023
Raw materials, consisting of assembly parts, batteries and inverters $ 1,076,479 $ 2,353,055
‘Work-in-process 89,386 -
Finished goods 621,443 227,516
Total $ 1,787,308  §$ 2,580,571

Revenue Recognition Revenue Recognition - The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Accounting Standard Update ("ASU") 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). Revenues are
recognized when control of the promised goods is transferred to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring those goods or
services. Revenue is recognized based on the following five step model:

Identification of the contact with a customer

Identification of the performance obligations in the contract

Determination of the transaction price

Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation

The Company generates revenues from contracts with customers, consisting of a relatively small number of wholesale dealers and installers, primarily in California. In the year ended June 30, 2024,
two such dealers represented approximately 20% and 14% of the Company’s revenues, however, no other dealers accounted for more than 10% of the revenues in such period. Those same two dealers plus
one other one represented an aggregate of approximately 22%, 18% and 14% of the Company’s gross accounts receivable as of June 30, 2024, however, no other dealers accounted for more than 10% of the
accounts receivable as of June 30, 2024. In the year ended June 30, 2023, three such dealers represented approximately 25%, 15% and 13% of the Company’s revenues. Under its present contracts with
customers, the Company’s sole performance obligation is the delivery of products to the customer. Since all of the Company’s revenue is currently generated from the sales of similar products delivered to
customers in domestic locations, no further disaggregation of revenue information for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 is provided.

Allowance for Expected Allowance for Expected Credit Losses - The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses whenever a loss is expected to be incurred in the realization of a customer’s account. As of

Credit Losses June 30, 2024 and 2023, our allowance for expected credit losses was $1,030,000 and $490,000, respectively.

Income Taxes Income Taxes - The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences
between the financial reporting and the tax bases of reported assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.
The Company must then assess the likelihood that the resulting deferred tax assets will be realized. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax
asset will not be realized.

The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 740-10 which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken, or expected to be taken, on its tax return. The Company evaluates and records any uncertain tax positions based on the amount that
management deems is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination and ultimate settlement with the tax authorities in the tax jurisdictions in which it operates.

Stock Compensation Stock Compensation Expense - Employee and non-employee share-based payment compensation is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense

Expense over the requisite service period.

Loss Per Common Share Loss Per Common Share - Basic loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted loss per common share is determined using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents. In
periods when losses are reported, the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding excludes common stock equivalents, because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. As of June 30, 2024, the
Company had total outstanding common stock equivalents of 2,577,931 shares as follows: (i) 1,348,181 shares related to restricted stock units granted to an officer and another employee in April 2024; (ii)
1,121,250 shares related to warrants issued to investors in the public offering completed in August 2022; (iii) 58,500 shares related to warrants issued to the underwriters in that same offering; and (iv)
50,000 shares related to restricted stock units granted to an officer in March 2022 (see Note 2).

Research and Research and Development Costs - Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Development Costs

Use of Estimates Use of Estimates - Management has made a number of estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Related Parties Related Parties - The Company accounts for related party transactions in accordance with ASC 850 (“Related Party Disclosures”). A party is considered to be related to the Company if the party

directly or indirectly or through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Company. Related parties also include principal owners of the Company, its
management, members of the immediate families of principal owners of the Company and its management and other parties with which the Company may deal if one party controls or can significantly
influence the management or operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. A party which can significantly
influence the management or operating policies of the transacting parties or if it has an ownership interest in one of the transacting parties and can significantly influence the other to an extent that it might
be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests is also a related party.

Fair Value Measurements and Financial Instruments - ASC 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal
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Fair Value
Measurements and
Financial Instruments

Recent Accounting
Pronouncements

Liquidity

or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. ASC 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes
between (1) market participant assumptions developed based on market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs) and (2) an entity’s own assumptions about market participant
assumptions developed based on the best information available in the circumstances (unobservable inputs). The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels, which gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (e.g., interest rates); and
inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.

Level 3 - Inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable. The carrying value of certain on-balance-sheet financial instruments approximated their fair values due to
the short-term nature of these instruments. These financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and long-term debt. The carrying value of long-term debt
approximates fair value since the related rate of interest approximates current market rates.

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Company did not have any financial assets or liabilities measured and recorded at fair value on the Company’s balance sheets on a recurring basis.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, (“FASB”), or other standard setting bodies and
adopted by us as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise discussed, the impact of recently issued and prospective standards that are not yet effective will not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations upon adoption. The Company has considered all other recently issued accounting pronouncements, including the newly effective accounting standard
pertaining to “current expected credit losses,” and does not believe the adoption of such pronouncements will have a material impact on its financial statements. Effective July 1, 2023, the Company adopted
the provisions of ASC 326 (Financial Instruments - Credit Losses) pertaining to “current expected credit losses,” which had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Liquidity - These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the Company will continue to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The continuation of the Company as a going concern has been dependent upon our ability to obtain necessary debt and equity financing to continue operations and the attainment of profitable
operations. The Company has a history of recurring losses from operations and negative cash flows from operations which has raised substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Despite our history of recurring operating losses and negative cash flows, we believe that based on our current business plan, which includes increased generation of revenues and raising funds
through debt financing, the above referenced substantial doubt has been alleviated. As disclosed in Note 6, we recently entered into an agreement with a financing entity whereby we have obtained a line of
credit for borrowings of up to $5,000,000, in order to meet any near-term borrowing needs. As a result, we believe that we will have sufficient financial resources available to us in order to operate our
business for at least the next 12 months from the date these financial statements are issued.
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Business and
Summary of
Significant
Accounting Policies
(Tables)

12 Months Ended

Jun. 30, 2024

Organization, Consolidation and Presentation of Financial Statements [Abstract]

Schedule of inventory

June 30,
2024 2023
Raw materials, consisting of assembly parts, batteries and
inverters $ 1,076,479 $ 2,353,055
‘Work-in-process 89,386 -
Finished goods 621,443 227,516
Total $ 1,787,308 $ 2,580,571

XML 37 R18.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT

Equity (Tables)
Equity [Abstract]

12 Months Ended
Jun. 30, 2024

Schedule of warrant activity Wwid.
Number Avg. Wtd. Avg. Aggregate
of Exercise Remaining Intrinsic
Term

Shares Price (Yrs.) Value
Outstanding at July 1, 2022 - $ = $ =
‘Warrants issued to Public
Investors 1,121,250 4.00
Warrants issued to Underwriters 58,500 4.40
Outstanding at June 30, 2023 1,179,750 4.02 4.1 -
Warrants issued - -
Warrants exercised/forfeited - -
Outstanding at June 30, 2024 1,179,750 $ 4.02 3.1 $ -
Exercisable at June 30, 2024 1,179,750 $ 4.02 31 $ _
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Income Taxes
(Tables)

12 Months Ended
Jun. 30, 2024

Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract]
Schedule of income tax expense

Year Ended June 30,

2024 2023
Income tax benefit computed at statutory
rate $ 279,400 $ 130,300
Change in valuation allowance (279,400)  (130,300)

Provision for income taxes $

Schedule of deferred taxes

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023
Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating losses $ 824,300 $ 544,900
Valuation allowance (824,300) _ (544,900)
Net deferred income tax assets $ - $ _
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Schedule of inventory
(Details) - USD ($)

Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023

nization nsolidation and Presentation of Financial men T
Raw materials, consisting of assembly parts, batteries and inverters $ 1,076,479 $ 2,353,055
Work-in-process 89,386 0
Finished goods 621,443 227,516
Total $1,787,308  $ 2,580,571
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Business and
Summary of
Significant
Accounting Policies
(Details Narrative) -

12 Months Ended

Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023

USD ($)
Pr Information [Line Item:
Cash, Uninsured Amount $ 736,427
Inven! T 1,400,000
custom:ReserveForObsoleteInventory 90,000 $0
A nts Receivable, Allowance for Credit L $ 1,030,000 $ 490,000
Common Stock [Member
Product Information [Line Items]
Antidilutive shares 2,577,931
Restricted Stock Units [Member] | Officer And Another Employee [Member
Product Information [Line Items]
Antidilutive shares 1,348,181
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Restricted Stock Units [Member] | One Officer [Member

Product Information [Line Items]

Antidilutive shares 50,000
Investor Warrants [Member
Product Information [Line Items]
Antidilutive shares

Underwriter Warrants [Member
Product Information [Line Items]
Antidilutive shares 58,500

Revenue Benchmark [Member] | Customer Concentration Risk [Member] | Dealer One [Member

Product Information [Line Items]

Concentration Risk, Percentage 20.00% 25.00%
Revenue Benchmark [Member] | Customer Concentration Risk [Member] | Dealer Two [Member

1,121,250

Product Information [Line Items]
Concentration Risk, Percentage 14.00% 15.00%
Revenue Benchmark [Member] | Customer Concentration Risk [Member] | Dealer Three [Member
Product Information [Line Items]
Concentration Risk, Percentage 13.00%
Accounts Receivable [Member] | Customer Concentration Risk [Member] | Dealer One [Member
Product Information [Line Items]
Concentration Risk, Percentage 22.00%
Accounts Receivable [Member] | Customer Concentration Risk [Member] | Dealer Two [Member
Product Information [Line Items]
Concentration Risk, Percentage 18.00%
Accounts Receivable [Member] | Customer Concentration Risk [Member] | Dealer Three [Member
Product Information [Line Items]
Concentration Risk, Percentage 14.00%
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Equity (Details -
Warrant activity) -
USD ($)
Offsetting Assets [Line Items]
Warrants outstanding, beginning
Weighted Average Exercise Price, Beginning
Aggregate Intrinsic Value, Ending
Warrants outstanding, beginning
Warrants outstanding, beginning
Weighted Average Exercise Price, Beginning
Warrants and Rights Outstanding, Term

Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Forfeited in Period
Weighted Average Exercise Price, Beginning

Warrants exercisable, weighted average exercise price
Warrants term, exercisable

Aggregate Intrinsic Value, Exercisable

Public Investors [Member

Offsetting Assets [Line Items]

Warrants outstanding, beginning

Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Grants in Period
Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value

Underwriters [Member]

Offsetting Assets [Line Items]

Warrants outstanding, beginning

Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Grants in Period

Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value
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1 Months Ended
Equity (Details
Narrative) - USD ($)
Aug. 31, 2022

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items

Class of Warrant or Right, Outstanding
Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash
Expense

Three Independent Directors [Member
Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items
Accrued compensation expenses

Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member
Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items
Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash
Expense

Amortized value of RSUs granted [Member
Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items]
Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash
Expense

Independent Directors [Member

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items
Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash
Expense

Amortized Value Of Shares Granted To Various
Advisors [Member]

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items]
Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash
Expense

Fair Value Of Incentive Shares Wholesale Dealer
Member

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items]
Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash
Expense

Fair Value Of Incentive Shares Two Wholesale
Dealer [Member

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items]
Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash
Expense

Stock Option Plan 2019 [Member

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items
Stock Issued During Period, Shares, Restricted
Stock Award, Gross

12 Months Ended

Jun. 30,
Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023 2022

1,179,750 1,179,750 0
$4.02 $4.02 $0
$0 $0 $0
1,179,750 0
$4.02 $0
3 years 1 month 6 4 years 1 month 6
days days
$4.02 $4.02
$4.02
3 years 1 month 6
days
$0

1,121,250

$ 4.00

58,500

$ 4.40

11 65
Months 12 Months Ended Months
Ended Ended

Jun. 30, Jun.30, Jun.30, Jun.30, J9™

30,
2023 2024 2023 2024 2022

1,179,750 1,179,750 1,179,750 1,179,750 0

$
$432,3677 529,201

195,000 $ 195,000

214,992 1,241,563

214,992 1,241,563

175,500 175,500

29,450 85,000

$ 12,425

$ 27,228

1,893,779
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Stock Option Plan 2019 [Member] | Three
Independent Directors [Member
Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items]

Stock Issued During Period, Shares, Restricted 54,964
Stock Award, Gross ’

Stock Option Plan 2019 [Member] | Three
Executive Officers And One Non Executive
Recipient [Member

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items
Stock Issued During Period, Shares, Restricted

Stock Award, Gross 1,798,181
Stock Option Plan 2019 [Member] | Several

Wholesale Dealers [Member

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items]

Stock Issued During Period, Shares, Restricted 40,634

Stock Award, Gross

Chief Executive Officer [Member] | Milestone 1
Member

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items]

Stock Issued During Period, Shares, Restricted
Stock Award, Gross

Chief Financial Officer [Member] | Milestone 1

Member
Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items]

Stock Issued During Period, Shares, Restricted
Stock Award, Gross

Underwritten Public Offering [Member] | Units

50,000

250,000

Member

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items]

Unit description each Unit consisting of one share of common stock and one warrant (each, a “Warrant” and
collectively, the “Warrants”) to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of
$4.00 per share

Shares issued new, units issued 1,121,250

Gross proceeds from sale of equity $ 4,485,000

Net proceeds from sale of equity 3,780,000

August Public Offering [Member] | May 2018

Notes Payable [Member

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items

Debt converted, amount converted $ 59,251
Debt converted, shares issued 9,404,867
August Public Offering [Member] | October 2021

Notes Payable [Member

Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line Items

Debt converted, shares issued 267,000
XML 43 R24.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Income Taxes (Details 12 Months Ended
- Schedule of income
tax expense) - USD Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023

(€]
Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract]
Income tax benefit computed at statutory rate $ 279,400 $ 130,300

Change in valuation allowance (279,400) (130,300)
Provision for income taxes $0 $0

XML 44 R25.htm IDFEA: XBRL DOCUMENT

Income Taxes (Details

- Schedule of deferred Jun. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2023
taxes) - USD (%)

Deferred income tax assets:

Net operating losses $ 824,300 $ 544,900
Valuation allowance (824,300) (544,900)
Net deferred income tax assets $ 0 $0
XML 45 R26.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Income Taxes (Details Jun. 30, 2024
Narrative) USD ($)
Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract]
Operating loss carry forward $ 3,915,000
XML 46 R27.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
Related Party 9 Months Ended
Transactions (Details Mar. 31, 2023
Narrative) USD ($)

Assembly Of Energy Storage Systems [Member
Offsetting Assets [Line Items]
Related Parties Amount in Cost of Sales $ 669,424

Rental Of Office Space [Member

Offsetting Assets [Line Items]

Related Parties Amount in Cost of Sales $ 95,250
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Compensation Footnote" "auth ref": [ "r476" "ecd AdjToPeoCompFnTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":
"AdjToPeoCompFnTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Adjustment To PEO Compensation, Footnote" } } }
"auth ref": [ "'r476" ] }, "us-gaap AdjustmentsToReconcileNetIncomeLossToCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivitiesAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-
gaap/2024", "localname": "AdjustmentsToReconcileNetIncomel.ossToCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivitiesAbstract", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ],
"lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operations:" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "ecd AggtErrCompAmt": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri":
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AggtErrCompAmt", "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Aggregate Erroneous
Compensation Amount" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r441", "r452", "'r462", "r488" ] }, "ecd AggtErrCompNotYetDeterminedTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri":
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AggtErrCompNotYetDeterminedTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"label": "Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Not Yet Determined"” } } }, "auth ref": [ "rd44", "r455", 'r465", "r491" ] }, "ecd AllAdjToCompMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri":
“http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AlIAdjToCompMember", "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure" ], "auth ref": [ "r476" ] }
"ecd_AllExecutiveCategoriesMember": { "xbritype": "domainiltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AllExecutiveCategoriesMember", "presentation": [
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” |, "auth ref": [ "r483" ] }, "ecd AlllndividualsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri”: "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":
"AlllndividualsMember", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure", "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure”,
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements”, "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” ], "auth ref": [ "r445", "'r456", "r466", "'r483", "r492", "r496", 'r504" ] }
"ecd AllTradingArrangementsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType -//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AllTradingArrangementsMember", "presentation":
“http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements" ], "auth ref": [ "'r502" ] }, "us-gaap AllowanceForDoubtfulAccountsReceivable": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri":
"http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "AllowanceForDoubtfulAccountsReceivable", "crdr": "credit", "presentation”: [
"“http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Accounts Receivable, Allowance for Credit Loss".
"documentation": "Amount of allowance for credit loss on accounts receivable." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r88", "r152", "r156", "'r157" "r159", "r554" ] }, "dei AmendmentDescription": { "xbritype":
] ‘nsuri"; "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "AmendmentDescription”, "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Amendment Description”, "documentation”: "Description of changes contained within amended document.” } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei AmendmentFlag": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType",
“nsuri";: "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "AmendmentFlag", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Amendment Flag",
"documentation": "Boolean flag that is true when the XBRL content amends previously-filed or accepted submission." } } }, "auth ref: [] }, "NEFOV_AmortizedValueOfRSUsGrantedMember": {
"xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "AmortizedValueOfRSUsGrantedMember", "presentation";
"http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Amortized value of RSUs granted [Member]", "documentation": "Amortized value of RSUs granted




[Member]" } } }, "auth ref: [] }, "NEOV AmortizedValueOfSharesGrantedToVariousAdvisorsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//neovolta.com/20240630", "localname":
"AmortizedValueOfSharesGrantedToVariousAdvisorsMember", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Amortized Value Of
Shares Granted To Various Advisors [Member]" } } }. "auth ref": [] }, "dei AnnuallnformationForm": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "

"AnnuallnformationForm", "]

‘nsuri”: "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname":
presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], ”1anq”: { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Annual Information Form", "documentation": "Boolean flag with value true
on a form if it is an annual report containing an annual information form." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r448" ] }, "us-gaap AntidilutiveSecuritiesExcludedFromComputationOfFarningsPerShareAmount":
{ "xbritype": "sharesltemType", "nsuri": "http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "AntidilutiveSecuritiesExcludedFromComputationOfEarningsPerShareAmount", "presentation"”: [
"http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Antidilutive shares", "documentation": "Securities
(including those issuable pursuant to contingent stock agreements) that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share (EPS) or earnings per unit (EPU) in the future that were not included in
the computation of diluted EPS or EPU because to do so would increase EPS or EPU amounts or decrease loss per share or unit amounts for the period presented." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r133" ] }
"us-gaap AntidilutiveSecuritiesExcludedFromComputationOfFarningsPerShareByAntidilutiveSecuritiesAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"AntidilutiveSecuritiesExcludedFromComputationOfEarningsPerShareByAntidilutiveSecuritiesAxis", "presentation":
’httg:ﬁneovo]ta.com[m]e/BusinessAndSummaWOfSianiﬁcanfAccmmL'jnaPo]jcjesDetai]sNarrative "] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Antidilutive Securities [Axis]", "documentation":
"Information by type of antidilutive security." "auth ref": [ "r11" "us-gaap AntidilutiveSecuritiesNameDomain": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024",
"localname": "AntidilutiveSecuritiesNameDomain", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": {
"role": { "documentation": "Incremental common shares attributable to securities that were not included in diluted earnings per share (EPS) because to do so would increase EPS amounts or
decrease loss per share amounts for the period presented." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r11"] }, "NEOV_AssemblyOfEnergyStorageSystemsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri":
"http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "AssemblyOfEnergyStorageSystemsMember", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/RelatedPartyTransactionsDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": {
"en-us": { "role": { "label": "Assembly Of Energy Storage Systems [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap Assets": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024",
"localname": "Assets", "crdr": "debit", ”ca]cu]atzan { "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets": { "parentTag": null, "weight": null, "order": null, "root": true } }, "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" " y ": { "totall.abel": "Total assets", "label": "Assets [Default Label]", "documentation": "Amount of asset recognized for present
right to economic benefit." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r62", "r69", ”1‘8 " 'r107" "r136", "ri40", "'r146", "ri47", "r153", "r166", "r167", "r168", "r169", "r170" "'r171", "r172", "r173" "r174", "r256",
'r258", "r270", 'r293", "r350", 'r405", "r406", "'r409", "r422", "r538", "r539", "r551" ] }, "us-gaap AssetsAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": ”httD /fasb.org/us-gaap/2024",
”Iocalname” "AssetsAbstract", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Assets" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap AssetsCurrent": {
"xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http:/fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "AssetsCurrent", "crdr": "debit", "calculation": { "http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets": { "parentTag":
"us-gaap Assets", "weight": 1.0, "order": 1.0 } }, "presentation": | "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" ], "lang": { "en- us” { "role": { "totallLabel": "Total current assets", "label": "Assets,
Current”, "documentation”: "Amount of asset recognized for present right to economic benefit, classified as current." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r80", "r91", "'r107", "r153", "r166", "r167", "r168",
"r169", "'r170" "ri71" "ri72" "r173" "r174", "r256" "r258", "'r270", "r409", "r538", "'r539" "r551" ] }, "us-gaap AssetsCurrentAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri":
"http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "AssetsCurrentAbstract", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Current assets:" } } }
”aul’hﬁref’: [1 1. "dei AuditedAnnualFinancialStatements": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "AuditedAnnualFinancialStatements”,
‘presentation”; [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Audited Annual Financial Statements", "documentation": "Boolean flag with value true on a form if it is
an annual report containing audited financial statements." } } }, "auth_ re ": [ "'r448" ] }, "dei AuditorFirmlId": { "xbritype": "nonemptySequenceNumberltemType", "nsuri":

: /2024", "localname": "AuditorFirmld", " ://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Auditor Firm ID", "documentation":
”PCAOB zssued Audit Firm Identifier” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r434", "'r436", "r448" ] }, "dei AuditorLocation": { "xbritype": "internationalNameltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl sec.gov/dei/2024",
“localname": ”AudztorLocatzon” "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Auditor Location" } } }, "auth ref": [ "rd34", "'r436", "rd48" ]}
"dei AuditorName": { "xbritype": "internationalNameltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "AuditorName", "presentation": [ "http:
{ "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Audztor Name" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r434", "r436", "'r448" ] }, "NEOV AugustPublicOfferingMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri":
"http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "AugustPublicOfferingMember", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "August
Public Offering [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "ecd AwardExrcPrice": { "xbritype": "perShareltemType", "nsuri”: "http.//xbrl sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AwardExrcPrice",
Dresentatian [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Exercise Price" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r499" ] }, "ecd AwardGrantDateFairValue": {

"xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AwardGrantDateFairValue", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ],
"lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Fair Value as of Grant Date" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r500" ] }, "ecd AwardTmgDiscLineltems": { "xbrltype": "stringltemType", "nsuri":
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AwardTmgDiscLineltems", "auth ref": [ "'r495" ] }, "ecd AwardTmgHowMnpiCnsdrdTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri":
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AwardTmgHowMnpiCnsdrdTextBlock", "] i ://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Award Timing, How MNPI Considered" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r495" ] }, "ecd AwardTmgMethodTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":
"AwardTmgMethodTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Award Timing Method" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r495" ]
L "ecd AwardTmgMnpiCnsdrdFlag": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AwardTmgMnpiCnsdrdFlag", "presentation": [
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Award Timing MNPI Considered" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r495" ]}

"ecd AwardTmgMnpiDiscTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockItemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.qov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AwardTmgMnpiDiscTextBlock", "presentation": [
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ], "lang"; { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Award Timing MNPI Disclosure" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r495"] } ”ecdiAWardTmaPredtrmndFJag”: {
"xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": ”AwardTmaPredtrmndF]aq ", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ], "lang":
{ "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Award Timing Predetermined" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r495" ] }, "us-gaap AwardTypeAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024",
"localname": "AwardTypeAxis”, ",

presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative", "http.//xbrl sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
”Award Type [Axis]", "documentation": "Information by type of award under share-based payment arrangement."” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r196", "r197" "r198" "r199". "r200", "r201", "r202", "r203",
"r204", "r205", "'r206", "r207", "r208", "r209", "r210", "r211", "r212", "r213", "r214", "r215", "r216", "r217", " 218” "] 2]9” “r220", "r221" ] } "ecd _ AWardUHdTIVL?SeCuntlesAmt” { XbrItVDe

"decimalltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "AwardUndrlygSecuritiesAmt", "] - [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDi.
us": { "role": { "label": "Underlying Securities" } } }, "auth_ ref’ [ "r498" ] }, "ecd AwardsCloseToMnpiDiscIndName": { xbritype": " trmq]temTVpe” "nsuri": "http./xbrl.sec.gov, ecd 2024”
“localname": "AwardsCloseToMnpiDiscIndName", '] ://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "verboseLabel": "Name", "label": "Awards
Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures, Individual Name" } } } "auth_ref": [ "'r497" ] }, "ecd AwardsCloseToMnpiDiscTable": { ”Xbr]the " " trma]temTVpe " "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024"
"localname": ”AwardsC‘]oseToMn JDzscTabIe Y 5 imi; A role": { "label";: "Awards Close in Time to MNPI

3 f / "xbritype": ”l’sxtB]ockItemT e” ”nsun” "http:
"AwardsCloseToMn, iDiscTab]eTextB]ock" "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Awards Close in Time to MNPI
Dlsc]usures Tab]e”} } } ”auth ref": [ ”r496”] L "us- gaap_ BaSJSOfAccuzml'mnPohchoIzchextB]uc "L Xbr]tvpe” ”textB]ockItemTVpe” ”nsun” "]1tl'p fasb orq us qaap 2024 ” ”Iocalname

"Basis of Presenta t1011 ", "documentation": "Disclosure of accoun tmq policy for bas1s of accounting, or basis of presentation, used to prepare the financial statements (for example, US Genera]]v
Principles, Other Com rehenszve Bas1s of. Accountm IFRS . “auth ref": "NEOV_BusinessDescriptionPolicyPolicyTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType",

Po]ic;/ [Policy Text Block]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap_ CasbAndCashEﬂuzVa]entsAtCareranlue" i Xbr]the” "’monetarvltemTVpe“ “nsuri"; "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap, 2024 ", "localname":

"CashAndCashEquivalentsAtCarryingValue", "crdr": "debit", "calculation": { "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets": { "parentTag": "us-gaap AssetsCurrent", "weight": 1.0, "order": 1.0 } }
"presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role, Ba]anceS'beel’S” L "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Cash and cash equivalents", "documentation": "Amount of currency on hand as well as demand
deposits with banks or financial institutions. Includes other kinds of accounts that have the general characteristics of demand deposits. Also includes short-term, highly liquid investments that
are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Excludes cash and

cash equivalents within disposa IUmup and discontinued operation.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r6", 'r83", "r396" ] }, "us-gaap _CashAndCashEquivalentsPolicyTextBlock": { "xbritype":
2024", "localname": "CashAndCashEquivalentsPolicyTextBlock", "]

. us-gaa
"http.//neovolta.com/role, BusmessAndS ummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesPolicies" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Cash and Cash Equivalents", "documentation": "Disclosure of
] olicy for cash and cash equivalents, including the policy for determining which items are treated as cash equivalents. Other information that may be disclosed includes (1) the
nature of any restrictions on the entity's use of its cash and cash equivalents, (2) whether the entity's cash and cash equivalents are insured or expose the entity to credit risk, (3) the
classification of any negative balance accounts (overdrafts), and (4) the carrying basis of cash equivalents (for example, at cost) and whether the carrying amount of cash equivalents
approximates fair value." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r7" ] }, "us-gaap CashCashEquivalentsRestrictedCashAndRestrictedCashEquivalents": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri":
"http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "CashCashEquivalentsRestrictedCashAndRestrictedCashEquivalents", "crdr": "debit", "presentation":
"http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "periodStartLabel": "Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period", "periodEndLabel": "Cash and cash
equivalents at end of period"”, "label": "Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, and Restricted Cash Equivalents", "documentation": "Amount of cash and cash equivalents, and cash and cash
equivalents restricted to withdrawal or usage. Excludes amount for disposal group and discontinued operations. Cash includes, but is not limited to, currency on hand, demand deposits with
banks or financial institutions, and other accounts with general characteristics of demand deposits. Cash equivalents include, but are not limited to, short-term, highly liquid investments that
are both readily con Vertib]e to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates.” } } }, "auth reF " [
‘r6", 'r48", 'r105"] } aap CashCashEquivalentsRestrictedCashAndRestrictedCashEquivalentsPeriodIncreaseDecreaseExcludingExchangeRateEffect": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType".
"nsuri": "http.//fasb. arq us-gaap, 0/2024", "localname": "CashCashE. muva]entsRsstnctedCashAndRestncl’stashEnwVa]entsPenodIncreaseDecreaseEXC]udm/rExcbanneRateEffect” "crdr": "debit”,
" ": null, "weight": null, "order": null, "root": true
"http:, neava]ta com, ro]e StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { ”tota]Labe] ": "Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equzva]ents” "label": "Cash, Cash Equivalents,
Restricted Cash, and Restricted Cash Equivalents, Period Increase (Decrease), Excluding Exchange Rate Effect”. "documentation": "Amount of increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents,
and cash and cash equivalents restricted to withdrawal or usage; excluding effect from exchange rate change. Cash includes, but is not limited to, currency on hand, demand deposits with
banks or financial institutions, and other accounts with general characteristics of demand deposits. Cash equivalents include, but are not limited to, short-term, highly liquid investments that
are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates." } } }, "auth ref": [
T0", "r48" "us-gaap CashFlowNoncashin vestinnAndanancinnrActiVjtiesDisclosureAbstract”.- { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"CashFlowNoncashinvestingAndFinancingActivitiesDisclosureAbstract”, " " ://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Supplemental non-cash financing activities:" ) "us-gaap Cash UnmsuredAmount”: { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"CashUninsuredAmount”, "crdr": "debit", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"label": "Cash, Uninsured Amount", "documentation": "The amount of cash as of the balance sheet date that is not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation." } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"ecd_ChangedPeerGroupFnTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "ChangedPeerGroupFnTextBlock", "presentation": [
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Changed Peer Group, Footnote" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r474" ] }, "srt ChiefExecutiveOfficerMember": {
"xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/srt/2024", "localname": "ChiefExecutiveOfficerMember", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": {
"en-us": { "role": { "label": "Chief Executive Officer [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r533" ] }, "srt ChiefFinancialOfficerMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri":
"http://fasb.org/srt/2024", "localname": "ChiefFinancialOfficerMember", "presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Chief
Financial Officer [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r533" ] }, "dei CityAreaCode": { "xbritype": "normalizedStringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "CityAreaCode",
"presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "City Area Code", "documentation": "Area code of city" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-
gaap_ClassOfStockDomain": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", ") "

‘nsuri”: "http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "ClassOfStockDomain", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover",
"http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "documentation": "Share of stock differentiated by the voting rights the holder receives. Examples include, but
are not limited to, common stock, redeemable preferred stock, nonredeemable preferred stock, and convertible stock." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r77", "'r85", "r86", "r87" "r107", "r127", "r128",
"r130", "r132", "ri38", "r139" "ri53", "r166", "r168", "r169", "r170" "r173", "ri74" "r178" "r179", "ri82" "ri85" "ri91", "r270" "r310", "r311", "r312" "r313", "r319" "r320" "r321", "r322"

"r323", "'r324", "r325", "r326", "r327", "r328", "'r329", "r330", "r338", "'r359", "r379", "r386", "r387", "r388", 'r389", "r390", "r512", 'r521", "r527"] }, "us-

aap ClassOfWarrantOrRightExercisePriceOfWarrantsOrRights1":

"ClassOfWarrantOrRightExercisePriceOfWarrantsOrRights1", "presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role, E(nutVDetaI]s WarrantActivity"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Weighted
Average Exercise Price, Beginning", "periodStartlLabel": "Weighted Average Exercise Price, Beginning", "periodEndLabel": "Weighted Average Exercise Pnce Beginning", "documentation":
"Exercise price per share or per unit of warrants or rights outstanding." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r192" ] }, "us-gaap ClassOfWarrantOrRightOutstanding": { "xbritype": "sharesltemType", "nsuri":
"http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "ClassOfWarrantOrRightOutstanding", "presentation": | "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity”,
"http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Warrants outstanding, beginning", "periodStartlLabel": "Warrants outstanding, beginning"
"verboseLabel": "Class of Warrant or Right, Outstanding", "documentation": "Number of warrants or rights outstanding." } } }. "auth ref": [] }, "ecd CoSelectedMeasureAmt": { "xbritype":

"decimalltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", ’YUCa]name” "CoSelectedMeasureAmt", "presentation": [ "http://xbrl. s€ec.gov/ ecd 'role/Pvj Dzsc105ure” L ”Ianq” { "en-us": { "role": {

"label": "Company Selected Measure Amount" "auth ref": [ "r475" "ecd CoSelectedMeasureName":

"localname": "CoSelectedMeasureName", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Company Selected Msasure Name" } } }




"auth ref": [ "'r475" ] }, "us-gaap CommitmentsAndContingencies": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "CommitmentsAndContingencies"”,
“crdr": "credit", "calculation": { "http:/neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets": { "parentTag": "us- -gaap LiabilitiesAndStockholdersEquity", "weight": 1.0, "order": 2.0 } }, "presentation”: [
"http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Commitments and contingencies (Note 4)". "documentation": "Represents the caption on the face of the balance
sheet to indicate that the entity has entered into (1) purchase or supply arrangements that will require expending a portion of its resources to meet the terms thereof, and (2) is exposed to

potential losses or, less frequently, gains, arising from (a) possible claims against a company's resources due to future performance under contract terms, and (b) possible losses or likely gains

from uncertainties that will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events that are deemed likely to occur do occur or fail to occur.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r28", "r63", "r294", "r337" ]}
aa, 7Comm1tmentsA_ndContm enczestc]osureAbstract” 1 : ) " 2 us-gaa 2024 ", "localname":

" o

en enci

gaap CommonStockMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", ‘YDCalname” "CommonStockMember resentation":

"http.//neovolta.com/role, BusmessAHdSummarVOfSerszcantAccountmqPo]chesDetaI]sNaITatzve" "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity"” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {

"label": "Common Stock [Member]", "documentation": "Stock that is subordinate to all other stock of the issuer.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r412" "r413", "r414" 'r416" "r417", "r418" "r419", "r523"

"r524", "'r526", "r545", "r583", "r585" ] }, "us-gaap CommonStockParOrStatedValuePerShare": { "xbritype": "perShareltem Type", "nsuri": "http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":

"CommonStockParOrStatedValuePerShare", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheetsParenthetical" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Common Stock, Par or Stated Value

Per Share", "documentation": "Face amount or stated value per share of common stock." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r30" ] }, "NEOV _CommonStockParValue0.001PerShareMember": { "xbritype":

"domainitemType", "nsuri": "http.//neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "CommonStockParValue0.001PerShareMember", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us":
"role": { "label": "Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share” } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap CommonStockSharesAuthorized": { "xbritype": "sharesltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-

gaap/2024", "localname": "CommonStockSharesAuthorized", "presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheetsParenthetical" ], "Ianq. { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Common Stock,

Shares Authorized"”, "documentation": "The maximum number of common shares permitted to be issued by an entity's charter and bylaws." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r30", "r338" ] }, "us-

gaap CommonStockShareslssued": { "xbritype": "sharesltemType", "

"o

'nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "CommonStockSharesIssued”, "presentation": [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheetsParenthetical” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Common Stock, Shares, Issued", "documentation": "Total number of common shares of an entity
that have been sold or granted to shareholders (includes common shares that were issued, repurchased and remain in the treasury). These shares represent capital invested by the firm's
shareholders and owners, and may be all or only a pon‘}on of the number of shares authorized. Shares issued include shares outstanding and shares held in the treasury." } } }, "auth ref": [
"xbritype": "sharesltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "CommonStockSharesQutstandin, ‘]
"http://neovolta.com/role, Ba]ancesheetsParenthetha] "] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { ’Yabe] ": "Common Stock, Shares, Outstanding", "documentation": "Number of shares of common stock
outstanding. Common stock represent the ownership interest in a corporation.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r4", "r30", "r338", "'r356", "r585", "r586" ] }, "us-gaap CommonStockValue": { "xbritype":
'monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "CommonStockValue", "crdr": "credit", "calculation": { "http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets": { "parentTag": "u:
gaap StockholdersEquity", "weight": 1.0, "order": 1.0 } }, "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Common stock, $0.001 par Value
100,000,000 shares authorized, 33,236,091 shares and 33,155,127 shares issued and outstanding, respectively”, "documentation": "Aggregate par or stated value of issued nonredeemable
common stock (or common stock redeemable solely at the option of the issuer). This item includes treasury stock repurchased by the entity. Note: elements for number of nonredeemable
common shares, par value and other disclosure concepts are in another section within stack]zo]ders eqlutV "rrE ”auth ref": [ "'r30", "r295", "'r409" ] }
"ecd CompActuallyPaidVsCoSelectedMeasureTextBlock": brli : H .sec. d/2024", "localname":
"CompActuallyPaid VsCoSe]sctedMeasure TeXtB]ock” "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role, PVDDISC]OSUI'E "1 ’Yanq” { "en-us": { "role"; { “Iabe] ": "Compensation Actually Paid vs.
Company Selected Measure" "r480" "ecd CompActuallyPaidVsNetIncomeTextBlock": : ://xbrl.
”100a111ame " ”CompAcL’ua]]VPaJd VsNet]ucomeTeXtB]ock” "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov, scd ro]e(PVgDJsc]osure " "lang": { "en- -us’: { "role": { "label": ”Comgensatwn Actually Paid vs.
i : XbI‘ sec.gov, ecd 2024", ’Yoca]name

"CompActualls PaId VsTata]Shareho]derRtn TextBlock", "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd ro]e Py DIsc]osure " "lang": { "en-us": { "m]e "L "Iabel ": "Compensation Actually Paid vs. Total
Shareholder Return" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r478" ] }, "us-gaap CompensationRelatedCostsPolicyTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us- qaag(2024” "localname":
"CompensationRelatedCostsPolicyTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesPolicies" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Stock Compensation Expense", "documentation": "Disclosure of accounting policy for salaries, bonuses, incentive awards, postretirement and postemployment benefits granted to emg]ozees
including equity-based arrangements; discloses methodologies for measurement, and the bases for recognizing related assets and liabilities and recognizing and reporting compensation
expense." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r58", 'r59" ] }, "us-gaap ConcentrationRiskBenchmarkDomain": { "xbritype": "domainitemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"ConcentrationRiskBenchmarkDomain", ]

presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"documentation": "The denominator in a calculation of a disclosed concentration risk percentage.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r13", "ri4" "r21", "r22", "'r150", "r392"] }, "us-
gaap ConcentrationRiskByBenchmarkAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "

‘nsuri”: "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "ConcentrationRiskByBenchmarkAxis", "presentation":

"http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryQOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Concentration Risk Benchmark [Axis]",

“documentatjon ": "Information by benchmark of concentration risk." } } }, "auth ref": [ "rl13", "rl4", "r21" "r22" "r150", "r307", 'r392"] }, "us-gaap ConcentrationRiskByTypeAxis":
"xbritype": "stringltemType", " ]

‘nsuri”: "http.//fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "ConcentrationRiskByTypeAxis", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Concentration Risk Type [Axis]", "documentation":
“Information by type of concentration risk, for example, but not limited to, asset, liability, net assets, geographic, customer, employees, supplier, lender." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r13", "r14" "r21"
‘r22" "r150" 'r392", "r514" ] }, "us-gaap ConcentrationRiskPercentagel": { "xbritype": ']

percentitemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"ConcentrationRiskPercentagel ", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
“Concentration Risk, Percentage", "documentation": "For an entity that discloses a concentration risk in relation to quantitative amount, which serves as the |"benchmark|" (or denominator) in
the equation, this concept represents the concentration percentage derived from the division." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r13", "r14", "r21", "r22", "r150" ] }, "us-gaap ConcentrationRiskTypeDomain":
{ "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "ConcentrationRiskTypeDomain", "presentation":
"http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "documentation": "For an entity that discloses a concentration
risk as a percentage of some financial balance or benchmark, identifies the type (for example, asset, liability, net assets, geographic, customer, employees, supplier, lender) of the
concentration.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r13", "ri4" "r21" "r22", 'r150", "r392" ]}, "NEOV ConvertibleNotesPayableAndAccruedinterestConvertedToCommonStock": { "xbritype":
"monetaryltemType", ") " “:

‘nsuri”; "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "ConvertibleNotesPayableAndAccruedinterestConvertedToCommonStoc: ‘crdr": "credit", "presentation": [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Convertible notes payable and accrued interest converted to common stock" } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"us-gaap CostOfGoodsAndServicesSold": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "CostOfGoodsAndServicesSold", "crdr": "debit", "calculation":
"http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations": { "parentTag": "us-gaap GrossProfit", "weight": -1.0, "order": 2.0 } }, "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations" ]
"lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Cost of goods sold", "documentation": "The aggregate costs related to goods produced and sold and services rendered by an entity during the reporting
period. This excludes costs incurred during the reporting period related to financial services rendered and other revenue generating activities.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r42", "r43" "r290" ] }
"srt_CounterpartyNameAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/srt/2024", "localname": "CounterpartyNameAxis", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta. com[m]e/BusmessAndSummarVOfS’zﬂmﬁcanfAccounL'maPo]chesDetaz]sNarratzve" "http://neovolta.com/role EquthDetaUsNarranve”] “lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
'r109", "r110", "r175", "r180", "r284", "r288", "r292", "r398", "r400" R e": "normalizedStringltemType",
“http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "CountryRegion", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": ( "label": "Country Region", "documentation":
"Region code of country" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei CoverAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "CoverAbstract”, "lang": { "en-us": {
role": { "documentation”: "Cover page." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei CurrentFiscalYearEndDate": { "xbritype": "gMonthDayltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname":
"CurrentFiscalYearEndDate", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Current Fiscal Year End Date", "documentation": "End date of current
fiscal year in the format --MM-DD." } } }, "auth ref":[] }, "us-gaap CustomerConcentrationRiskMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"CustomerConcentrationRiskMember", "presentation": [ "http:/neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Customer Concentration Risk [Member]", "documentation": "Reflects the percentage that revenues in the period from one or more significant customers is to net revenues, as defined by the
entity, such as total net revenues, product line revenues, segment revenues. The risk is the materially adverse effects of loss of a significant customer." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r53", "r150" ] }
"NEOV_DealerOneMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "DealerOneMember", "presentation": [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Dealer One [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"NEOV _DealerThreeMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "DealerThreeMember", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Dealer Three [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"NEOV _DealerTwoMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "DealerTwoMember", "]

"nsuri”:

presentation”: [

"http://neovolta.com/role, BusinessAndSummarVOfSinniﬁcan[AccozmtmnPo]IczesDeta)]sNaITatzve” 1 "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Dealer Two [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-
aap DebtConversionConvertedInstrumentAmountl”; { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "DebtConversionConvertedInstrumentAmountl ",
“crdr"; "credit", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Debt converted, amount converted", "documentation": "The value of
the financial instrument(s) that the original debt is being converted into in a noncash (or part noncash) transaction. |"Part noncash|" refers to that portion of the transaction not resu]tina in cash

"o

‘nsuri":

receipts or cash payments in the period." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r9", "r10" ] }, "us-gaap _ DethuuverswnCOHvertsd]nstrumentSbaresIssued] " Xbr]tvpe” “ harss[temTVpe
”htt : fasb org/us-gaap/2024". ”Jocalname" ”DethonversmnConvertedInstrumentSharesIssued] ]

gaap DeferredCompensationLiabilityCurrentAndNoncurrent": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap, 2024 " "localname":
"DeferredCompensationLiabilityCurrentAndNoncurrent”, "crdr": "credit"”. "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Accrued
compensation expenses", "documentation": "Aggregate carrying value as of the balance sheet date of the liabilities for all deferred compensation arrangements. Represents currently earned
compensation under compensation arrangements that is not actually paid until a later date.” } } }, "auth ref: [] }. "us-gaap DeferredIncomeTaxesAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType",
"nsuri": "http.//fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "DeferredIncomeTaxesAbstract”, "presentation": [ "http://neovolita.com/role/IncomeTaxesDetails-ScheduleOfDeferredTaxes" ], "lang": { "en-
us": { "role": { "label": "Deferred income tax assets:" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap DeferredTaxAssetsNet": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024",
"localname": "DeferredTaxAssetsNet", "crdr": "debit", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/I[ncomeTaxesDetails-ScheduleOfDeferredTaxes" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Net
deferred income tax assets", "documentation": "Amount after allocation of valuation allowances of deferred tax asset attributable to deductible temporary differences and carryforwards." } } }

"auth ref": [ "r542" ] }, "us-gaap DeferredTaxAssetsOperatinglossCarryforwards": { "xbritype": " .

‘monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"DeferredTaxAssetsOperatinglossCarryforwards", "crdr": "debit", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/IncomeTaxesDetails-ScheduleOfDeferredTaxes" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"label": "Net ogeratinq losses", "documentation": "Amount before allocation of valuation allowances of deferred tax asset attributable to deductible operating loss carryforwards." } } }
"auth ref": [ "r543" ] }, "us-gaap DeferredTaxAssetsValuationAllowance": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"DeferredTaxAssetsValuationAllowance", “crdr": "credit”, "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/IncomeTaxesDetails-ScheduleOfDeferredTaxes" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"negatedLabel": "Valuation allowance", "label": "Deferred Tax Assets, Valuation Allowance", "documentation": "Amount of deferred tax assets for which it is more likely than not that a tax
benefit will not be realized.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r235" ] }, "dei DocumentAccountingStandard": { "xbritype": "accountingStandarditemType", ",

‘nsuri”: "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname":
"DocumentAccountingStandard", "presentation": | "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Document Accounting Standard", "documentation": "The basis of
accounting the registrant has used to prepare the financial statements included in this filing This can either be 'U.S. GAAP', 'International Financial Reporting Standards’, or 'Other"."
"auth ref": [ "r436" ] }, "dei DocumentAnnualReport": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "DocumentAnnualReport", "presentation": |
"http://neovolta.com/role/Cover"” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Document Annual Report", "documentation": "Boolean flag that is true only for a form used as an annual report." } } }
"auth_ref": [ "r434", "'r436", "r448" ] }, "dei DocumentFinStmtErrorCorrectionFlag": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname":
"DocumentFinStmtErrorCorrectionFlag", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Document Financial Statement Error Correction [Flag]",
"documentation": "Indicates whether any of the financial statement period in the filing include a restatement due to error correction.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r434", "'r436", "r448", "r484" ]}
"dei_DocumentFiscalPeriodFocus": { "xbritype": "fiscalPeriodltemType", "] %

‘nsuri”: "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "DocumentFiscalPeriodFocus", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/Cover” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Document Fiscal Period Focus", "documentation": "Fiscal period values are FY, Q1, Q2, and Q3. 1st, 2nd and 3rd quarter
] 0-Q or 10-QT statements have value Q1, Q2, and Q3 respectively, with 10-K, 10-KT or other fiscal year statements having FY." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei DocumentFiscalYearFocus": {
"xbritype": "gYearltemType", "nsuri": "http./xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "DocumentFiscalYearFocus", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"label": "Document Fiscal Year Focus", "documentation": "This is focus fiscal year of the document report in YYYY format. For a 2006 annual report, which may also provide financial information

from prior periods, fiscal 2006 should be given as the fiscal year focus. Example: 2006." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei DocumentPeriodEndDate": { "xbritype": "dateltemType", "nsuri":




://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Document Period End Date",

”documentatzon ": "For the EDGAR subszsmH types of Form 8-K: the date of the rgpurt the date of the earliest event reported; for the EDGAR submission types of Form N-1A: the filing date;
for all other submission types: the end of the reporting or transition period. The format of the date is YYYY-MM-DD." "auth ref™: "dei_DocumentPeriodStartDate": { "xbrl :

"dateltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "DocumentPeriodStartDate", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com, ru]e Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { ”Iabel "
"Document Period Start Date". "documentation": "The start date of the period covered in the document, in YYYY-MM-DD format." ‘auth ref": "dei DocumentQuarterlyReport":
“xbritype": "booleanitemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "DocumentQuarterlyReport", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
“"label": "Document Quarterly Report", "documentation": "Boolean flag that is true only for a form used as an quarterly report." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r435" ] }
"dei_DocumentRegistrationStatement": { "xbritype": ’Y)oo]ean[temTVDe” "nsuri": "http./xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "DocumentRegistrationStatement", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Document Registration Statement", "documentation": "Boolean flag that is true only for a form used as a registration
Statement." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r423" ] }, "dei_ Documentshe]]CamDanVEventDate” { Xbr[tvpe" ”date[temTVpe“ "nsuri": "http./xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname":
"DocumentShellCompanyEventDate", "] "lang": "role": { "label": "Document Shell Company Event Date", "documentation": "Date of
event requiring a shell company report.” } } }, "auth ref: / 'r436" ] }, "dei DocumentShellCom, Jaanqpoﬁ” { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri”: "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024",
“localname": "DocumentShellCompanyReport", "presentation": [ "http./neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Document Shell Company Report", "documentation”:
"Boolean flag that is true for a Shell Company Report pursuant to section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r436" ] }, "dei DocumentTransitionReport": { "xbritype":
"booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http./xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "DocumentTransitionReport", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Document Transition Report", "documentation”: "Boolean flag that is true only for a form used as a transition report." } } }, "auth ref": [ 'r469" ] }, "dei DocumentType": { "xbritype":
"submissionTypeltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "DocumentType", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Document Type", "documentation": "The type of document being provided (such as 10-K, 10-Q, 485BPOS, etc). The document type is limited to the same value as the supporting SEC
submission type, or the word 'Other"." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei DocumentslncorporatedByReferenceTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024",
“localname": "DocumentsincorporatedByReferenceTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Documents Incorporated by Reference
[Text Block]", "documentation": "Documents incorporated by reference." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r426" ] }, "us-gaap FarningsPerShareBasic": { "xbritype": "perShareltemType", "nsuri":
"http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "EarningsPerShareBasic", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperationsParenthetical” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Earnings Per Share, Basic", "documentation": "The amount of net income (loss) for the period per each share of common stock or unit outstanding during the reporting period."

"auth ref": [ "'r98", "r116", "r117" "r118", "r119", "ri20" "ri21" "ri25" "ri27", "r130" "ri31", "r132" "ri35", "'r252" "r255" 'r268" "r269", "'r291", "r300", "'r403"] }, "us-
gaap_EarningsPerShareDiluted": { "xbritype": "perShareltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "EarningsPerShareDiluted", "presentation": |
"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperationsParenthetical" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Earnings Per Share, Diluted", "documentation": "The amount of net income (loss) for the
period available to each share of common stock or common unit outstanding during the reporting period and to each share or unit that would have been outstanding assuming the issuance of
common shares or units for all dilutive potential common shares or units outstanding during the renortjnq period." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r98", "r116", ‘'ril17" "r118" "r119" "r120" "ri21"

“r127" "r130" "r131°", "r132" "rl135", "r252" "r255", "r268", "r269", 'r291", "r300", "'r403" ] 2 "us- Qay Earmn@PeerarePo]lchextB]uck” { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri":

"“http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "EarningsPerSharePolicyTextBlock", ", H . ! OfSignificantAccountingPoliciesPolicies"
"lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Loss Per Common Share", "documentation": "Disclosure of accalmtma policy for computing basic and diluted earnings or loss per share for each class of

common stock and participating security. Addresses all significant policy factors, including any antidilutive items that have been excluded from the computation and takes into account stock
djdeends splits and reverse splits that occur after the balance sheet date of the latest reporting period but before the issuance of the financial statements.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r11", "ri2"
'r134" ] }, "dei EntityAddressAddressLinel": { "xbritype": "normalizedStringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityAddressAddressLinel", "presentation": [

“http://neovolta. cam(ro]e(Cover L "lang": { "811 us": f ole": { "label": "Entity Address, Address Lme One", "documentation": "Address Line 1 such as Attn, Building Name, Street Name”} I3

"auth ref": - { "xbrit; e" "normalizedStringltemType : ://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname"; "EntityAddressAddressLine2", "]
“http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en- us” { ole": { !} abe]” "Entity Address, Address Lme Two", "documentation": “Address Lme 2 such as Street or Suite number" } } 1 "auth_ ref”’
"dei EntityAddressAddressLine3": { "xbrl P i :
”11ttg ﬁneovo]ta cam[m]e(Cover" L "lang": { "en- us” { ole": { "label": "Entity Address, Address Line Tbree“ "documentation": ”Address Line 3311011 as an Office Park" } } 1 "auth ref": [] }
" e": " urmabzedStrm IltemType", "nsuri": "http:,
“http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], “lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label”: "Entity Address, City or Town", "documentation": "Name of the City or Town" } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"dei EntityAddressCountry": { " br]tvpe ”: "countryCodeltemType", "nsuri”: "http.//xbrl sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityAddressCountry", "presentation": [
“hitp.//neovolta.com/role/Cover” "1 ang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Address, Country", "documentation": "ISO 3166-1 alpha-2 country code." } } 1, "auth ref": [] .
"dei Enti " ": "normalizedStringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityAddressPostalZi]
"http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "811 us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Address, Postal Zip Code", "documentation": "Code for the postal or zip code" } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"dei_EntityAddressStateOrProvince": { "xbritype": "stateOrProvinceltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityAddressStateOrProvince", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/Cover"” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Address, State or Province", "documentation": "Name of the state or province." } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"dei EntityBankruptcyProceedingsReportingCurrent": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityBankruptcyProceedingsReportingCurrent”,
"presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Bankruptcy Proceedings, Reporting Current", "documentation": "For registrants involved in
bankruptcy proceedings during the preceding five years, the value Yes indicates that the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 12, 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court: the value No indicates the registrant has not. Registrants not involved in
bankruptcy proceedings during the preceding five years should not report this element." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r429" ] }, "dei_ EntitVCentrallndeXKeV” { "xbritype": "centrallndexKeyltemType",
"nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityCentrallndexKey", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Central Index Key",

"documentation": "A unique 10-digit SEC- zssued Va]ue to identify entities that have filed disclosures with the SEC. It is commonly abbreviated as CIK." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r425" ] }
"dei EntityCommonStockSharesQutstanding": { "xbritype": "sharesltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityCommonStockSharesQutstandin resentation":

"http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { ”en us": { "I 1 ": { "label": "Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding”, "documentation”: "Indicate number of shares or other units outstanding of
each of registrant's classes of capital or common stock or other ownership interests, if and as stated on cover of related periodic report. Where multiple classes or units exist define each
class/interest by adding class of stock items such as Common Class A [Member], Common Class B [Member] or Partnership Interest [Member] onto the Instrument [Domain] of the Entity
Listings, Instrument.” } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei EntityCurrentReportingStatus": { "xbritype": "vesNoltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname":
"EntityCurrentReportingStatus", "presentation”: [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Current Reporting Status", "documentation": "Indicate 'Yes' or
‘No' whether registrants (1) have filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period
that registrants were required to file such reports), and (2) have been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. This information should be based on the registrant's current or
most recent filing containing the related disclosure." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei EntityEmergingGrowthCompany": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http./xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024",
“localname": "EntityEmergingGrowthCompany", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Emerging Growth Company", "documentation":
“Indicate if registrant meets the emerging growth company criteria." } } }. "auth ref": [ "'r425" ] }, "dei EntityExTransitionPeriod": { "xbritype": "booleaniltemType", "nsuri":
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityExTransitionPeriod", "presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Elected Not To Use the
Extended Transition Period", "documentation": "Indicate if an emerging growth company has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial
accounting standards.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r511"] } ”dez;Entil'VFi]eNumber”: { "xbritype": "fileNumberltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityFileNumber",
"presentation": | "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover"” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity File Number", "documentation": "Commission file number. The field allows up to 17 characters.
The prefix may contain 1-3 digits, the sequence number may contain 1-8 digits, the optional suffix may contain 1-4 characters, and the fields are separated with a hyphen." } } }, "auth ref": [] }
“dei EntityFilerCategory": { "xbritype": "filerCategoryltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityFilerCategory", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ]
"lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Filer Category", "documentation": "Indicate whether the registrant is one of the following: Large Accelerated Filer. Accelerated Filer, Non-
accelerated Filer. Definitions of these categories are stated in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. This information should be based on the registrant's current or most recent filing containing the
related disclosure." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r425" ] }, "dei EntitylncorporationStateCountryCode": { "xbritype": "edgarStateCountryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname":
"EntitylncorporationStateCountryCode", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Incorporation, State or Country Code",
"documentation": "Two-character EDGAR code representing the state or country of incorporation.” } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei EntityinteractiveDataCurrent": { "xbritype": "vesNoltemType"
"nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntitylnteractiveDataCurrent", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Interactive
Data Current”, "documentation": "Boolean flag that is true when the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of
Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files)." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r508" ] }, "dei EntityPrimarySicNumber":
{ xbritype": "sicNumberltemType", "nsuri”: "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityPrimarySicNumber", "presentation": | "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ]. "lang": { "en-us": {
role": { "label": "Entity Primary SIC Number", "documentation": "Primary Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Number for the Entity." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r448" ] }, "dei_ EntltVPub]wF]oat”
"xbritype": "monetaryltemT} ://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityPublicFloat", "crdr": "credit", ", ion": : X :
{ "role": { "label": "Entity Public Float" ”ducumentatzon ": "The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non- aff}]]ates computed by reference to the price at
which the common equity was last sold, or the average bid and asked price of such common equity, as of the last business day of the registrant's most recently completed second fiscal quarter.”
} } } "auth ref":[] }, "dei EntityRegistrantName": { Xbr]the ": "normalizedStringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityRegistrantName", "presentation": |
"“http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Registrant Name", "documentation": "The exact name of the entity filing the report as specified in its charter.
which is required by forms filed with the SEC." } } } ”autbﬁrsf’: [ "r425" ] }, "dei EntityShellCompany": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname":
"EntityShellCompany", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Shell Company", "documentation": "Boolean flag that is true when the
registrant is a shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r425" ] }, "dei EntitySmallBusiness": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri":
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntitySmallBusiness ://neovolta.com/role/Cover" |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Small Business",
"documentation": "Indicates that the company is a Smaller Reporting Company (SRC') "} } } "auth ref: [ "r425" ] }, "dei EntityTaxIdentificationNumber": { "xbritype": "employerldltemType”,
“nsuri": "http.//xbrl sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityTaxIdentificationNumber", "presentation": | "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ]. "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Tax
Ident]ﬁcatmn Number", "documentation": ”T]Je TaX Identification Number (TIN), also known as an Employer Identification Number (EIN), is a unique 9-digit value assigned by the IRS." } } }

"auth ref": [ "r425" ", "nsuri": "http./xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "EntityVoluntaryFilers", "]
"http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": : “1 bel": "Entity Voluntary Filers", "documentation": "Indicate 'Yes' or 'No'if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant
to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. " } ) ”autbiref”: [ ] }, "dei EntityWellKnownSeasonedIssuer": { " br]tvpe ": "vesNoltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname":

o

"EntityWellKnownSeasonedlssuer", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Entity Well-known Seasoned Issuer", "documentation": "Indicate
'Yes' or 'No' if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Is used on Form Type: 10-K, 10-Q, 8-K, 20-F, 6-K, 10-K/A, 10-Q/A, 20-F/A, 6-K/A, N-
CSR, N-Q, N-1A." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r509" ] } us»t@anquuithbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "EquityAbstract”, "lang": { "en-
us": { ole": { "label": ”Equ]tv [Abstract]”} } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap EquityComponentDomain": { " br]tvpe“ "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
‘] ://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity" ], "lang": { " : : { "documentation": "Components of equity are the parts of
tbe total Equity balance including that which is allocated to common, preferred, treasury stock, retained earnings, etc." } } } "auth ref": [ "r4", "r78", "r95", "'r96", "r97" "rii11", 'r112", "r113",
115" 120" 122" 124" "r137" "r154" "T155" "T163" "r193" 242" "r243" "r249" "r250" "r251" "r253" "r254" 255" 260" 261" "r262" 263" "T264" "265" "r267" 271"

"r272", 'r273" "r274", "r275" "r276", "r277", "r278" "r279", "r299", "'r302", "r303", "r304", "r319", "r379"] }, "ecd_ EauthVa]uatIOHAssuth}onD)fferencanTeXtBIack” { Xbr]tVDe
B Pv]

"textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "EquityValuationAssumptionDifferenceFnTextBlock", "]

”Ianq { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Equity Valuation Assumption Difference, Footnote" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r477" ]}, "ecd_ ErrComDAna]VSISTextBlock” { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType",
-//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "ErrCompAnalysisTextBlock", "presentation": [ " : [ErrCe Disclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":

"Erroneous Compensation Analysis" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r441", "'r452", "r462", "'r488" ] }, "ecd ErrComnRecoveLzTab]e” { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024",

"localname": "ErrCompRecoveryTable", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Erroneously Awarded Compensation Recovery

[Table]" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r438", "r449", "'r459", "r485" | }, "ecd ExecutiveCategoryAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":

"ExecutiveCategoryAxis", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Executive Category [Axis]" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r483"] }
”dejfEXtension”: { "xbritype": "normalizedStringltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024" ”IocaIHame” "Extension", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-
us": { "role": { "label": "Extension”, "documentation”: "Extension number for local phone number." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap FairValueOfFinanciallnstrumentsPolicy": { "xbritype":

”textB]ock]temTVpe “nsuri”: "http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "FairValueOfFinanciallnstrumentsPolicy", "presentation": [
Y -
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"FairValueOfIncentiveShares TwoWholesaleDealerMember

P

Dressutatmn [ "http://neovolta.com/role, EqmtVDetaz]sNarratjve”] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": ”Fau‘ Value Of Incentive

"auth ref: "NEQV FairValueOfIncentiveSharesWholesaleDealerMember":

"http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "FairValueOflncentiveSharesWholesaleDealerMember", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role, Equ1tVDetaz]sNarrat1ve”l "lang": { "en-us": {




role": { "label": "Fair Value Of Incentive Shares Wholesale Dealer [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "ecd ForgoneRecoveryDueToDisqualificationOfTaxBenefitsAmt": { "xbritype":
'monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "ForgoneRecoveryDueToDisqualificationOfTaxBenefitsAmt", "presentation": [
“http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Forgone Recovery due to Disqualification of Tax Benefits, Amount” } } }, "auth ref": [ "rd45", "r456"
'r466", "r492" ] }, "ecd ForgoneRecoveryDueToExpenseOfEnforcementAmt": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":
"ForgoneRecoveryDueToExpenseOfEnforcementAmt", "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Forgone Recovery due to
Expense of Enforcement, Amount” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r445", "'r456", "r466", "r492" ] }, "ecd ForgoneRecoveryDueToViolationOfHomeCountryLawAmt": { “xbritype": "monetaryltemType".

: .sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "ForgoneRecoveryDueToViolationOfHomeCountryLawAmt", "presentation”; [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure"” ] "lang":
“en-us": { ro]e { "label": "Forgone Recovery due to Violation of Home Country Law, Amount" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r445", "r456", "r466", "r492" ] }
"ecd ForgoneRecoveryExplanationOflmpracticabilityTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":
"ForgoneRecoveryExplanationOflmpracticabilityTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Forgone Recovery,
Explanation of Impracticability” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r445", "r456", "'r466", "r492" ] }, "ecd ForgoneRecoverylndName": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024",
"localname": "ForgoneRecoverylndName", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "verboselLabel": "Name", "label": "Forgone Recovery,
Individual Name" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r445", "'r456", "r466", "'r492" ] }, "us-gaap GeneralAndAdministrativeExpense": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024",
"localname": "GeneralAndAdministrativeExpense", "crdr": "debit", "calculation": { "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations": { "parentTag": "us-gaap OperatingExpenses"”, "weight":
1.0, "order": 1.0 } }, "presentation”: [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations"” ], "lang": { "en-us”: { "role": { "label": "General and administrative"”, "documentation": "The aggregate
total of expenses of managing and administering the affairs of an entity, including affiliates of the reporting entity, which are not directly or indirectly associated with the manufacture, sale or
creation of a product or product line." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r46", 'r361" ] }, "NEOV GrossProceedsFromIssuanceOrSaleOfEquity": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri":
"http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "GrossProceedsFromIssuanceOrSaleOfEquity", "crdr": "debit", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-
us": { "role": { "label": "Gross proceeds from sale of equity" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap GrossProfit": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"GrossProfit", "crdr": "credit", "calculation": { "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations": { "parentTag": "us-gaap Operatinglncomeloss", "weight": 1.0, "order": 1.0 } }, "presentation":
[ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "totalLabel": "Gross profit", "label": "Gross Profit", "documentation": "Aggregate revenue less cost of goods
and services sold or operating expenses directly attributable to the revenue generation activity." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r41", "r44", "r68". 'r107" "r153", 'r166", "r167" "r168". "r169", "r170"
"r171" "ri72" "r173" "ri174" "r270", "r404", 'r405", "r528", "r529", "'r530", "r531", "'r532", "r538" ] }, "us-gaap_IncomeStatementAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri":
"http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "IncomeStatementAbstract"”, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Income Statement [Abstract]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-
gaap_IncomeTaxDisclosureAbstract”: { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "IncomeTaxDisclosureAbstract", ”Iana { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
“Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap IncomeTaxDisclosureTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
“IncomeTaxDisclosureTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/IncomeTaxes" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Income Taxes", "documentation": "The entire disclosure for
income tax." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r108", "'r224", "r228", 'r230", "r231", "r232" "r233", "r237", "r244", "r246", "r247", "r248", "r315", "r408"] }, "us-gaap IncomeTaxExpenseBenefit": {

", won

"xbritype": monstaz;z]temTVDe nsurz” ”httu /fash. arq us-gaap/2024", "localname": ”IncomeTaXEXpsnssBeneﬁ[” ”crdr” "debit", "calculation”: { "http:, neovo]ta com/role/IncomeTaxesDetails-

Scbedu]eOanomeTaxEx ense"; weight": null, "order": nu]] root” true

“textB]ockItemTVpe” "nsuri"; ”Jzttn fasb org/us-gaap/2024", ”Iocalname” ”IncomeTaXPo]JcVTeXtB]ock” "presentation”: [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesPolicies" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "verboseLabel": "Income Taxes", "label": "Income Tax, Policy [Policy Text
Block]", "documentation": "Disclosure of accounting policy for income taxes, which may include its accounting policies for recognizing and measuring deferred tax assets and liabilities and
related valuation allowances, recognizing investment tax credits, operating loss carryforwards, tax credit carrvforwards and other carryforwards, methodologies for determining its effective
income tax rate and the characterization of interest and penalties in the financial statements."” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r94", "r225" "r226", "r233", "'r234", "r236", "r241", "r309" ] }, "us-
aap IncomeTaxReconciliationChangelnDeferredTaxAssetsValuationAllowance": vl " " ”nsun ": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"IncomeTaxReconciliationChangelnDeferredTaxAssetsValuationAllowance", "crdr": "debit”, ”ca[cu]at]on { "http://neovolta.com/role/IncomeTaxesDetails-. Schedu]eOﬂncomeTaXEXpense ”.-
aap IncomeTaxExpenseBenefit", "weight": 1.0, "order": 2.0 " ://neovolta.com/role/IncomeTaxesDetails-ScheduleOfIncomeTaxExpense"

us": { "role": { "label": "Change in valuation allowance", "documentation": "Amount of the difference bel’ween reported income tax expense (benefit) and expected income tax eXgense [beneﬁ )

computed bV applying the domestic federal statutory income tax rates to pretax income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to increase (decrease) in the valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r229", 'r408", "r541" ] }, "us-gaap IncomeTaxReconciliation/ncomeTaxExpenseBenefitAtFederalStatutorylncomeTaxRate": { "xbritype":

'monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "IncomeTaXReconcHzatJon[HcomeTaxExpenseBenef" tAtFederalStatutorylncomeTaxRate

crdr” “deb1[” "calculation":

"http://neovolta.com/role/IncomeTaxesDetails-ScheduleOflncomeTaxExpense": " "US- it", "wel : 1.0, "order": 1.0 :
"http://neovolta.com/role/Income TaxesDetails-ScheduleOfincomeTaxExpense" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Income tax benefit computed at statutory rate", "documentation": "The
amount of income tax expense or benefit for the period computed by applying the domestic federal statutory tax rates to pretax income from continuing operations." "auth ref": [ "r228",

"r408" ] }, "us-gaap IncomeTaxesPaidNet": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "IncomeTaxesPaidNet", "crdr": "credit", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Cash paid for income taxes", "documentation": "Amount, after refund, of cash paid to foreign, federal,
state, and local jurisdictions as income tax." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r8", "r104", "r238", "r239" ] }, "us-gaap_ IncreaseDecreaseInAccountsPaVab./e” { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri”:
P 2024", "localname": "IncreaseDecreaselnAccountsPayable"”, "crdr": "debit", "calculation": ://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows": { "parentTag": "us-
gaap_ NetCashPmVzdedBzUsedInOperatmaActzvmes” "weight": 1.0, "order": 8.0 } } presentatzon [ "http://neovolta.com/role, StatementsOfCashFlows”] ’Yanq" { "en-us": { "role": {
"verboseLabel": "Accounts payable", "label": "Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable", "documentation": "The increase (decrease) d regate amount of
liabilities incurred (and for which invoices have typically been received) and payable to vendors for goods and services received that are used in an entity's business.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r2" ]}
"us-gaap IncreaseDecreaselnAccountsReceivable": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "IncreaseDecreaselnAccountsReceivable", "crdr":
”credjt” "calculation": { "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows": { "parentTag": "us- qaaILNetC’ashProwdedBVUsed[nODera[quctJVmes” "weight": -1.0, "order": 5.0 } }
"presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "negatedLabel": "Accounts receivable". "label": "Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Receivable",
"documentation": "The increase (decrease) during the reporting period in amount due within one year (c or one busmess CVC]e) from customers for the credit sa]e of goods and services." } } }
“auth ref": [ "r2" ] }, "us-gaap IncreaseDecreaselnAccruedLiabilities": { " e": "m : "
“IncreaseDecreaselnAccruedLiabilities", "crdr": "debit", "calculation":
gaap NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivities", "weight": 1.0, "order": 90} }. "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role, StatementsOfCashF]ows” L "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Accrued expenses", ”documentatwn " ”T]ze increase (decrease) during l'be erortmq period in the aggregate amount of expenses incurred but not yet paid." } } }, "auth ref": [ 2" ] }, "us-
e": " : ://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname"; "IncreaseDecreaselninventories", "crdr":
"http://neovolta.com/role, StatsmeutsO[Cast]uws” { "parentTag": "us-gaap NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivities", "weight": -1.0, "order": 6.0 } }, "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "negatedLabel": "Inventory", "label": "Increase (Decrease) in Inventories", "documentation": "The increase
(decrease) during the reporting period in the aggregate value of all inventory held by the reporting entity, associated with underlying transactions that are classified as operating activities." } }
L "auth ref": [ "r2" ] }, "us-gaap IncreaseDecreaselnOperatingCapitalAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"IncreaseDecreaselnOperatingCapitalAbstract", "presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Changes in current assets and
liabilities" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap IncreaseDecreaselnPrepaidDeferredExpenseAndOtherAssets": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"IncreaseDecreaselnPrepaidDeferredExpenseAndOtherAssets", "crdr": "credit", "calculation": { "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows": { "parentTag": "us-
gaap NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivities", "weight": -1.0, "order": 7.0 } }, "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"negatedLabel": "Prepaid expenses and other current assets", "label": "Increase (Decrease) in Prepaid Expense and Other Assets", "documentation": "Amount of increase (decrease) in prepaid
expenses, and assets classified as other."” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r2" ] }, "NEOV IndependentDirectorsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//neovolta.com/20240630",
"localname": "IndependentDirectorsMember", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Independent Directors [Member]" } } }
"auth_ref": [] }, "ecd IndividualAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "IndividualAxis", ’bresentation” [
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure", "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure", "http: .sec.
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Individual [Axis]" } } }, "auth ref": [ "rd45", "r456", "r466", "r483", "'r492", "r496", "r504" ] }
“ecd InsiderTradingArrlLineltems": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname"; "InsiderTradingArrLineltems", "auth ref": [ "r502" ] }
“ecd_InsiderTradingPoliciesProcLineltems": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "InsiderTradingPoliciesProcLineltems", "lang": { "en-us": {
role": { "label": "Insider Trading Policies and Procedures [Line Items]" } } }. "auth ref": [ "r437", "r507" ] }. "ecd InsiderTrdPoliciesProcAdoptedFlag": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType",
"nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "[nszderTrdPo]lczesProcAdoptedF]aq” "presentation": | "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingPoliciesProc" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "r Ie”
"label": "Insider Trading Policies and Procedures Adopted" 'r4d37", "r507" ”ecd InszderTrdPa]zczestcNotAdo tedTextBlock": ”xbr]t e": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri":

. e,

role": { "label": "Insider Trading Policies and Procedures Not Adopted" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r437" "r507" ] 1, "us- lLaD InterestAndOtherIncome"”: { "xbritype": ”monetary]tem Type", "nsuri":
"http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "InterestAndOtherIncome", "crdr": "credit", ”ca]cu]atzon { "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations": { "parentTag": "u.
aap NonoperatingIncomeExpense", "weight": 1.0, "order": 1.0 “: { "en-us"; :

: ”Jabel " ”Interest income”,
"documentation": "The amount of interest income and other income recognized during the Denad Included in this element is interest derived from mvestments in debt securities, cash and cash

equivalents, and other investments which reflect the time value of money or transactions in which the payments are for the use or forbearance of money and other income from ancillary
businsss -related activities (that is, excluding major activities considered part of the normal operations of the business).” } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap InterestExpenseNonoperating": {
"xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "InterestExpenseNonoperating", "crdr": "debit". "calculation":
"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations": { "parentTag": "us-gaap NonoperatingIncomeExpense", "weight": -1.0, "order": 2.0 } }, "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { neqatedLabe ["; "Interest exgense” “"label": "Interest Expense, Nonoperating", "documentation": "Amount of
interest expense classified as nonoperating.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r143", "'r520" ] }, "us- cLaD_InterestPaJdNet” { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fash.org/us-gaap/2024",
“localname": "InterestPaidNet", "crdr": "credit", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ]. "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Cash paid for interest".
"documentation": "Amount of cash paid for interest, excluding capitalized interest, classified as operating activity. Includes, but is not limited to, payment to settle zero-coupon bond for accreted
interest of debt discount and debt instrument with insignificant coupon interest rate in relation to effective interest rate of borrowing attributable to accreted interest of debt discount." } } }
"auth ref": [ "r100", "r102", "r103" ] }, "us-gaap InventoryFinishedGoods": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "InventoryFinishedGoods",
"crdr": "debit", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/ScheduleOfInventoryDetails" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Finished goods", "documentation": "Amount before valuation and
LIFO reserves of completed merchandise or goods expected to be sold within one year or operating cycle, if longer." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r515" ] }, "us-gaap InventoryGross": { "xbritype":
"monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "InventoryGross", "crdr": "debit", "presentation": |
"http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Inventory, Gross", ”documentation ": "Gross amount, as
of the balance sheet date, of merchandise, goods, commodities, or supplies held for future sale or to be used in manufacturing, servicing or production process." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r518" ] }
"us-gaap InventoryNet": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "InventoryNet", "crdr": "debit", "calculation": {
"http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets": { "parentTag": "us-gaap AssetsCurrent”, "weight": 1.0, "order": 3.0 } }, "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets",
"http://neovolta.com/role/ScheduleOfInventoryDetails" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Inventory, net", "verboseLabel": "Total", "documentation": "Amount after valuation and LIFO

Leserves of inventory expected to be sold, or consumed within one year or operating cycle, if 10mrer "} } L "auth ref’ [ 90” "r397", 'r409" ] }, "us-gaap InventoryPolicyTextBlock": {

"xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "Invento.
"http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesPolicies" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Inventory", "documentation": "Disclosure of inventory accounting

policy for inventory classes, including, but not limited to, basis for determining inventory amounts, methods by which amounts are added and removed from inventory classes, loss recognition
on impairment of inventories, and situations in which inventories are stated above cost.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r71" "r82" "r89", "'r160", "r161", "'r162", "r289", "r401"] }, "us-
gaap InventoryRawMaterials": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "InventoryRawMaterials", "crdr": "debit", "presentation"”: [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/ScheduleOflnventoryDetails" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Raw materials, consisting of assembly parts, batteries and inverters", "documentation": "Amount
before valuation and LIFO reserves of raw materials expected to be sold, or consumed within one year or operating cycle, if longer." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r517" ] }, "us-
gaap_InventoryWorkInProcess": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": ”http fasb org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "InventoryWorkInProcess", "crdr": "debit", "presentation”: [
"http://neovolta.com/role/ScheduleOfInventoryDetails" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Work-in-process", "documentation": "Amount before valuation and LIFO reserves of merchandise
or goods in the production process expected to be completed within one year or operatjnq cycle, if longer.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r516" ] }, "NEOV InvestorWarrantsMember": { "xbritype":
"domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "InvestorWarrantsMember", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role, BusmessAnd5ummarV0memﬁcantAccozmL'mnPa]JCIesDetazlsNarrat1ve” 1 "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Investor Warrants [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-
aap LiabilitiesAndStockholdersEquity”: : . u 2024", "localname": "LiabilitiesAndStockholdersEquity", "crdr": "credit”,
"calculation": { "http.//neovolta.com, ro]e ‘BalanceSheets": { "parentTag": null, "weight": 111111 "order": null, "root": true } }, "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" ], "lang": {




/L. : ] : uit) i uit)
eamtv attnbutab]e to noncontrolling interests, ifany." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r35", "r64", "r297", "'r409", "r522", "r535", 'r549" ] }, "us-gaa, L1ab111L'JGSAndStockhOIdsrsE uityAbstract”:

"xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "Lzab111tzesAndStock11o]dersE uzt Abstract" !
"lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity" } } }
aap/2024", "localname": ”Lzabz]ztzesCuzTent“ "erdr": "

won

moueta Il'smT e”, "nsuri": "http:

‘credit”, "calculation":

"documentation": "Total obligations mcurred as part of normal operations that are exvected to be paid during the fo]]owma twelve months or within one busmess cycle, if Ionaer "rrE
“auth ref": [ "r27" "r81", 'r107". "r153", "r166" "r167", "r168", "r169", "r170", "ri71" "r172". "ri73", "r174" "r257" "r258", 'r259" "r270" "rd09" "r538" 'r551", "r552" ]}, "us-
gaap LiabilitiesCurrentAbstract": { "xbritype": " L

'stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "LiabilitiesCurrentAbstract”, "presentation":
"http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Current liabilities:" } } }, "auth _ref": [] } ”dei_Loca]PhoneNumber”: { "xbritype": "normalizedStringltemType",
"nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "LocalPhoneNumber", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Local Phone Number",
"documentation": "Local phone number for entity." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "srt MajorCustomersAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://fash.org/srt/2024", "localname":
"MajorCustomersAxis", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Customer
[Axis]" } } }, "auth ref: [ "r150", "r407", "r410", "r411", "r540", "r555", "r556", "rb57", "r558", "r559", "r560", 'r561", "r562", "r563", "r564", "'r565", "r566", 'r567" "r568", 'r569", "r570",
"r571" "'r572", "r573", "r574", "r575", "'r576", "r577", 'r578", "r579", "'r580", "r581", "'r582" ] }, "NEOV May2018NotesPayableMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri":
"http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "May2018NotesPayableMember", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "May
2018 Notes Payable [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "ecd MeasureAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "MeasureAxis", "presentation": |
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Measure [Axis]" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r475" ] }, "ecd MeasureName": { "xbritype":
"normalizedStringltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", ”Ioca1name” "MeasureName", "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
“label": "Name" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r475" ] }, "NEOV Milestonel Member": { "xbritype": "domainitemType", "nsuri": "http.//neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "MilestonelMember".
"presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Milestone 1 [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "ecd MnpiDiscTimedForCompValFlag":
{ "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "MnpiDiscTimedForCompValFlag", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure"
L "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "MINPI Disclosure Timed for Compensation Value" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r495" ] }, "ecd MtriTermsOfTrdArrTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType",
“nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "MtriTermsOfTrdArrTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"label": "Material Terms of Trading Arrangement"” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r503" ] }, "srt NameOfMajorCustomerDomain": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": ”bttp fasb org, srt 2024,
"localname": "NameOfMajorCustomerDomain", ]

resentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" B . [ "r150", "'r407"
"r410", "'r411", "r540", "r555", "r556", "r557", "r558", "r559", "r560", "'r561", "r562", "r563", "r564", "r565", 'r566", "r567", "r568", "'r569", "r570", "'r571", "r572", ”r57 . ”r57 " 'r575" "r576",

'r577" "r578", 'r579", "r580", 'r581", "r582" ] }, "ecd NamedExecutiveOfficersFnTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":

"NamedFExecutiveOfficersFnTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { ole": { "label": "Named Executive Officers, Footnote”} }?

“auth ref": [ "r476" ] } aap NetCashProvidedByUsedInFinancingActivities": : .

"NetCashProvidedByUsedInFinancingActivities", "crdr": "debit", "calculation": { "http:, neava]ta com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows": { DarentTaq” "u

gaap CashCashEquivalentsRestrictedCashAndRestrictedCashEquivalentsPeriodIncreaseDecreaseExcludingExchangeRateEffect"”, "weight": 1.0, rder"‘ 2.0 } }, "presentation": [

"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "totalLabel": "Net cash flows from financing activities", "label": "Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing

Activities", "documentation": "Amount of cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities, including discontinued operations. Financing activity cash flows include obtaining resources from

owners and providing them with a return on, and a return of, theu‘ investment: borrowing money and repaying amounts borrowed, or settling the ub]zqatwn and obtammn and paying for at]zer

resources obtained from creditors on long-term credit.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r101" ] }, "us-gaap NetCashProvidedByUsedInFinancingActivitiesAbstract": { "xbritype":

”bttg ://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "NetCashProvidedByUsedInFinancingActivitiesAbstract", "presentation”: [ "http://neovolta. coim role, StatementsOfCashF]ows”] ”1anq” { "en-us": f
role": { "label": "Cash flows from financing activities:" } } }, "auth ref": [] } aap NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivities": { "xbritype":

”11ttg ://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivities", "calculation": { "http.//neovolta.com/role, StatementsOfCashF]ows” { “narenl’Taa” “u
aap CashCashEquivalentsRestrictedCashAndRestrictedCashEquivalentsPeriodIncreaseDecreaseExcludingExchangeRateEffect”, "weight": 1.0,

"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "totalLabel": "Net cash flows used in operating activities"”, “Iabel " “Net Cas]z Provided by (Used in) Operating

Activities", "documentation": "Amount of cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities, includin djscoutinued operations. Operating activity cash flows include transactions, adjustments, and
changes in value not defined as investing or financing activities." } } }, "auth ref": [ "rd8", "'r49", "r50" ] }, "us-gaap NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivitiesAbstract": { "xbritype":
“stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivitiesAbstract”, "presentation”: [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label"; "Cash flows from operating activities:" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap NetlncomeLoss": { "xbritype":

‘monetaryltemType", "]

'nsuri”: "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "NetIncomelLoss", "crdr": "credit", "calculation": { "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows": { "parentTag":
"us-gaap NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivities", "weight": 1.0, "order": 1.0 }, "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations": { "parentTag": null, "weight": null, "order": null,
"root": true } }, "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows", "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations",
"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity", "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "totalLabel": "Net loss", "label": "Net loss",
"verboseLabel": "Net Income (Loss)", "documentation": "The portion of profit or loss for the period, net of income taxes, which is attributable to the parent.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r45", "r50"
'r65", "'r79", "r92" "r93", "r97" "r107" "rii4" 'rile", "rii7", "ri18" "r119" "ri20" 'ri23" "ri24", "ri29" "r153", "rl166", 'r167" "r168", "r169" "r170" "ri71" 'ri72" "ri73", "ri74"
"r252", "'r255", "r269", "r270", "r298", "r358", 'r377", "r378", "r420", "r538" ] }, "us-gaap_NewAccountingPronouncementsPolicyPolicyTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri":
"http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "NewAccountingPronouncementsPolicyPolicyTextBlock", "presentation": [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesPolicies" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Recent Accounting Pronouncements"”, "documentation":
"Disclosure of accounting policy pertaining to new accounting gronouncements that may impact the entity's financial reporting. Includes, but is not limited to, quantification of the expected or
actual impact.” } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei NoTradingSymbolFlag": { "xbritype": "trueltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "NoTradingSymbolFlag", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "No Trading Symbol Flag". "documentation": "Boolean flag that is true only for a security having no trading symbol." } }
L "auth ref": [] }, "ecd NonGaapMeasureDescriptionTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":
"NonGaapMeasureDescriptionTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Non-GAAP Measure Description" } } }, "auth ref":

[ 475" ] } ”ecd NonPeoNsoAVaComnActua]]VPaJdAmt” £ br]the” ”monetaz;z]temTVDe” "nsuri”: "http:/xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": “NonPeuNeoAVqumpActuallvPaJdAmt”
PV ",

. ole": { "label": "Non-PEO NEO Average Compensation Actually Paid Amount" "auth ref": [ "r473"
"ecd NonPeoNeaAVﬂTota]Comg ": { "xbritype": ”monetaI‘VItemTVpe” ”nsun” "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "NonPeoNeoAvgTotalCompAmt", "presentation": [
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role, PVDDzsdosure L "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Non-PEO NEO Average Total Compensation Amount" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r472" ] }

"ecd_NonRulel0b51ArrAdoptedFlag": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", ”113111'1“ “http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "NonRule10b51ArrAdoptedFlag", "presentation": [
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements" ]. "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted" } } }. "auth ref": [ "'r503" ] }

"ecd NonRulel0b51ArrTrmntdFlag": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "113111'1“ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "NonRulel0b51ArrTrmntdFlag", "presentation":
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r503" ] }, "us-

monetarv]temﬂ/pe ‘nsuri”: "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "NonDDeratma]ncomeExnense ‘crdr": "credit", "calculation": {
aa Net[ncameLoss" "weight": 1.0,

gaap NonoperatingincomeExpense": { Xbr]tVDe

”11ttg ://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "totalLabel": "Total other income (expense)", "label": "Nonoperating Income (Expense)", "documentation": "The
aggregate amount of income or expense from ancillary business-related actIVJties (that is to say, excluding major activities considered part of the normal operations of the business).” } } }
“auth ref": [ "r47" ] }, "us-gaap NonoperatinglncomeExpenseAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http: /1[asb.nrg[us—gaap[2024“ "localname":
"NonoperatingIncomeExpenseAbstract", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Other income (expense):" } } }, "auth ref":
[1 1. "NEOV October2021NotesPayableMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "October2021NotesPayableMember", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "October 2021 Notes Payable [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"NEOV OfficerAndAnotherEmployeeMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "OfficerAndAnotherEmployeeMember", "presentation": [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Officer And Another Employee [Member]" } } }
"auth ref": "us-gaap OffsettingAssetsLineltems": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http./fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "OffsettingAssetsLineltems", "presentation":
"http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity", "http.//neovolta.com/role/RelatedPartyTransactionsDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Offsetting Assets [Line
Items]", "documentation": "Line items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in
one or many axes to the table.” } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap OffsettingAssetsTable": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"OffsettingAssetsTable", "presentation": [ "http.://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity", "http.//neovolta.com/role/RelatedPartyTransactionsDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": {
‘role": { "label": ”Offsettmq Assets [Table]", "documentation": "Disclosure of information about derivative and financial assets that are subject to offsetting, including enforceable master netting
A "NEOV _OneOfficerMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "OneOQfficerMember",

"presentation": [ "http: ueovo]ta com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "One Officer [Member]" } } }
“auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap OperatingExpenses": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "OperatingExpenses", "crdr": "debit", "calculation";
"http://neovolta.com/role, Stal’emeutsOfOueranons” { "parentTag": "us-gaap OperatinglncomelLoss", "weight": -1.0, "order": 2.0 } }, "presentation": [

: “lan ”tota]Labe]” "Total operating ex] enses”, ”Iabel” "0, erating Expenses”, ”documentatzon " ”Genera]] recurrin

‘crdr":

‘credit”, "calculation": {

”OperatmrrExnensesAbstraL't” “presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations" ], ”Iana” { "en-us": { "role": { "IabeI” "Oueratmq expenses:" } } }, "auth_ I'sf” [1} "us-

: b . us-gaap/2024", "localname": "OperatinglncomeLoss
"http.//neovolta.com/role/Sta tsmeutsOfOperatzons " A paren tTaU” ”us qaag Net[ncamsLoss " "weight": 1.0, "order": 1.0 } }, "presentation": |
: "role": { "totalLabel": "Loss from operations", "label": "Operating Income (Loss)", "documentation": "The net result for
L’]Je genod of deducting operating expenses from ogeratmq revenues. ”} } }, "auth ref: [ "r68", "'r404", "r528", "'r529", "r530", "r531", "'r532" ] }, "us-gaap OperatinglossCarryforwards": {
"xbritype": "monetaryltemType”, "nsuri": "http.//fash.org/us-gaap/2024", ”Iocalname OperatanossC‘anvforwards " "crdr": "debit", "presentation”: [
"http://neovolta.com/role/IncomeTaxesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Operating loss carry forward", "documentation": "Amount of operating loss carryforward, before
tax effects, available to reduce future taxable income under enacted tax laws." } } } "auth ref": [ "r240" ] }, "us-
gaap OrganizationConsolidationAndPresentationOfFinancialStatementsAbstract": { Xbr]tvue ": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"OrganizationConsolidationAndPresentationOfFinancialStatementsAbstract", "lang": "role": { "label": "Organization, Consolidation and Presentation of Financial Statements
[Abstract]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap OraamzatwnCanso]]datwnAndPresentatmnOmeanma]StatementsD1sc]osureAndSIUmfzcantAccountmnPa]]czesTextB]oc " { "xbritype":
“textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"OrganizationConsolidationAndPresentationOfFinancialStatementsDisclosureAndSignificantAccountingPoliciesTextBlock", "]
"http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPolicies" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies",
"documentation": "The entire disclosure for the organization, consolidation and basis of presentation of financial statements disclosure, and significant accounting policies of the reporting
entity. May be provided in more than one note to the financial statements, as long as users are provided with an understanding of (1) the significant judgments and assumptions made by an
enterprise in determining whether it must consolidate a VIE and/or disclose information about its involvement with a VIE, (2) the nature of restrictions on a consolidated VIE's assets reported
by an enterprise in its statement of financial position, including the carrying amounts of such assets, (3) the nature of, and changes in, the risks associated with an enterprise's involvement with
the VIE, and (4) how an enterprise's involvement with the VIE affects the enterprise's financial Qosjtion financial performance, and cash flows. Describes procedure if disclosures are provided
in more than one note to the financial statements." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r23", "r51", "r52", "r60" ] }, "us-gaap_ OtherAccrueszab}]JtzesCutTent” { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri":
"http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "OtherAccruedLiabilitiesCurrent”, "crdr": "credit", "calculation": )/

gaap_LiabilitiesCurrent”, "weight": 1.0, "order": 2.0 } }, "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets"

"Amount of expenses incurred but not yet paid classified as other, due within one year or the normal operating cycle, if Jonaer "} }} "auth ref": [ "'r26" I L "ecd OtherPerfMeasureAmt": {
br]the’C "decimalltemType", "]

‘nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "OtherPerfMeasureAmt", "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": {
role”: { "label": "Other Performance Measure, Amount" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r475" ] }, "dei OtherReportingStandardltemNumber": { "xbritype":
”athengportmqStandard]temNumberItemTVpe “nsuri”: "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "OtherReportingStandardItemNumber", "presentation”: [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ],

“lan “role": { "label”: "Other Reporting Standard Item Number", "documentation”: "|"Item 171" or |"Item 18|" specified when the basis of accounting is neither US GAAP nor
IFRS. ”} }1 ”aut]z ref": [ "'r436" ] }, "ecd OutstandingAggtErrCompAmt": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":
"OutstandingAggtErrCompAmt", "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Outstanding Aggregate Erroneous Compensation
Amount" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r443", "r454", "r464", 'r490"] }, "ecd OutstandingRecoveryCompAmt": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":




"QutstandingRecoveryCompAmt", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure” ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Compensation Amount" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r446",

"r457", 'r467", "r493" ] }, "ecd QutstandingRecoveryIndName": { Xbr]the” “stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "OutstandingRecoveryIndName".

: : : { "verboseLabel": "Name", "label": "Outstanding Recove
'r446", "rd57", "r467", | 493”] L "ecd_ PaVVsPerformanceDJsc]osureLmeItems” { Xbr]tVDe” " trmn[temTvpe” "nsuri": "http.//xbril.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":
"PayVsPerformanceDisclosureLineltems", " ‘rd71" "ecd PeerGrouplssuersFnTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":

‘auth ref"

"PeerGrouplssuersFnTextBlock", "presentation"”: [ ”11l'tp Xbr] sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure" ] ’Yanq { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Peer Group Issuers, Footnote" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r474" ]
"ecd PeerGroupTotalShareholderRtnAmt": { "xb " ://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", ”Jocalname” "PeerGroupTotalShareholderRtnAmt", "}

"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure"” ], "lang": { ”811 us": { "role": { "label": "Peer Group Total Shareholder Return Amount" } } }, "auth ref": [ "rd74" ] }
"ecd_PeoActuallyPaidCompAmt": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", ”nsun" "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "PeoActuallyPaidCompAmt", "presentation": [
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "PEO Actually Paid Compensation Amount”} } L "auth ref": [ "r473" ] }, "ecd_ PeoName” { "xbritype":
"normalizedStringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", ”100a1name" "PeoName ion": . A : : { "role":
"label": "PEQ Name" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r476" ] }, "ecd PeoTotalCompAmt": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType" ”nsun” "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": ”PeoTota]ComgA mt”,
"presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec. gov, ecd/role/PvpDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "PEO Total Compensation Amount" } } }, "auth ref": [ ”r472” 12

"ecd PnsnBnftsAdjFnTextBlock": { "xbritype": “"textBlockltem ", "nsuri": "http./xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "PnsnBnftsAdjFnTextBlock", "]
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Pension Benefits Adjustments, Footnote" } } }, "auth ref": [ "rd73" ] }
"dei_PreCommencementlssuerTenderOffer": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "PreCommencementlssuerTenderOffer", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Pre-commencement Issuer Tender Offer", "documentation": "Boolean flag that is true when the Form 8-K filing is
intended to satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant as pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r430" ] }
"dei_PreCommencementTenderOffer": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "PreCommencementTenderOffer", "presentation": |

"Izttg zneovolta com[m]e[Cover" L " anq’“ { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Pre- commencement Tender Offer”, "documentation": "Boolean flag L’]Jat Is true when the Form b’ K filing is intended to

gaap_PrepaidExpenseAndOtherAssetsCurrent": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", “nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024". “localname": "PrepaidEx, enseAndOt]zerAssetsCurrent“ "crdr":

"debit", "calculation": { "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets": { "parentTag": "us-gaap AssetsCurrent”, "weight": 1.0, "order": 4.0 } }, "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Prepaid insurance and other current assets", "documentation”: "Amount of asset related to consideration paid in
advance for costs that provide economic benefits in future periods, and amount of other assets that are expected to be realized or consumed within one year or the normal operating cycle, if
longer." } } }, "auth ref”: [ "r519" ] }, "us-gaap ProceedsFromlssuancelnitialPublicOffering": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname";
"ProceedsFromlIssuancelnitialPublicOffering”, "crdr": "debit", "calculation": { "http.//neovolta. com, role/StatementsOfCashFlows": { "parentTag": "us-
aap NetCashProvidedByUsedInFinancingActivities", "weight": 1.0, "order": 1.0 ://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "Iabel”:
"Underwritten public offering of common stock”, "documentation": "The cash inflow associated with the amount received from entity's first offering of stock to the public." } } }, "auth ref":
‘r1" ] }, "us-gaap ProceedsFromlssuanceOrSaleOfEquity": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "ProceedsFromlssuanceOrSaleOfEquity”,
"crdr": "debit", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Net proceeds from sale of equity", "documentation": "The cash inflow
from the issuance of common stock, preferred stock, treasury stock, stock options, and other types of equity." } } }, "auth ref*: [ 'r1", "'r310" ] }, "us-gaap ProductlnformationLineltems": {
"xbritype": "stringltemType", " ", "presentation":

‘nsuri”: "http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "ProductinformationlLineltems
"http: neovo]ta com/role/BusinessAndSummaryQOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Product Information [Line Items]", "documentation":
"Line items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or many axes to the
table." } } 1, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap ProvisionForDoubtfulAccounts": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri”: "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "ProvisionForDoubtfulAccounts”,
"crdr": "debit", "calculation": { "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows": { "parentTag": "us-gaap NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivities", "weight": 1.0, "order": 3.0 } }
"presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Provision for expected credit losses/bad debt expense", "documentation": "Amount of
expense (reversal of expense) for expected credit loss on accounts receivable." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r99", "r158" ] }, "NEOV_PubliclnvestorsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri”:
"http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "PublicinvestorsMember", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Public
Investors [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "ecd PvpTable": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "PvpTable", "presentation": [
"http.//xbrl.sec.govy ecd role PVpDJsc]osure " ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Pay vs Perfarmance Dzsc]asure [Table]" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r471" ] }, "ecd PvpTableTextBlock": { "xbritype":
e”, | ://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"label": "Pay vs Performance Dlsclosure Table" } } }, "auth ref”: [ "r471" ] }, "NEOV_ReceivablesTradeAndOtherAccountsReceivableAllowanceForDoubtfulAccountsPolicyl": { "xbritype":
"textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "ReceivablesTradeAndOtherAccountsReceivableAllowanceForDoubtfulAccountsPolicyl", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesPolicies" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Allowance for Expected Credit Losses" } } }, "auth ref": [] }
“echRecovervOfErrComgDJ’sc]osureLmeItems“ { “xbritype": "stringltemType", "“nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "RecoveryOfErrCompDisclosureLineltems", "auth ref": [
"1438", "'r449", "r459", "'r485" ] }, "us-gaap Re]atedPar[;zesAmount[nCostOfSa]es” { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", ”nsun” ”http /fash. orq us- aa 2024” ”localname”
"RelatedPartiesAmountinCostOfSales", "crdr": "debit", ", : 3 W/ " ole": { "label": "Related
Partzes Amount in Cost of Sales”, ”documen tation": "Amount included in cost of sales related to transactions WJth re]ated panﬁzes incurred and recorded in [he statement of operations for the
: "NEOV _RelatedPartiesPolicyTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemT} " : X
”Re]atedPaItJesPo]JcVTextB]ock” “presentation": [ "http: neovo]ta com/role, BusmessAndSummarVOfS‘mmf cam:AccountmnPo]zwesPa]Jaes”Z "lang": { "en-us": { ”ra]e” { "label": "Related

Parties" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us- : { "xbritype": "stringltemT} “nsuri": "http.//fasb. aap/2024", "localname”:

”Re]atedPaanTransactJonsAbstract” "IHHLI" { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Related Party Transact}ans [Abstract]”} } 1, "auth ref":[] } us—g ap_RelatedPartyTransactionsDisclosureTextBlock":
Itype": "tex: "

: ://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "RelatedPartyTransactionsDisclosureTextBlock"
"http: neovo]ta com/role, Re]atsdPartVTransactmns”] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Related Party Transactions", "documentation": "The entire dJSclosure for related party transactions.

Examples of related party transactions include transactions between (a) a parent company and its subsidiary: (b) subsidiaries of a common parent; (c) and entity and its principal owners; and (d)

afﬁ]]ates "FEE "auth ref": [ "'r280", "r281", "r282", "r283", "r285", "i 316” "r317", "I 318” "r362", 'r363", "r364", ”1'38 ", "r385" ] }, "NEOV_ Renta]OfOfcheSnaceMember” i ”Xbr]tVDe
e j . " . .

L "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": ”Renl'a] Of Office Space [Member]”} } 1. "auth ref”: [] }, "srt_ ReDurc]zaseAqresmsntCounterpartvNameDomam ": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri”:
"http://fasb.org/srt/2024", "localname"; "RepurchaseAgreementCounterpartyNameDomain", "presentation":
"http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative", "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "auth_ref": [ "'r109", "r110", "r175", "r180"
'r284", "r288", "r292", "'r399", "r400" ] }. "us-gaap ResearchAndDevelopmentExpense": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType". "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname";
"ResearchAndDevelopmentExpense”, " ": "us-gaap OperatingExpenses", "weight": 1.0, "order":

‘crdr": "debit", "calculation": { "http.//neovolta.com/role, StatementsOfODerations”: { "parentTag":
2.0 } }, "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations"” ]. "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Research and development", "documentation": "Amount of expense for
research and development. Includes, but is not limited to, cost for computer software product to be so]d leased, or otherwise marketed and writeoff of research and development assets
acquired in transaction other than business combination or joint venture formation or both. Excludes write-down of intangible asset acquired in business combination or from joint venture
formation or both, used in research and development activity." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r223", "r394", 'r405", "r553" ] }, "us-gaap ResearchAndDevelopmentExpensePolicy": { "xbritype":
"textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "ResearchAndDevelopmentExpensePolicy", "presentation":
"http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesPolicies" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Research and Development Costs", "documentation": "Disclosure
of accounting policy for costs it has incurred (1) in a planned search or critical investigation aimed at discovery of new knowledge with the hope that such knowledge will be useful in developing
a new product or service, a new process or technique, or in bringing about a significant improvement to an existing product or process; or (2) to translate research findings or other knowledge
iuto a plan or design for a new product or process or for a significant improvement to an existing product or process." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r222" ] }, "NEOV ReserveForObsoleteInventory": {
"xbritype": "monetaryltem e, "] i": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "ReserveForObsoletelnventory”, "

‘nsuri": ‘crdr": "debit”, "calculation":
"http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows": { "parentTag": "us-gaap_NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivities", "weight": 1.0, "order": 4.0 } }, "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative", "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Reserve for obsolete inventory", "verboseLabel": "[custom:ReserveForObsoletelnventory]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "ecd RestatementDateAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri":
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "RestatementDateAxis", ", " ://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Restatement
Determination Date [Axis]" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r439", "'r450", "r460", "r486" ] }, "ecd RestatementDeterminationDate": { "xbritype": "dateltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024"
"localname": "RestatementDeterminationDate", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Restatement Determination Date" } }
L "auth ref": [ "'r440", "r451", "r461", "'r487" ] }, "ecd RestatementDoesNotRequireRecoveryTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":
"RestatementDoesNotRequireRecoveryTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Restatement does not require
Recovery" } } }, "auth_ref": [ "'r447", "r458", "r468", 'r494" ] }, "NEOV RestrictedStockUnitsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http., neovo]ta com/20240630", "localname":

"RestrictedStockUnitsMember", "] jon": ://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative"
"Restricted Stock Units [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] } ”us -gaap ResmctedStockUmtsRS UMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http:, fasb org/us-gaap, 2024 ” ’Yucalname

"RestrictedStockUnitsRSUMember", ] ://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"label": "Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) [Member]", ”ducumsntatwn ": "Share instrument which is convertible to stock or an equivalent amount of cash, after a specified period of time or when
specified performance conditions are met." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap RetainedFEarningsAccumulatedDeficit": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024",
"localname": ”RetamedEammg ‘AccumulatedDeficit", "crdr": "credit", "calculation": { "http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets": { "parentTag": "us-gaap StockholdersEquity”, "weight": 1.0,
“order": 3.0 ‘presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Accumulated deficit", "documentation": "Amount of accumulated undistributed
earnings (deficit)." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r32" "r57", 'r296", "r305", "r306", "r314", "r339", 'r409" ] }, "us-gaap RetainedFarningsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri":
"http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "RetainedEarningsMember", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity"” ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Retained Earnings [Member]", "documentation": "Accumulated undistributed earnings (deficit)." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r78", "r111", "r112", "r113", "r115", 'r120", "r122", "r124", "r154", "r155",
'r163", "r242", "r243" "r249", "r250" "r251" "r253", "r254" "r255", "r260" 'r262", "r263", "r265". "r267", "r277", "'r278", "r302", "r304" "r319", "r585"] }, "us-
gaap RevenueFromContractWithCustomerExcludingAssessedTax": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"RevenueFromContractWithCustomerExcludingAssessedTax", "crdr": "credit", "calculation": { "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations": { "parentTag": "us-gaap GrossProfit",
"weight": 1.0, "order": 1.0 } }, "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfOperations" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Revenues from contracts with customers",
"documentation": "Amount, excluding tax collected from customer, of revenue from satisfaction of performance obligation by transferring promised good or service to customer. Tax collected
from customer is tax assessed by governmental authority that is both imposed on and concurrent with specific revenue-producing transaction, including, but not limited to, sales, use, value
added and excise." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r66", "'r67", "r136", 'r141", "ri42", "'r145", "ri47", "r148", "r149", "r150", "r194", "r195", "r290" ] }, "us-gaap RevenueRecognitionPolicyTextBlock": {
“Xbr]tzge“ "textBlockltem1 yp " "nsuri”: "http: ﬁfasb org/us-gaap, 2024 . ”Iocalname " "ReVenueRecoamtmnPo]IcVTextB]ack” "presentation": [
1 "lan : { "label": "Revenue Recognition", "documentation": "Disclosure of

accountmq policy for revenue. Includes revenue fmm contract with customer and from other sources."” } } } “auth_ref: [ "'r360", "'r395", 'r402" ] }, "ecd Rulel0b51ArrAdoptedFlag": {

“xbritype": "booleanitemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "Rulel0b51ArrAdoptedFlag", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements" |
“lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted" } } }. "auth ref": [ "r503" ] }, "ecd Rulel0b51ArrTrmntdFlag": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri":
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "Rule]10b51ArrTrmntdFlag”, "presentation": | "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Rule
10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated"” “auth ref": [ "r503" "us-gaap SaleOfStockNameOfTransactionDomain"; { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024".
"localname": "SaleOfStockNameOfTransactionDomain", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com, ru./e EaujtVDetailsNarrative”] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "documentation": "Sale of the entity's
stock, including, but not limited to, initial public offering (IPO) and private placement." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap SaleOfStockNumberOfShareslssuedInTransaction": { "xbritype":
“sharesltemType", "nsuri": "http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "SaleOfStockNumberOfSharesIssuedInTransaction", "presentation”: [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ],
"lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Shares issued new, units issued", "documentation": "The number of shares issued or sold by the subsidiary or equity method investee per stock
transaction." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap SalesRevenueNetMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "SalesRevenueNetMember",
"presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Revenue Benchmark [Member]".
"documentation": "Revenue from sale of product and rendering of service and other sources of income, when it serves as benchmark in concentration of risk calculation." } } }, "auth ref": |
‘r150", 'r513" "us-gaap ScheduleOfComponentsOfincomeTaxExpenseBenefitTableTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"ScheduleOfComponentsOfincomeTaxExpenseBenefitTableTextBlock", "presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/IncomeTaxesTables" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Schedule of
income tax expense". "documentation": "Tabular disclosure of the components of income tax expense attributable to continuing operations for each year presented including, but not limited to:
current tax expense (benefit), deferred tax expense (benefit), investment tax credits, government grants, the benefits of operating loss carryforwards, tax expense that results from allocating
certain tax benefits either directly to contributed capital or to reduce goodwill or other noncurrent intangible assets of an acquired entity. adjustments of a deferred tax liability or asset for
enacted changes in tax laws or rates or a change in the tax status of the entity, and adjustments of the beginning-of-the-year balances of a valuation allowance because of a change in




circumstances that causes a change in judgment about the rea]zzabz]ztv of the re]ated deferred tax asset in future vears." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r544"] }, "us-
aap_ScheduleOfDeferredTaxAssetsAndLiabilitiesTableTextBlock": { "xbrli e”, : b. 2024", "localname”:
"ScheduleOfDeferredTaxAssetsAndLiabilities TableTextBlock", "presentation”: [ “httn /neovolta.com/role, IncomeTaxesTab]es " "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Schedule of deferred
taxes", "documentation": "Tabular disclosure of the components of net deferred tax asset or liability recognized in an entity's statement of financial position, including the following: the total of
all deferred tax liabilities, the total of all deferred tax assets the total valuation allowance recoamzed for deferred tax assets." } } }, "auth ref”: [ "r542"] }, "us-
aa Scbedu]eOﬂuvento CurrentTableTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", : -//fash. aap/2024", "localname": ”SchsduleOHIJVEIzto CurrentTable TeXtB]ock”

' { ”Jabel ": "Nature of Operation, Product Information, Concentration af Risk [Table]". "documentation": "Disclosure of information about concentration risk of product WJthm nature of
opera tion. " } 1} "auth ref":[] }, "us-gaap ScheduleOfStockholdersEquityNoteWarrantsOrRightsTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": ”lzttp fasb.org/us-gaap/2024",
"localname": "ScheduleOfStockholdersEquityNoteWarrantsOrRightsTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityTables" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Schedule of
warrant activity", "documentation": "Tabular disclosure of warrants or rights issued. Warrants and rights outstanding are derivative securities that give the holder the right to purchase
securities (usually equity) from the issuer at a specific price within a certain time frame. Warrants are often included in a new debt issue to entice investors by a higher return potential. The
main difference between warrants and call options is that warrants are issued and guaranteed by the company, whereas options are exchange instruments and are not issued by the company.
Also, the lifetime of a warrant is often measured in years, while the lifetime of a typical option is measured in months. Disclose the title of issue of securities called for by warrants and rights
outstanding, the aggregate amount of securities called for by warrants and rights outstanding, the date from which the warrants or rights are exercisable, and the price at which the warrant or
right is exercisable.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r19" ] } uma;q SecuritiesFinancingTransactionAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"SecuritiesFinancingTransactionAxis", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Securities Financing Transaction [Axis]",

"documentation": "Information by type of securities financing transactions, including, but not limited to those measured at fair value or cost."

o

gaap SecuritiesFinancingTransactionTypeDomain": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "SecuritiesFinancingTransactionTypeDomain",
Qresentatmn [ "http://neovolta. com, ‘role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "documentation": "Measurement of financing Lransaction securities he]d "} }} "auth ref": [
"dei Securityl2bTitle": { "xbritype": "securityTitleltemType", "nsuri”: "http://xbrl sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "Securityl2bTitle", "]
l "la ng": { “en-us": { "role": { "label": "Title of 12(b) Security, ”documentatzon " ”TItJe ofa .72(b) remstered security.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r424" ] }, "dei_ SecuntleQDt]e” { "xbritype":

[ 7 d : “lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Title of
12(g) Security”, "documentation": "Title of a 12(0') registered security." } } } "auth ref": [ "r428" ] }, "dei_ SecuntVExcbannsName” { "xbritype": "edgarExchangeCodeltemType", "nsuri":
“http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "SecurityExchangeName", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Security Exchange Name",
"documentation": "Name of the Exchange on which a security is registered." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r427" ] }, "dei SecurityReportingObligation": { "xbritype":
"“securityReportingObligationltemType", "nsuri”: "http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "SecurityReportingObligation", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us":
{ "role": { "label": "Security Reporting Obligation", "documentation": "15(d), indicating whether the security has a reporting obligation under that section of the Exchange Act." } } }, "auth ref":
["r433" ] }, "NEQOV_SeveralWholesaleDealersMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType". "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "SeveralWholesaleDealersMember",
"presentation”: [ "http:, neava]ta com, ‘role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Several Wholesale Dealers [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-
"xbritype": "monetaryltemType", " ": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname"; "ShareBasedCompensation"”, "

: ‘nsuri’; ‘crdr": "debit", "calculation"; {
"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows": { "parentTag": "us- -gaap NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivities", "weight": 1.0, "order": 2.0 } }, "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative", "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "verboseLabel": "Stock compensation expense", "label":
"Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash Expense", "documentation": "Amount of noncash expense for share-based payment arrangement." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r2" ] }, "us-
gaap_ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquityInstrumentsOtherThanOptionsForfeitedInPeriod": { "xbritype": "sharesltemType", "nsuri": "http://fash.org/us-
gaap/2024", "localname": "ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsForfeitedInPeriod", "presentation": [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments
Other than Options, Forfeited in Period", "documentation": "The number of equity-based payment instruments, excluding stock (or unit) options, that were forfeited during the reporting period."
} } 1 "auth ref": [ "r212" ] }, "us-gaap ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsGrantsinPeriod": { "xbritype":
"sharesltemType", ",

‘nsuri”; "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsGrantsinPeriod", "presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-
WarrantActivity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "verboselLabel": "Warrants outstanding, beginning", "label": "Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity
Instruments Other than Options, Grants in Period", "documentation": "The number of grants made during the period on other than stock (or unit) option plans (for example, phantom stock or
unit plan, stock or unit appreciation rights plan, performance target plan)." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r210"] }, "us-

gaap ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsGrantsInPeriodWeightedAverageGrantDateFairValue": { "xbritype":
"perShareltemType", "nsuri”: "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsGrantsinPeriodWeightedAverageGrantDateFairValue", "presentation”: [
"http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments
Other than Options, Grants in Period, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value", "documentation": "The weighted average fair value at grant date for nonvested equity-based awards issued
during the period on other than stock (or unit) option plans (for example, phantom stock or unit plan, stock or unit appreciation rights plan, performance target plan)." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r210"
1} "us-gaap ShareBasedCompensationArrangementsByShareBasedPaymentAwardAwardTypeAndPlanNameDomain": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasbh.org/us-gaap/2024",
“localname": "ShareBasedCompensationArrangementsByShareBasedPaymentAwardAwardTypeAndPlanNameDomain", "presentation”: [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative”,
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "documentation": "Award under share-based payment arrangement." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r196", "r197",
'r198", "ri199", 'r200", "r201", 'r202", "r203", "'r204", "r205", "r206", "r207", "r208", "r209", "'r210", "r211", "r212", "r213", "r214", "r215" "r216", "'r217" "r218", "'r219" "r220", 'r221"]}
"NEQV SharebasedCompensationArrangementBySharebasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsAggregatelntrinsicValueExercisable": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType"”,
"nsuri";: "http.//neovolta.com/20240630", "localname";
"SharebasedCompensationArrangementBySharebasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsAggregatelntrinsicValueExercisable”, "crdr": "debit", "presentation": [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Aggregate Intrinsic Value, Exercisable" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-

gaap SharebasedCompensationArrangementBySharebasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsAggregatelntrinsicValueOutstanding": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri":

"http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "SharebasedCompensationArrangementBySharebasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsAggregatelntrinsicValueQutstanding”,
"crdr": "debit", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity” ], "lang": { "611 us": ( ro]e { "label”: "Aggregate Intrinsic Value, Endmn” "documentation": "Intrinsic
value of outstanding award under share-based payment arrangement. Excludes share and unit options." ‘auth ref": "us-gaap SharesQutstanding": { "xbritype": "sharesltemType".

"nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "SharesQutstanding", "presentation": [ "http://neovoita.com/role, StatementsOfStockholdersEquity" ], "Ianq { "en-us": { "role": {
"periodStartLabel": "Shares, Qutstanding, Beginning Balance", "periodEndLabel": "Shares, Outstanding. Beginning Balance", "label": "Shares, Qutstanding”, "documentation": "Number of
shares issued which are neither cancelled nor held in the treasury." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "dei SolicitingMaterial": { "xbritype": "booleanltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024",
"localname": "SolicitingMaterial", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Soliciting Material", "documentation": "Boolean flag that is true when
the Form 8-K filing is intended to satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant as soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r431"] }, "us-
gaap_StatementClassOfStockAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "StatementClassOfStockAxis", "presentation": [
"http://neovolta.com/role/Cover", "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Class of Stock [Axis]", "documentation": "Information by the different
classes of stock of the entity." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r77", "r85", "r86", "r87", "'r107" "r127", "r128" "r130", "r132", "'r138", "r139", "r153", "r166", "r168", 'r169", "r170", "ri73" "r174" "r178"
‘r179" "ri82" "ri85" "ri91", "r270" 'r310" "r311" "r312" "r313" "r319" "r320" "r321" "'r322" "r323" "r324" "'r325" "r326", "'r327" "r328", "r329" 'r330" "r338", "'r359" "r379" "r386"
"r387", "'r388", "r389", "r390", "'r512", "r521", 'r527" ] }, "us-gaap StatementEquityComponentsAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"StatementEquityComponentsAxis", "presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Equity Components [Axis]",
”documentatzon” "Information by component of equity." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r4", "r30", "'r33", "'r34", "r78", "r95", "r96" "r97" 'ri11" "r1i2", "'ri13" "r115", "r120" 'ri22" "ri24", "'ri37"
‘ri54", "ri55" "r163" "r193", "r242" 'r243", "r249", "r250" "r251", "r253", "r254" "r255", "r260" "r261" "r262", "'r263", "r264", "'r265" "r267", "r271", "'r272" "r273", "r274" "r275", "r276"
"r277" "'r278", "r279", "r299", "r302", 'r303", "r304", 'r319", "r379" ] }, "us-gaap StatementLineltems": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"StatementlLineltems", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Cover", "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Statement [Line
Items]", "documentation": "Line items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in
one or many axes to the table.” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r111", "ri12" "r113" "ri37" "r278" "r290", "'r308" "r330", "r331" 'r332" "r333", 'r334" "r335", "r336" 'r338" "r341", 'r342" "r343",
"r344", 'r345", "r346", "r347" "r348", "r349", 'r351" "r352", "r353", "r354", "r355", 'r357" "r360", "r361". "r365", "r366", 'r367", "r368", "'r369", "r370", "r371", 'r372" "r373", "r374" "r375",
'r376", "r379", 'rd15" ] }, "us-gaap StatementOfCashFlowsAbstract": { "xbritype": " mna]temTvpe” "nsuri"; "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "StatementOfCashFlowsAbstract",
"lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Statement of Cash Flows [Abstract]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us- aaalLStatementOmeancza]Pos1t10nAbstract”. { "xbritype": " trmn]temTvpe " "nsuri”:
"http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "StatementOfFinancialPositionAbstract”, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Statement of Financial Position [Abstract]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-
gaap_StatementOfStockholdersEquityAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "StatementOfStockholdersEquityAbstract", "auth_ref":
"us-gaap StatementTable": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "StatementTable", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/Cover”,
"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Statement [Table]", "documentation": "Disclosure of information about statement of
comprehensive income, income, other comprehensive income, financial position, cash flows, and shareholders' equity. "auth ref": [ "r111" "r112" "ril13", "r137" "ri51", "'r278" "r290",
"r308", 'r330", "r331", "r332", "r333", "r334", 'r335", "r336", "r338" "r341" "r342", 'r343" "r344", "'r345" 'r346", "r347", 'r348" "r349", "r351" "r352" "r353", 'r354", "r355", "r357" "r360",
'r361", "r365", "r366". "r367", "r368". 'r369", "r370", 'r371" "r372", "r373" 'r374", "r375" 'r376". "r379", "r415"] }, "ecd StkPrcOrTsrEstimationMethodTextBlock": { "xbrltype":
"textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http./xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "StkPrcOrTsrEstimationMethodTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/ErrCompDisclosure” ], "lang":
{ "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Stock Price or TSR Estimation Method" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r442", "r453", "'r463", "r489" ]}, "us-
gaap_StocklssuedDuringPeriodSharesConversionOfConvertibleSecurities": { "xbritype": "sharesltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"StocklssuedDuringPeriodSharesConversionOfConvertibleSecurities", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Issuance of common stock for conversion of debt and accrued interest, shares", "documentation": "Number of shares issued during the period as a result of the conversion of convertible
securities." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r4", 'r18", "r30", "r33", "r57", "'r176" ] }, "us-gaap StocklssuedDuringPeriodSharesNewlssues": { "xbritype": "sharesltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasbh.org/us-
gaap/2024", "localname": "StocklssuedDuringPeriodSharesNewlssues", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
”Issuance of common stock in underwritten public offering, shares", "documentation": "Number of new stock issued during the period." } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r4", 'r29", "'r30", "r57", "r310",
'r379", "r387" ] }, "us-gaap StocklssuedDuringPeriodSharesRestrictedStockAwardGross": { "xbritype": "sharesltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"StocklssuedDuringPeriodSharesRestrictedStockAwardGross", "presentation": | "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Stock Issued During
Period, Shares, Restricted Stock Award, Gross", "documentation": "Total number of shares issued during the period, including shares forfeited, as a result of Restricted Stock Awards." } } }
"auth ref": [ "r4", "r57" ] }, "us-gaap_ Stock[ssuedDurmaPenodSharesShareBasedCDmgensat]on” { "xbritype": "sharesltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"StocklssuedDuringPeriodSharesShareBasedCompensation", ]

presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "verboseLabel":
"Issuance of common stock for conversion of debt and accrued interest, shares", "label": "Shares Issued, Shares, Share-Based Payment Arrangement, after Forfeiture", "documentation":
"Number, after forfeiture, of shares or units issued under share-based payment arrangement. Excludes shares or units issued under eanlavee Stock ownership plan (ESOP)." } } }, "auth ref": [
"r4", "r29", "r30", "r57" ] }, "us-gaap StocklssuedDuringPeriodValueConversionOfConvertibleSecurities": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", ”100&1name
"StocklssuedDuringPeriodValueConversionOfConvertibleSecurities", "crdr": "credit", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity" |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"label": "Issuance of common stock for conversion of debt and accrued interest", "documentation": "The gross value of stock issued during the period upon the conversion of convertible
securities." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r4", "r30", "r33", "r34" "r57"] }, "us-gaap StocklssuedDuringPeriodValueNewlssues": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024".
"localname": "StocklssuedDuringPeriodValueNewlssues", "crdr": "credit", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity"” ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"[ssuance of common stock in underwritten public offering", "documentation": "Equity impact of the value of new stock issued during the period. Includes shares issued in an initial public
offerinq or a secondary public offering."” } } }, "auth ref": [ "r4", "'r29", "r30", "r57", "r319", "r379", "r387", "r421" ] }, "us-gaap StocklssuedDuringPeriodValueShareBasedCompensation":
"xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "StocklssuedDurin, Pen'odVa]ueShareBasedCom ensation”, "crdr": "credit", "presentation";
"http://neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": ”Stock compensation expense", "documentation": "Value, after forfeiture, of shares issued
under share-based payment arrangement. Excludes employee stock ownership plan (ESOP)." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r20", "r29", "r30", "r57" ] }, "NEOV_StockOptionPlan2019Member": {
“xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "StockOptionPlan2019Member". ’bresentat]on [ ”bttp lneovolta.com/role, EqmtVDel’aJIsNarratwe 1
“lang": { "en-us”: { "role": { "label": "Stock Option Plan 2019 [Member]" } } } "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap StockholdersEquity": { "xbritype":

. us-
gaap/2024", "localname": "StockholdersEquity”, "crdr": "credit", "calculation": { "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets": { ”DarentTaq” “us gaap_ L1ab111t1esA11dStockholdersEqmL’z” "weight":




1.0, "order": 3.0 } }. "presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets". "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfStockholdersEquity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { “totalLabel": "Total
stockholders' equity”, '] ", "periodEndLabel": "Ending balance, value", "label": "Equity, Attributable to Parent", "documentation": "Amount of equity

'periodStartLabel”: "Beginning balance, value
(deficit) attributable to parent. Excludes temporary equity and equity attributable to noncontrolling interest." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r30", "r33", "'r34", "r54", "r340", "'r356", "r380", "'r381", "r409",
"r422", "r522", "r535", "r549", "'r585" ] }, "us-gaap StockholdersEquityAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://fash.org/us-gaap/2024", ”100a111ame
"StockholdersEquityAbstract”, "presentation”: [ "http://neovolta.com/role/BalanceSheets" ] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Stockholders' equity:" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-
gaap_StockholdersEquityNoteDisclosureTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "StockholdersEquityNoteDisclosureTextBlock",
"presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/Equity"” |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Equity", "documentation": "The entire disclosure for equity." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r56", "r106", "r177",
"r179", "r181", "r182", "r183", "r184", 'r185", "ri86", 'r187" "ri88", "'r189", "r190", "'r193", "r266", "'r382", "r384", "r391"] }, "us-gaap SubsequentEventsAbstract": { "xbritype":
“stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "SubsequentEventsAbstract”, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Subsequent Events [Abstract]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"us-gaap SubsequentEventsTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "

'nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "SubsequentEventsTextBlock", "presentation":
"http://neovolta.com/role/SubsequentEvents" ]. "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { ”Jabel”, "Subsequent Events", "documentation": "The entire disclosure for significant events or transactions that
occurred after the balance sheet date through the date the financial statements were issued or the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Examples include: the sale of a
capital stock issue, purchase of a business, settlement of litigation, catastrophic loss, significant foreign exchange rate changes, loans to insiders or affiliates, and transactions not in the
ordinary course of business." } } }, "auth ref: [ "'r286", "r287" ] }, "us-gaap SubsidiaryOrEquityMethodInvesteeSaleOfStockBySubsidiaryOrEquitylnvesteeTable": { "xbritype":
"stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "SubsidiaryOrEquityMethodInvesteeSaleOfStockBySubsidiaryOrEquitylnvesteeTable", "}
"http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Subsidiary or Equity Method Investee, Sale of Stock, Type [Table]", "documentation": "Disclosure of
information about sale of stock made by subsidiary or equity method investee to investor outside consolidated group by type of sale. Includes, but is not limited to, stock issued in business
combination in exchange for share of acquired entity." "auth ref": "us-gaap SubsidiarySaleOfStockAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024",
"localname": "SubsidiarySaleOfStockAxis", "presentation": [ "http: neovo]ta com, m]e EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Sale of Stock [Axis]", "documentation":
"Information by type of sale of the entity's stock." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap SubsidiarySaleOfStocklLineltems": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024"
"localname": "SubsidiarySaleOfStockLineltems", "]

presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Subsidiary, Sale of Stock [Line
Items]", "documentation": "Line items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in
one or many axes to the table." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap_ Substant}a]DaubtAboutG'omrrConcernTeXtBIock” { "xbritype": ”textB]ockItem Type”, ”nsun “ ”http fasb orq UuS- t@ap 2024 .

: ) )fSi "I "

"Jocalname ": "SubstantialDoubtAboutGoingConcernTextBlock", " : :
role": { "label": "Liquidity", "documentation": "The entire disclosure when substantIa] doubt is raised about the ability to continue as a going concern. Includes, but is not limited to, pnncma]

condztmns or events that raised substantial doubt about the ability to continue as a going concern, management's evaluation of the significance of those conditions or events in relation to the
ability to meet its obligations, and management's plans that alleviated or are intended to mitigate the conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the ability to continue as a going
concern." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r24" ] }, "us-gaap SupplementalCashFlowElementsAbstract": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname":
"SupplementalCashFlowFElementsAbstract”, "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/StatementsOfCashFlows" |, "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Supplemental disclosures of cash flow
information:" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "ecd TabularListTableTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "TabularListTableTextBlock",

"presentation": [ "http//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” | "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Tabular List, Tab]s”} } 1, "auth ref": [ "r482" ] }
"NEOV_ThreeExecutiveOfficersAndOneNonExecutiveRecipientMember":

"o

"ThreeExecutiveOfficersAndOneNonFExecutiveRecipientMember", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role, Eﬂull’VDsl‘a]]SNaITal’IVE"] "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Three Executive
Officers And One Non Executive Recipient [Member, : "NEOV _ThreelndependentDirectorsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType

"http.//neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": ”ThreeIndenendsntDlrectursMember "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ] "lang": f "en-us": { "role": { "label":
"Three Independent Directors [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "srt TitleOfindividualAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/srt/2024", "localname":
"TitleOfIndividualAxis", "presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Title and Position [Axis]" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r533", "r550" ] }
“srt_TitleOfIndividualWithRelationshipToEntityDomain": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/srt/2024", "localname": "TitleOflndividualWithRelationshipToEntityDomain",
"presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "auth _ref": [] }, "ecd TotalShareholderRtnAmt": { "xbritype": "monetaryltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024",

"localname": "TotalShareholderRtnAmt", "presentation": [ "http./xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Total Shareholder Return Amount" } } }
"auth ref": [ "r474" "ecd_TotalShareholderRtnVsPeerGroupTextBlock": { "xbritype": "textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":

"TotalShareholderRtnVsPeerGroupTextBlock", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl. sec.gov/ecd/role/PvpDisclosure” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Total Shareholder Return Vs Peer Group" } }
L "auth ref": [ "'r481" ] }, "ecd TradingArrAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "TradingArrAxis", "presentation": [
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Trading Arrangement [Axis]" } } }, "auth ref": [ 'r502" ] }, "ecd TradingArrByIndTable": {
"xbritype": sm’ng]temTVDe “nsuri”; "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "TradingArrByIndTable", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements" ], "lang":
{ "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Trading Arrangements, by Individual [’ Tab]e]"} }} auth ref": [ 'r504" ] }, "dei TradingSymbol": { "xbritype": "tradingSymbolltemType", "nsuri":
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/dei/2024", "localname": "TradingSymbol", ", : : 3 "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Trading Symbol", "documentation":
"Trading symbol of an instrument as listed on an exchange." } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap TransactionDomain": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024",
“localname": "TransactionDomain", "presentation”: [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity", "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative".
"http.//neovolta.com/role/RelatedPartyTransactionsDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "documentation": "Agreement between buyer and seller for the exchange of financial
instruments." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r400" ] }, "us-gaap TransactionTypeAxis": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "TransactionTypeAxis".
"presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity", "http://neovolta. com ro]e EquityDetailsNarrative”,
"http://neovolta.com/role/RelatedPartyTransactionsDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { " { "label": “Transactmn Type [Axis]", "documentation": "Information by type of agreement

t

between buyer and seller for the exchange of financial instruments. " "auth ref": : :
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "TrdArrAdoptionDate", "presentation": | ”httD xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements"” ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Adoption

Date" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r505" ] }, "ecd TrdArrDuration": { "xbritype": "durationltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "TrdArrDuration", "presentation": |
"http.//xbrl. sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Arrangement Duration" } } }, "auth ref": [ 'r506" ] }, "ecd TrdArrExpirationDate": {
"xbritype": "stringltemType", "

'nsuri”: "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "TrdArrExpirationDate", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements" ], "lang": {
"en-us": { ole": { "label": "Expiration Date" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r506" ] }, "ecd TrdArrindName": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http.//xbrl sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname":
"TrdArrindName", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "verboseLabel": "Name", "label": "Trading Arrangement, Individual
Name" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r504" ] }, "ecd TrdArrindTitle": { "xbritype": "stringltemType", "nsuri": "http./xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "TrdArrindTitle", "presentation": [
"http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Title" } } }, "auth ref": [ "'r504" ] }, "ecd TrdArrTerminationDate": { "xbritype":
“stringltemType", "nsuri": "http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "TrdArrTerminationDate", "presentation": [ "http.//xbrl sec.gov/ecd/role/InsiderTradingArrangements" ], "lang": { "en-us":
{ "role": { "label": "Termination Date" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r505" ] }, "NEOV UnderwriterWarrantsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630",
"localname": "UnderwriterWarrantsMember", "presentation"; [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryQfSignificantAccountingPoliciesDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": {
"label"; "Underwriter Warrants [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "NEOV_ UnderwritersMember": { "xbritype": ”domain]temTVpe” "nsuri"; "http.//neovolta.com/20240630", "localname":
"UnderwritersMember", "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetails-WarrantActivity" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Underwriters [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"NEOV_UnderwrittenPublicOfferingMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "UnderwrittenPublicOfferingMember", "presentation": [
"http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Underwritten Public Offering [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }
"ecd UndrlygSecurityMktPriceChngPct": { "xbritype": "pureltemType”, ”nsun” “http://xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/2024", "localname": "UndrlygSecurityMktPriceChngPct", "presentation”: [
"http.//xbrl.sec.gov/ecd/role/AwardTimingDisclosure" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Underlying Security Market Price Change" } } }, "auth ref": [ "r501" ] }, "NEOV UnitDescription":
”XbI']L’ e": "stringltemType", "nsuri”: "http://neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "UnitDescription"”, "presentation": [ "http://neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": {
role": { "label": "Unit description” } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "NEOV UnitsMember": { "xbritype": "domainltemType", "nsuri": "http.//neovolta.com/20240630", "localname": "UnitsMember",
"presentation": [ "http.//neovolta.com/role/EquityDetailsNarrative" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Units [Member]" } } }, "auth ref": [] }, "us-gaap UseOfEstimates": { "xbritype":
"textBlockltemType", "nsuri": "http.//fasb.org/us-gaap/2024", "localname": "UseOfEstimates", "presentation": [
“http://neovolta.com/role/BusinessAndSummaryOfSignificantAccountingPoliciesPolicies" ], "lang": { "en-us": { "role": { "label": "Use of Estimates", "documentation”: "Disclosure of accounting
policy for the use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles." } } }, "auth ref": [ "r15", "r16", "r17", "r72", "r73" "r74"
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210.6-04(3)(a))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fash.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-599-1" }, "r344": { "role": "http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946",
"SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-04(3)(b))". "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-S99-1" }, "r345": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-04(3)(c))". "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-S99-1" }, "r346":
role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX
210.6-04(6)(b))". "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-S99-1" }, "r347": { "role": "http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946",
"SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-04(6)(c))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-S99-1" }, "'r348": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification"”, "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-04(6)(d))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-5S99-1" }, "r349": {
role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef". "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification". "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1". "Subparagraph": "(SX
210.6-04(6)(e))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-S99-1" }, "r350": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946"
"SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-04(8))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-599-1" }, "'r351": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-04(9)(b))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.orq/1943274/2147479170/946-210-S99-1" }, "r352": {
‘role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX
210.6-04(9)(c))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-599-1" }, "r353": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946"
"SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-04(9)(d))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-S99-1" }, "r354": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codz[matmn” “Section": "S99", "Paragraph"”: "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-04(9)(e))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-599-1" }, "r355":

role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "2", "Subparagraph": "(SX
21 0.6-05(2))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-S99-2" }, "r356": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946"
"SubTopic": "210", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "2", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-05(4))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479170/946-210-599-2" }, "'r357": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "45", "Paragraph": "3", "Subparagraph": "(b)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479105/946-220-45-3" }, "r358": { "role":
"http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "45", "Paragraph": "7", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":

"https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479105/946-220-45-7" }, "r359": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "3", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147478297/946-220-50-3" : { "role":

"http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": ”Accountmq Standards Codification", "Section": ”599” "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-
07(1))". "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-599-1" }, "r361": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic":
"220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification”, "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(2)(a))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-599-1" : { "role"; "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification"”, "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(2)(c))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-S99-1" }, "'r363": {
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210.6-07(2)(e))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-S99-1" }, "r364": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946"
"SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(2)(g)(3))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-S99-1" }, "r365": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(7)(a)(1))". "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-599-1" }, "r36
‘role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": “(SX
210.6-07(7)(a)(2))". "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-S99-1" }, "r367": { "role": "http://www.xbrl org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946",
"SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(7)(a)(3))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https://asc.fash.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-S99-1" }, "r368": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification"”, "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(7)(a)(5))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-5S99-1" }, "r369": {
role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX
210.6-07(7)(a)(6))". "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-S99-1" }, "r370": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946",
"SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(7)(a)(7))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-599-1" }, "'r371": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(7)(c)(1))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-599-1" }, "r372": {
‘role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX
210.6-07(7)(c)(2))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fash.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-599-1" }, "r373": { "role": "http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946",
"SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(7)(c)(3))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-5S99-1" }, "r374": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards

Codzﬁcatmu " "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": . i A : s://asc.fash.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-S99-1" }, "r375":
role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": ”946” "SubTopic": "220", "Name": ”Accozmtma Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": ”(SX

210 6-07(7)(c)(6))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fasbh.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-S99-1" }, "'r376": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946",
"SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(7)(c)(7))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-S99-1" : { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-07(9))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-599-1" }, "r378": { "role":
"“http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "3", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-
09(1)(d))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fash.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-599-3" }, "'r379": { "role": "http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic":
"220". "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "3", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-09(4)(b))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI";

"https://asc.fash.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-599-3" }, "'r380": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "3", "Subparagraph": "(SX 210.6-09(6))", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https:,

"http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "220", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "S99", "Paragraph": "3", "Subparagraph": ”(SX 210. 6—
09(7))". "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479134/946-220-599-3" }, "r382"; { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef". "Topic": "946", "SubTopic":
"235", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification”, "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "2", "Subparagraph": "(a)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147477968/946-235-
50-2" }, "r383"; { "role": "http:.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef". "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "235", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification". "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "2"
"Subparagraph": "(c)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147477968/946-235-50-2" }, "r384": { "role": "http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946",
"SubTopic": "235", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "2", "Subparagraph": "(d)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https://asc.fash.org/1943274/2147477968/946-235-50-2" }, "'r385": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "235", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "2", "Subparagraph": "(e)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147477968/946-235-50-2" }, "r386": { "role":
"http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "505", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "1", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
"https://asc.fash.org/1943274/2147478448/946-505-50-1" }, "r387": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "505", “Name ": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "2", "Subparagraph": "(a)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147478448/946-505-50-2" }, "r388": { "role":
"http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "505", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "2", "Subparagraph": "(b)",
"Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147478448/946-505-50-2" }, "r389": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "505",
"Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "2", "Subparagraph": "(c)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fasb.orq/1943274/2147478448/946-505-50-2" }
'r390": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946", "SubTopic": "505", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "2",
"Subparagraph": "(d)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fash.org/1943274/2147478448/946-505-50-2" }, "'r391": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "946",
"SubTopic": "505", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "6", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147478448/946-505-50-6"
"r392": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "954", "SubTopic": "310", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "2", "Publisher":
"FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147478785/954-310-50-2" }, "r393": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "954", "SubTopic": "440", "Name":
"Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(a)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fash.org/1943274/2147478522/954-440-50-1"
role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef", "Topic": "985", "SubTopic": "20", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "2", "Publisher": "FASB",
"URI": "https.//asc.fash.org/1943274/2147481283/985-20-50-2" : -//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50",
"Paragraph": "4", "Subparagraph": "(e)". "SubTopic": "10", "Topic": "235", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147483426/235-10-50-4" }, "r396": { "role":
"http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Topic": "210", "SubTopic": "10", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "45", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(a)",

"Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147483467/210-10-45-1" }, "r397": { "role": "http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Topic": "210", "SubTopic": "10", "Name":
"Accounting Standards Codification”, "Section": "45", "Paragraph": "1", "Subparagraph": "(b)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https:,

"role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Topic": "210", "SubTopic": "20", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "55", "Paragraph": "16", "Publisher": "FASB",
"URI": "https.//asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147483444/210-20-55-16" }, "'r399": { "role": "http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Topic": "210", "SubTopic": "20", "Name": "Accounting

Standards Codification", "Section": "55", "Paragraph": "21", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147483444/210-20-55-21"
"http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Topic": "210", "SubTopic": "20", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "55", "Paragraph": ”22” ”Pub]zsher” "FASB", "URI":




"https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147483444/210-20-55-22" : i ://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Topic": "235", "SubTopic": "10", "Name": "Accounting Standards
Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "4", "Subparagraph": "(d)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147483426/235-10-50-4" }, "r402": { "role":
"“http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Topic": "235", "SubTopic": "10", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "4", "Subparagraph": "(f)".
"Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147483426/235-10-50-4" }, "'r403": { "role": "http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Topic": "260", "SubTopic": "10", "Name":
"Accounting Standards Codification”, "Section": "55", "Paragraph": "52", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147482635/260-10-55-52" }, "r404": { "role":
"http.//www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Topic": "280", "SubTopic": "10", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "50", "Paragraph": "31", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
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Codification", "Section": "55", "Paragraph": "48", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fash.org/1943274/2147482785/280-10-55-48" }, "r406": { "role":
"“http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef", "Topic": "280", "SubTopic": "10", "Name": "Accounting Standards Codification", "Section": "55", "Paragraph": "49", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI":
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Codification", "Section": "55", "Paragraph": "91", "Subparagraph": "(c)", "Publisher": "FASB", "URI": "https://asc.fasb.org/1943274/2147479777/606-10-55-91"
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